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Corporate Profile
NG Gb

China Saite Group Company Limited (“China Saite” or the
“"Company”, together with its subsidiaries the “Group”) is an
integrated steel structure and prefabricated construction
solution service provider headquartered in Yixing, Jiangsu
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). It has an
operation history of nearly 20 years. The Group's integrated
construction solution services are customised to meet the
quality, technical specifications and requirements of different
projects, and span from design plan, including fabrication and
assembly of steel structure parts and prefabricated
construction, transportation, and to the installation of
materials onsite and after-sales services. According to an
industry report prepared by Ipsos Hong Kong Ltd., China Saite
was the second largest prefabricated construction service
provider and the third largest steel structure construction
service provider in Jiangsu Province, in terms of revenue in
2012.

The Group commenced to undertake prefabricated
construction projects in late 2010 and enjoys a first-mover
advantage in the PRC prefabricated construction industry.
Prefabricated construction is one of the advanced types of
construction method deploying a majority of structural
components pre-produced and standardised in factory for
ready assembling at the work site. The Group's prefabricated
construction solution was mainly provided to domestic high-
rise commercial and residential buildings and social security
housing projects.

China Saite has been accredited as a Grade One Steel
Structure Engineering Professional Contractor, the highest
national qualification, by the Ministry of Housing since
November 2005. This enables China Saite to undertake all
kinds of steel structure projects without limitation in span,
contract sum, construction area or total weight of construction
in the PRC. The Group has participated in a wide range of
steel structure projects, including bridges, train stations,
stadiums, exhibition centres, factory premises, etc..
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of China Saite, | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The year 2018 marked the establishment of a firm footing for
the Group’s diversification into promoting the upgrading and
development of its steel structure business. The Group has
been revolving around on two pillar businesses: steel structure
construction and prefabricated construction components,
committing to exploiting synergies between different
segments, and prospecting opportunities for expanding its
business scope. During the year, the Group launched its
parking garage steel structure construction business, paving
the way for its participation in intelligent parking garage
management and nurturing new growth drivers on the top of
its two major businesses.

In terms of development at the state level, the economy in
China has ushered into an era of transformation and
upgrading, seeking healthy GDP growth while attaching more
emphases to the quality and efficiency of development.
Stretching the original businesses higher up on the value chain
to accomplish green and low-carbon scalable development
constitutes a state policy for developing its economy and a
direction for the long term development of China Saite.

China Saite Group Company Limited /2 B &5 £ E B[R A 7
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Turnover of the Group’s for 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB1,501.3 million, slightly higher from 2017 by 6.3%. The
demand for prefabricated construction components slowed
down while the steel structure business resumed growth due
to the gradual resumption of momentum for investing in
transportation infrastructure, resulting in a 14.2% increase in
revenue. The Group expects these two major businesses to
continue to bring in stable income. The Group will capitalise
on the push by the state in promoting infrastructure
development and opportunities afforded by the
encouragement at the state level for green and low-carbon
construction to establish a more extensive business network,
and to explore business opportunities outside the Yangtze
River Delta region, seeking to move its businesses higher up
on the value chain to bring in more strategic value.

During the review period, the Group entered into an
agreement for building and installation of a vertical automated
parking system in car park structure situated in the East Block,
Yingbin Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang City, China. This will
become a pilot project of the Group in the vertical automated
parking system business. The Group has full confidence in
prospects of the vertical automated parking system industry in
China and believes this new business will help it explore and
extend its steel structure business to the high end of the value
chain.

Despite reporting lower profit for 2018 weakened due to
impairment on investments and provisions for account
receivables, the Group believes these two pillar business
segments will help resume growth momentum in 2019, with
the investment in parking garages to gradually become a new
growth driver.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EFE®/E

We believe the well-articulated business strategies, when
coupled with a management team with strong execution
capabilities, will accomplish sustainable development amid
uncertainties in the economic environment. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all staff
members of China Saite for their contribution to the Group in
the past year and to our shareholders for their ongoing
support. With 2019 tipped to be a year full of opportunities
and challenges, the Group is committed to creating better
value for shareholders.

Jiang Jianqiang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As a provider of integrated construction solutions using steel
structures and prefabricated components, the Group’s
integrated construction solutions are tailor-made to meet
technical specifications, requirements and customer demand
of different projects. The scope of services includes design,
secondary detailed design, compilation, installation, and after-
sale services.

Our steel structure solutions focus on construction of large-
scale public structures (such as sports stadiums, convention
and exhibition centres, airports, and railway stations), bridges
(such as railway bridges, highway bridges, landscape bridges,
cross-river bridges and cross-sea bridges), large-scale factory
premises, industrial park zones, logistics park zones, etc.

Our prefabricated construction solutions focus on construction
of social security housing and public structure projects in the
urbanisation process driven by the PRC Government.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2018, the total investments in fixed assets (excluding
agricultural households) in the PRC amounted to
approximately RMB63,563.6 billion, up by 5.9% year on year.
The growth rate, while level to that of 2017, was the lowest
since 2001. During the year under review, the PRC saw its
Gross Domestic Product (the “GDP") grew approximately
6.6% year on year, which was the lowest in the past 28 years.
The overall macroeconomic environment inflicted considerable
repercussions on demand for the construction materials and
related services.

Despite the slow economic growth in the PRC during the year
under review, buoyed by the policy of stabilizing domestic
demand from the Central Government, investments in
transportation infrastructure construction gradually picked up
to meet the completion quota for major projects of highway
and bridge construction in both the midstream and
downstream regions along the Yangtze River, supporting the
demand for steel structures. The steel structure business of the
Group resumed growth and recorded an approximately
14.2% increase in revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DM

As for the prefabricated construction business, in 2018 the
construction volume of affordable housing in the PRC reached
a bottleneck and the growth in new projects began to slow
down. Yet competition within the industry was still intense,
prompting an adjustment by the Group of its planned
landscape for the prefabricated construction business and
slight declines in revenue (and gross profit margin) for this
segment.

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
(the "Year 2018") amounted to approximately RMB1,501.3
million (2017: RMB1,411.7 million). Gross profit for the year
under review amounted to RMB353.8 million (2017:
RMB359.9 million) and gross profit margin averaged
approximately 23.6% (2017: 25.5%). Profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB139.0 million (2017: RMB227.2 million). Basic earnings
per share for the year under review were approximately
RMB5.96 cents (2017: basic earnings per share: RMB9.77
cents). The Board did not recommend any final dividend
payment for the Year 2018 to the shareholders (2017: nil).

Steel structure business

Characterised by their strength, durability, flexibility in layout,
low pollution and recyclability, steel structures have been
widely applied in the construction of factory premises, bridges,
sports stadiums, convention and exhibition centers, airports,
railway stations and other various infrastructures since the
development of steel structure construction in the PRC in the
late 1990s. According to the list of top 100 construction
enterprises in Jiangsu Province compiled by Jiangsu Provincial
Department of Construction, the Group ranked among the
top ten steel structure construction service providers in Jiangsu
Province.
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For the Year 2018, the revenue of the Group from the steel
structure business amounted to approximately RMB968.3
million, up approximately 14.2% from the RMB848.3 million
for the previous year. During the year under review, gross
profit margin for the steel structure business decreased by 0.9
percentage points from 18.6% to 17.6% due to economies of
scale and synergies. The completed steel structure parts for
the year under review amounted to approximately 92,600
tons, up by approximately 25.0% from approximately 74,100
tons for 2017.

During the year under review, the number of steel structure
projects completed amounted to 24, up by 10 (2017: 14). The
number of bridges projects completed amounted to 5 (2017:
nil), representing an increase of 5 projects year on year, and
the revenue generated from completed bridges projects
amounted to RMB201.1 million (2017: nil). The number of
export orders of steel structure projects completed amounted
to 4 (2017: 2), representing an increase of 2 projects year on
year, and the revenue generated from completed export
orders of steel structure projects increased by approximately
44.6% from approximately RMB54.5 million to approximately
RMB78.8 million. The number of public structures projects
completed amounted to 4 (2017: 4), representing no change
from year on year, and the revenue generated from completed
public structures projects increased by approximately 39.6%
from approximately RMB112.0 million to approximately
RMB156.3 million. The number of factories projects completed
amounted to 11 (2017: 8), representing an increase of 3
projects year on year, and the revenue generated from
completed factories projects decreased by 13.5% from
approximately RMB501.5 million to RMB433.6 million.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Total st 24 14
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

During the year under review, the Group mainly focused on
construction projects covering plant construction, roads and
bridges in Shandong, Shanghai, Jiangsu, Jiangxi and other
midstream and low stream regions of Yangtze River for its
steel structure business. Amongst these regions, the revenue
generated from Jiangsu Province represented approximately
50.1% of the total revenue generated from steel structure
business segment, and one of the major construction projects
of the Group outside Jiangsu Province was the Construction
Project of Teaching Building of Primary School in Xinyi City.

Breaking down by geography of the revenue generated from
steel structures, the number of projects completed in Jiangsu
Province was 14, representing an increase of 6 projects from
2017 (2017: 8). The revenue generated from completed steel
structure projects in Jiangsu Province increased by approximately
77.5% year on year from approximately RMB273.5 million to
approximately RMB485.5 million. In 2018, the number of
completed projects in the PRC outside Jiangsu Province
increased by 4 projects from 2017, i.e. 10 (2017: 6) projects.
The revenue generated from completed projects in the
respective geographical region decreased by approximately
2.6% year on year from approximately RMB394.5 million to
approximately RMB384.3 million.

The Group's revenue generated from steel structure projects
in progress as at the end of the year decreased from
approximately RMB180.3 million to approximately RMB98.5
million, representing a decrease of 45.4%, which is mainly
due to the fact that a lot of factories projects were completed
during the year.

As at 31 December 2018, the steel structure projects in
progress are set out as follows:
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Number of projects in progress
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2017
Type of project HEER 20174
Public structure DK 1 1
Export orders of steel structure A B G OETE 1 3
Bridges B 0 1
Factories BB 1 3
Total st 3 8

The above-mentioned steel structure projects in progress are
expected to be completed in 2019.
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Prefabricated construction business

Prefabricated construction mainly involves pre-production of
major structural components, such as columns, beams, wall
panels, floor panels, stairs and balconies, etc., in factories and
direct assembly of these components on location. Compared
to traditional steel and concrete structures which are
fabricated on location, prefabricated construction allows
tighter prefabrication control, conferring better accuracy,
stronger shock resistance, shorter construction lead-time, and
is more environment-friendly, which aligns perfectly with
objectives of environmental protection in the PRC, particularly
in green construction areas. With the encouragement and
support from the PRC government via various policies, the
Group believes that prefabricated construction is set to
become a major trend in development of the construction
industry.

The Group is one of the largest prefabricated construction
service providers in Jiangsu Province by revenue. Following
diligent efforts over the years, the Group has secured a
number of patented technologies in prefabricated
construction.

For the Year 2018, the Group completed 500,610 square
metres (“sq.m.”) of prefabricated construction materials,
down approximately 1.7% from the 509,200 sq.m. in 2017.
The revenue from prefabricated construction projects
amounted to approximately RMB533.0 million in 2018 (2017:
RMB563.5 million), representing a decrease of approximately
5.4% from the previous year.

The Group has competitive edges in technology and is a
pioneer in the prefabricated construction business. Yet in
Jiangsu Province, where the business of the Group is based,
construction of affordable housing has reached a bottleneck,
limiting the development of the prefabricated construction
business which primarily serves the affordable housing sector.
During the year under review, this business segment
contributed approximately RMB533.0 million to the total
revenue of the Group, compared with approximately
RMB563.5 million for the previous year. The revenue
generated in this segment comprised approximately 35.5% of
the Group's total revenue, decreasing from approximately
39.9% in the previous year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

In 2018, the Group engaged in 12 (2017: 10) prefabricated
construction projects, all of which were residential projects,
and recorded a revenue of approximately RMB533.0 million
(2017: RMB563.5 million).

During the year under review, the number of new contracts
signed and the total contract revenue of new contracts
entered into by the Group was 25 (2017: 24) and
approximately RMB1,182.2 million (2017: RMB1,158.2
million), respectively. The average contract revenue of the
signed contracts decreased to approximately RMB47.3 million
from approximately RMB48.3 million for 2017.

The closing contract value of backlog in 2018 decreased to
approximately RMB162.3 million from approximately
RMB481.5 million in 2017.

20184 « AL BE#ETT12{E (2017 F : 1018) 2%
TE R MFIEEEIER - FTEHYRTEIER - BERAI
%= 4 A R %533,000,0007T (20174 ¢ A R ¥
563,500,000 7T) °

REBFE  AEEZEENFMEREER251E(2017
F240) MFERANEGERAKZBBENAEARE
1,182,200,0007C (20174 : A K % 1,158,200,000
JL) c BEEARMIBENERNESEHER2017F
#9 A R % 48,300,000 7T 2 &= £ A R % 47,300,000
5T o

HA2017 5 %) A R ¥ 481,500,000 7T LL &2 2018 £F <
TILAREERDZEHARE 162,300,000 7T °

Steel Prefabricated

structure  construction

projects projects
2ERE
HEkE
We@ER EL )
RMB'000
ARET T
Contract value of backlog at EYXTIARSE
the beginning of the year 209,187 272,293
Value of new contracts HaRAeE 858,894 323,259
Revenue recognised BHERME 968,313 532,998
Contract value of backlog at EXATIARSE
the end of the year 99,768 62,554

2017

20175
Changes
in the total
amount for this
reporting period
as compared
Steel  Prefabricated with the
structure  construction previous year
projects projects Total %

2REE
HEiE AREHELH
M EER EE ) st pAll:S ]
RMB'000 %

ARETT
481,480 289,047 446,002 735,049 =345
1,182,153 768,393 389,783 1,158,176 21
1,501,311 848,253 563,492 1,411,745 6.3
162,322 209,187 272,093 481,480 -66.3
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Investment Business

On 27 December 2018, Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd.
CTEREAFMAEE AR A A)) (“Saite Steel (Jiangsu)”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
Construction Agreement with Shenyang Jindihan Investment
Co., Ltd. (&5 &#BEIRE B R A a]) (“Shenyang Jindihan”) in
respect of manufacturing and installation of the Vertical
Automated Parking System. Jiangsu Saite shall be responsible
for design, manufacturing, transportation, installation, testing,
checking and inspection, after-sale maintenance and repair and
training in respect of the Vertical Automated Parking System at
a car park complex located on the east land plot of Yingbin
Street, Shenhe District, Shenyang in the PRC. Jiangsu Saite shall
provide Shenyang Jindihan an initial warranty of 24 months for
free, in respect of the Vertical Automated Parking System.
Shenyang Jindihan shall pay Jiangsu Saite consideration
aggregating RMB109,240,824.00 (equivalent to approximately
HK$124,137,300.00).

Jiangsu Saite, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, is
principally engaged in construction of steel structures and
prefabricated construction projects. Shenyang Jindihan is
principally engaged in carpark services, industrial investments
and real estate development.

This will become a pilot vertical automated parking system
project for the Group. The Group has full confidence in
prospects of vertical automated parking systems in the PRC. In
order to alleviate shortages of parking spaces in cities, the
Group proposed static traffic solutions such as vertical
automated parking systems and three-dimensional parking
garages, which alleviated inadequacies in parking lots by fully
utilizing the plot ratio. A three-dimensional parking garage is
basically composed of steel structures, which has synergy with
the steel structure business of the Group. Targeting drivers in
cities and towns of different sizes, these three-dimensional
parking garages can generate income within a short period of
time.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
was approximately RMB1,501.3 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB89.6 million or 6.3% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group’s
revenue in terms of steel structure projects and prefabricated
construction projects for each year indicated:

Bt 7 B 8
W =
HE2018F12A3MBIEFE AEBNKENE

AR #1,501,300,0007C © & ZE2017F 12 A31H
IEFEHE N4 A R #5 89,600,000 708 6.3% °

TREINSATFEAEBNMABIAR 2R
TREE T EEETE B m e ARA ¢

2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 4F
Revenue Revenue
Percentage Percentage
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
Wk Eb Iz fE
AR%T T (%) ARBTT (%)
Construction of 5
— Steel structure projects  — ] 451% 968,313 64.5 848,253 60.1
— Prefabricated — 2 HERER
construction business AL e e e 532,998 35.5 563,492 39.9
Total wEt 1,501,311 100.0 1,411,745 100.0

The revenue from steel structure projects increased by 14.1%
from approximately RMB848.3 million for the Year 2017 to
approximately RMB968.3 million for the Year 2018.

The revenue from prefabricated construction projects was

approximately RMB533.0 million for the Year 2018 (2017:
approximately RMB563.5 million) which decreased by 5.4%.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit from steel structure projects amounted to
approximately RMB170.8 million for the Year 2018,
represented an increase of 8.5% from approximately
RMB157.4 million for the Year 2017. The gross profit margin
of steel structure projects decreased from approximately
18.6% for the Year 2017 to approximately 17.6% for the
Year 2018. The decrease was mainly due to the increase in the
production costs of steel structure when compared with 2017.

The gross profit from prefabricated construction projects
amounted to approximately RMB183.0 million for the Year
2018, represented a decrease of 9.6% from approximately
RMB202.5 million for the Year 2017. The gross profit margin
of prefabricated construction projects decreased from
approximately 35.9% for the Year 2017 by 1.6 percentage
points to approximately 34.3% for the Year 2018.

The Group’s overall gross profit margin decreased by 1.9
percentage points from approximately 25.5% for the Year
2017 to approximately 23.6% for the Year 2018.

Other income

The other income of the Group for the Year 2018 was
approximately RMB12.9 million (2017: RMB10.0 million),
mainly derived from sales of scrapped materials and interest
income on bank deposits.

Selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses

The total selling, marketing and administrative expenses for
the Year 2018 were approximately RMB60.6 million (2017:
RMB41.3 million), represented an increase of approximately
RMB19.3 million. The increase was mainly attributable to (i)
increase in staff costs as a result of inflation in the PRC; (ii)
increase in legal and professional fees of approximately R\VB
13.5 million derived from issuance of bonds during the year.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs for the Year 2018 was approximately
RMB36.7 million (2017: RMB7.4 million), mainly contributed
from bonds issued during the current year. The creditors
regarding the bonds and the short-term borrowings are
independent third parties to the Group.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Charges on Group assets

The Group had pledged property, plant and equipment with a
carrying amount of RMB22,184,000 (2017: nil) as at 31
December 2018 to secure bank borrowings of the group.

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributed to the owners of the
Company for the Year 2018 amounted to RMB109.3 million
(2017: RMB227.2 million), lending to the basic earnings per
share of RMB5.96 cents (2017: RMB9.77 cents). The decrease
in total comprehensive income was attributable to the net
effect of (i) the declines in revenue and gross profit; (i) an
increase in impairment loss on trade receivables; (iii)
impairment loss of approximately RMB16.5 million from an
impairment provision made by the Group for bank balances
and contract assets under amendments to HKFRS 9; (iv) an
increase in administrative expenses and finance costs mainly
attributable to the higher audit, legal and professional fees
and more financing activities carried out during the year; and
(v) exchange loss of approximately RMB24.7 million.

Capital structure, liquidity and financial
resources

The Group's net cash from operating activities for the Year
2018 was approximately RMB48.7 million (2017: cash from
operating activities of RMB2.0 million) and the Group’s cash
and cash equivalents as at the end of the year was
approximately RMB856.9 million (2017: RMB757.3 million).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB2,770.8 million (2017: RMB2,572.7 million)
and current liabilities of approximately RMB426.6 million
(2017: RMB269.6 million). The current ratio (which is
calculated on the basis of current assets over current liabilities)
was 6.5 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 9.5).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB2,632.5 million (2017: RMB2,608.6
million). As at 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$233.1 million (31 December 2017:
HK$233.1 million) with 2,330.7 million (31 December 2017:
2,330.7 million) shares in issue.

Total borrowings (including issuance of bonds) were

approximately RMB362.7 million as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB152.8 million).
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Treasury Policies

The Group has adopted a prudent treasury policy and thus
maintained a healthy liquidity position throughout the year. The
Group strives to reduce credit risk by conducting ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total debt (including
payables incurred not in the ordinary course of business) as at
the end of the year divided by equity attributable to owners of
the Company as at the end of the year multiplied by 100%.
As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group was
approximately 13.8% (2017: 5.9%).

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group’s businesses are principally operated in the PRC
and substantially all of its transactions are conducted in RMB
and most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are also
denominated in RMB. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities which are denominated in
currencies other than RMB. During the year under review, the
Group did not commit to any financial instrument for hedging
its foreign currency risk exposure and did not adopt a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Capital Expenditures

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's capital
expenditure consisted of additions to properties, plant and
equipment amounting to approximately RMB58.0 million
(2017: RMB49.9 million).
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Employees

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 591
(2017: 544) employees. The related staff cost (including
remuneration for Directors in the form of salaries and other
benefits) for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB60.4 million (2017: RMB56.4 million). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their performances,
experiences and prevailing industry practice. Competitive
remuneration packages are offered to retain elite employees.
Our packages include salaries, medical insurance, discretionary
bonuses, share options, on-the-job training, other benefits as
well as mandatory provident funds schemes for employees in
Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit schemes for
employees in the PRC.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. Such subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of the total
monthly basic salaries to the retirement benefits schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs (capped at HK$1,500
per month effective since 1 June 2014) of each individual
employee to the scheme, to which a matching contribution is
made by each employee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had no
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to
the retirement benefits schemes set out above.
Contingent liabilities

There were no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
Dividend

The Board does not recommend any final dividend payment

for the year ended 31 December 2018 to the shareholders
(2017: nil).
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Event after the Reporting Period

In March 2019, the Company issued 260,000,000 new shares
to Jiangsu Kaimeng Investments Co., Ltd.* (T # S| BIREHR
fR 2 &) (“Jiangsu Kaimeng”), an independent third party, at
an issue price of HK$0.5 per share and the net proceeds
amounting to HK$129,950,000 was used for general working
capital of the Group and for the future development of the
Group's businesses, of which approximately 70% will be used
for the new three-dimensional parking garage business.
Jiangsu Kaimeng has become a substantial shareholder of the
Company holding 10.04% of the Company’s enlarged share
capital. Jiangsu Kaimeng is principally engaged in investment
businesses and invests in projects related to the Group's steel
structure business, which will bring synergies to the Group'’s
business development.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND
STRATEGIES

The PRC government has stipulated a economic growth target
at 6%-6.5% for the country in 2019. The PRC government
will stimulate the economy by enacting various measures,
including tax cuts, more infrastructure investments and more
relaxed economic policies. The Group is of a view that despite
the continued slowdown in the PRC’s economic growth, the
Central Government has established the policy to strengthen
infrastructure investments to support domestic demand. The
management of the Group will explore more business
opportunities in the steel structure business through enlarging
its shareholder base and tapping the three-dimensional
parking garage business.
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As early as in 2017, the State Council had released Guidance
Opinion on Promoting Prefabricated Construction ({BER A1
BRERNELEMIIEEE R )), which proposed that the
Government strives to raise the proportion of fabricated
buildings among new buildings to 30% within 10 years. As
the main structural system most suitable for the development
of prefabricated buildings, buildings with fabricated steel
structures and composite structures are set to reach one-third
of prefabricated buildings, which will increase the proportion
of the prefabricated steel structure residential building from
less 1% at present to 10%. Compared to developed countries,
bridges with steel structures and composite structures
comprise a low proportion of the total in the PRC, especially
small- and medium-span bridges with steel structures and
composite structures comprise less than 1% of the total. For
this reason, Ministries including the Ministry of Transport have
made great efforts to promote the construction of bridges
with steel structures and composite structures and proposed
that at the end of the “13th Five-Year Plan” period, new
large-span and extra-large-span bridges will be dominated by
steel structures and the proportion of steel structures will be
significantly improved in newly-built bridges.

In addition, reaping benefits from the rapid development of
the “One Belt, One Road” construction developments, steel
structures made in the PRC are being exported to other
markets. In the PRC, infrastructure construction will still play
an important role in economic development. Steel structure
buildings, better known as “green buildings”, are gradually
evolving into a trend and the development of steel structure
buildings has been included in the “13th Five-Year Plan” in
respect of the steel structure industry. The PRC government
strives to increase the use of steel in steel structures from 50
million tons at present to 100 million tons and above in 2020.
Therefore, the Group believes that the steel structure business
still has great development potential.
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For the steel structure business, the Group will continue to
expand its markets from the Yangtze River Delta region to the
central and western regions of the country. According to the
13th Five-Year Plan, the Central Government of the PRC will
speed up the pace of development of the central and western
regions, constituting a great opportunity for expansion of the
steel structure business of the Group into more regions. The
Group also strives to expand into other overseas markets
including Australia, Turkey and Africa through cooperation
with multinational corporations. With both the opportunities
from the Government’s development initiatives and the
Group’s close business relationship with multi-national
partners, the Group will capture more market shares in these
areas.

For the prefabricated construction business, the bottleneck in
construction of affordable housing is expected to continue in
the short and medium term. Coupled with intense competition
within the industry, the Group will adopt a defensive strategy
so as to maintain the scale of prefabricated construction
business and the contribution to the overall profitability.

In a nutshell, amid the complicated economic environment in
both the domestic and overseas markets, the Group will respond
promptly to changes in the markets and continue to improve its
own operation and management efficiency to capture
opportunities arising from the increasing interconnection
between the domestic macro-economic situation and the
international markets. The Group will take full advantage of the
solid foundations of its steel structure business and dive deeper
into other collaborative business opportunities while enhancing
cooperation with state-owned enterprises, Central-Government-
owned enterprises and multi-national corporations to enrich its
business mix and broaden its income streams, seeking to take the
Group'’s businesses to a next level and creating long-term value
for shareholders.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESENREREEEBN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Jiang Jianqgiang
Executive Director & Chairman

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (¥%3£58 ), aged 53, the founder of the Group,
has been the chairman and an executive Director of the Company
since 31 July 2012. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is responsible for the overall strategic
planning and management of the Group. Mr. Jiang has extensive
experience in the steel structure industry, and has been engaged in
such business for over 20 years. Mr. Jiang completed a three-year
professional course in the Faculty of Architecture at Southeast
University in July 1996 and is a practising Grade One Constructor
registered with the Ministry of Housing. He was also qualified as &
% T#2AM (senior engineer) and = A% 4E 75T (senior economist) by
7T 24 A = B2 (Jiangsu Province Personnel Department*) in June
2008 and July 2009 respectively. From May 1995 to April 1998, he
served as the deputy general manager of ;T &xFa A LI T 12
AR Aa] (Jiangsu Yusheng Construction and Installation Company
Limited*), a company principally engaged in construction projects
and lifting equipment installation, and during such period he was
responsible for the administration and production and business
management of such company. Since September 1998, Mr. Jiang
has acted as the general manager of Saite Steel (Jiangsu). He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He also served as a
representative in the 12th and the 13th Communist Party Congress
of Yixing, the PRC, and the 15th and the 16th People’s Congress of
Yixing, the PRC.

Shao Xiaogiang
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (8B/]\3&), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 31 July 2012. He is also
the chief executive officer and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is responsible for the
production and technical teams of the Group. Mr. Shao is also
responsible for approving contracts with our customers,
making the decision for engaging installation teams and
production teams and whether to subcontract any works to
subcontractors.

*for translation purposes only
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Mr. Shao graduated with a bachelor’s degree in management,
majoring in TI2E I (engineering management*), from )L
A (Jiangnan University*) in July 2011. Mr. Shao was qualified
as an engineer (specialising in steel structures) by 1 BIZ#2E T 2
#8 /2 A) (China State Construction Engineering Corporation*)
in December 2004 and a practising Grade 2 Constructor
jointly awarded by )T & & A %8 (Jiangsu Province Personnel
Department*), /T &k & £ T2 & /B (Construction Project
Administration Bureau of Jiangsu Province*) and jT & & iR 52
(Department of Construction of Jiangsu Province*) in January
2007. He has more than 16 years of experience in the
construction industry. He was awarded with 12 55 18 B £ 12
(Excellent Project Manager*) for the project of Z=/l =@ T
AR AN 5 B 8 & 5 [ i1 458 T 12 (Taizhou Sanfu
Marine Engineering Co., Limited Hull Block Fabrication
Workshop Steel Structure Project*) in 2008. From April 1996 to
November 1999, he worked as the head of the technical
department of )T % Bz & i 1% 32 % A& R 2 & (Jiangsu Xiaojin
Steel Structure Construction Co., Ltd.*), a company principally
engaged in production and installation of steel structure. He
joined the Group in December 1999 and has served as a deputy
general manager and the deputy administrative manager of
Saite Steel (Jiangsu) since then, overseeing the engineering and
technical work and the production process of the Group. As at
the date of this report, Mr. Shao was also a director of Saite
Steel (Jiangsu), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
Jiangsu HuaChen Saite.

Xu Fanghua
Executive Director

Mr. Xu Fanghua (:75%E), aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on 15 December 2015. He has over 10
years of experience in the eco-friendly construction industry. Mr. Xu
graduated from B2 T K £ (Nanjing University of Science and
Technology) in environmental engineering in July 2003. He was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of )L & /= 71 & % A R 2 7] (iangsu Chenli Company
Limited*) in February 1991. Jiangsu Chenli Company Limited was
deregistered in January 2013. Mr. Xu then founded Jiangsu Chenli
in October 2012 and has been appointed as the chairman of the
board of directors as well as the general manager of Jiangsu Chenli
since October 2012.

*for translation purposes only
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Xu Jiaming
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Jiaming (#RZXBR ), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 11 October 2013. He is
also a member of the audit committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Xu graduated with a bachelor's degree in T %
E 1B T I2(E ¥ = B R #) (ndustrial Management Engineering
(Management Information Systems*)) from & /& T £ f (Wuhan
Institute of Engineering*) in June 1992 and obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from T AZ (Nanjing University)
in December 2003. He is currently a candidate for a doctorate degree
in & ¥ &l £ 8 T 72 (Management Science and Engineering*) at
% 12 T K & (Wuhan University of Technology). He has over 16
years of experience in corporate management and consultancy. From
January 1997 to May 1998, he served at FIRFIEIE BEXEEE
R 2 7] (Nanjing Toptry Information Industry Group Co., Ltd.*), a
company principally engaged in software development and
information services as the head of its marketing department, deputy
manager and the head of its & F % & (department of electronic
commerce). Since May 1998, he has served as the chief consultant
and the general manager of M R & B X BB B AER QA
(Nanjing Zhiyu Corporate Management Consultants Company
Limited*), a company principally engaged in provision of business
consultancy services. He acted as the chief human resources manager
of 41 2 X1 % E A R 2 7] (Red Star Home Furniture Group
Limited*), a company principally engaged in, among others, sale of
home furniture, between June 2005 and July 2007 and the general
manager of 41 2 X gl 3E IR 5% 58 8 R A 7] (Red Star Macalline
International Consultancy Company Limited*), a company principally
engaged in provision of business consultancy services, between June
2005 and July 2007. From December 2008 to September 2010, he
also served as the management consultant and the president of fEA
£ EBRAF] (Permanent Group Co., Ltd.*), a company principally
engaged in the manufacture of steel structures and machineries. Since
September 2010, he has acted as the corporate management
consultant of & A & A% 2 4T AR 5L B A IR 2 &) (Nanjing Fullshare
Holdings Group Limited*), a company principally engaged in
construction projects.

*for translation purposes only
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Luk Chi Shing
Independent Non-executive Director

Luk Chi Shing, aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 3 January 2017.
He is also the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Luk
graduated from City University of Hong Kong in 1993, with a
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. Mr. Luk is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Luk has been an independent non-executive
director of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (stock code:
8009) since 1 February 2018. He previously served as (i) an
executive director of hmvod Limited (formerly known as
Trillion Grand Corporate Company Limited) (stock code: 8103)
from April 2014 to March 2016; (ii) an independent non-
executive director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited) (stock code: 8081) from
December 2011 to August 2015; (iii) an independent non-
executive director of Dafeng Port Heshun Technology
Company Limited (stock code: 8310) from February 2014 to
March 2016; (iv) an independent non-executive director of
CircuTech International Holdings Limited (formerly known as
TeleEye Holdings Limited) (stock code: 8051) from April 2015
to June 2016; and (v) the company secretary and financial
controller of Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (stock
code: 8250) from January 2012 to November 2015. The
shares of all these companies are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Wu Zhongxian
Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Zhongxian (R~ &), aged 62, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 8 August 2018. He is also the
chairman of the remuneration committee, and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Wu has 40
years of experience in finance and construction management. He served
as the chief financial officer and deputy general manager of B #mi & —
BEZE TR A S E R A (Gaocheng Branch of Yixing No. 2
Construction and Installation Engineering Company*), the general
manager of F & = E EF 22 7] (Yixing Gaocheng Real Estate
Development Company*) and the deputy general manager of /T &5
7% % T 12 2 A (Jiangsu Yusheng Construction and Installation
Engineering Company*).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Shan Jinwen
Deputy General Manager

Mr. Shan Jinwen (B85 32), aged 43, joined the Group in September
2009 and has served as the Deputy General Manager of the
Group since September 2011. He is responsible for the sales
and marketing activities of the Group.

Mr. Shan completed a three-year professional course in
electronic technology engineering at Southeast University in
July 1996 and obtained a master’'s degree in business
administration from J& F9 & £ K 2 (Macau University of
Science and Technology) in February 2004. He is also a Grade
One Constructor registered with the Ministry of Housing. Prior
to joining the Group, he acted as the manager of the
marketing department of EFAZ A& &8 (F &) AR A 7] (BSH
Home Appliances Holding (China) Co., Ltd.*), a company
principally engaged in development and sale of home
appliances and their after-sales services, from November 1999
to June 2004. From June 2004 to August 2009, he took up
the position of deputy administrative manager of £5m IR A
i 45 /% T 72 B R 2 A (Wuxi City Modern Steel Structure
Engineering Co., Ltd.*), a company principally engaged in
production, processing and installation of steel structures and
their supporting parts, and during such period he was mainly
responsible for the corporate management of such company.
From September 2009 to August 2011, Mr. Shan worked as
the general manager of Wuxi office of Saite Steel (Jiangsu).

*for translation purposes only
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Lin Jiahui (A&=#) MNEE

Chief Financial Officer e

Mr. Lin Jiahui, aged 28 has been appointed as Chief Financial MEELL 285 © B20184F5 B EARRQF G
Officer of the Company since May 2018. He was appointed as B8 - 52018 F 10 AR IEBEZERLE  BF
the Chief Operating Officer of the Group effective October FERE - 1RE  BAMNUEEE - LT ARIEE -
2018 and is responsible for group finance, investment, local FEMBRINEEBRER -

and oversea mergers and acquisitions, operational matters of
listed company, group financial matters and investor
relationship affairs.

Mr. Lin received his Double Bachelor Degree of Law and MEERBRILRNEEZLETME P LB EEM] o
Management from Sun Yat-sen University. He is a member of BARBEEMERIBERE - RINBARERER - #F
The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to FEER BRI RS EBAERSAE 6 -
joining the Group, Mr. Lin worked as a senior auditor in one BEAERBEREENIPORISGETTIE AL
of the Big Four accounting firms. He was the sole accountant EMIPOE: - ST KM BLER B EEHEES
for an IPO on-site audit of a Hong Kong listed company and WHERE -

have rich IPO knowledge of auditing, accounting and financial
experience. He also holds the qualifications for securities
practice in China.

Save as disclosed herein, to the best of the knowledge, MERIABEEIN BEELEL A EERE
information and belief of our Directors having made all Frsn ~ FTiBERFTE - B S SAEEABRERELRR
reasonable enquiries, each of the members of our senior HSHHAI = FRATEETFERNAR LT AT (AEH
management has not been a director of any public company EBEBSBIMEMES NS L) WESHIE -

the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the three years immediately
preceding the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board has committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards
are essential in providing a framework for the Group to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, except for the deviation disclosed
below:

Deviation

Bk 5 5L

Code Provision

SFRIRX

ERQCBNBRRKTZEEERE -

EEgHE RRKFZEEELAREERAEERE
HEARERREEIIESCEEBERBEEHR
BIEBYE -

REZE2018F 12 A3 HIEHBFE + A FEE
FHREBMAEXGMAERAR (B &S L
AR EmAR]D e+ makEEA<FRI([ 1
EBesTA D PERI A TG - T XAk EE
BRBEIS BRI

Considered Reason for Deviation

BimBEEREMANREE

A.7.1 Board meetings papers should
be sent in full to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended  were held and the
date of meeting.

Directors less than 3

days before the date of

the Board meeting.
A7 EFEIINMENETE

45
SR RL =2 MRS

REZXERESF -
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During the year, certain
ad hoc Board meetings

relevant Board meeting
papers were sent to all

RER CBRTETE
EeRrEsE - A1E6
2REE- BExggaXfenE
EFEERAMNTR=

The Board members of the Company were informed
by the management of the Company by email, by
WeChat or by phone on the updated information of
proposed ad hoc projects/transaction(s) to be entered
by the Company from time to time. Although the
meeting papers could not be sent to the Directors at
least 3 days before the meeting, the Board members
still have sufficient information to discuss the matters
on proposed projects or transactions of the Company.
The Board will use its best efforts to meet the CG
Code requirements.
RAFREEZTEHNERRRAETBEETREER - M
EREESANEEAL R IOBRRIER R
ZHBINEA - BEFEXMRERGEI R =
RERER  BEERENERREMUNREH
RAFRZEEEARINEH - EEFHIBEMEE
FehEERTANRT -



Deviation

AP

Code Provision

<FRIERSC
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TEERERE

Considered Reason for Deviation

SR CEMANRE

C.1.2 Management should provide all
members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge
their duties under the Listing
Rules.

During the year,
management failed to
provide to the Directors
the consolidated
financial statements of
major subsidiary
company each month.

EEERBANESS 2R
BREEHMER  FIABEA
RARA - MR RATROALE
R ZMNEBNFTE - AT BN
EREEFENBTEFTRETL
MARAFTRENRE

RERN - ERERES
ARESRETIENE
RAIMEREMHI|RE -

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices to the conduct and growth of its
business and to review such practices from time to time to
ensure that they comply with the CG Code and align with the
latest development.

All the executive Directors were involved in the daily
operation of the Group and were fully aware of the
performance, position and prospects of the Company,
and the management has provided to all Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors)
half-yearly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail
prior to the regular board meetings of the Company.

Further, the management of the Company has
provided all members of the Board, in a timely
manner, updates on any material changes to the
performance, position and prospects of the Company
and sufficient background or explanatory information
for matters brought before the Board. Therefore, the
Company considered that all members of the Board
had been given a balanced and understandable
assessment on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.
FERTESEHA2EASENATEE <2
TERARRNKE  HAKAIR  BEBEERAR
ANEREFTSERN  BXrFOMEES (2155
YIEMITER)RFEEREN  HIFEARRR
B IRA KRBT RO R ER SRR -

A AR RERED KRMESS 2K ERHE
BREARRARR - MR RATSNERAEAZEHNE
AR ITHmEFSREZNEERHEHNER
EHPAER - At - ARRRA EFG2RNED
EBRH{EBARRRRE  MANRIRNAERSR
AR ARRTAE o
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions and dealing (the “Code of Conduct”)
by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard contained in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, the Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code and
the Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised six Directors,
including three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as named below.

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Luk Chi Shing

Mr. Eddie Hurip (resigned on 8 August 2018)

Mr. Wu Zhongxian (appointed on 8 August 2018)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 29 of this report for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company are held by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and Mr. Shao
Xiaogiang respectively. The chairman provides leadership for
the Board and is responsible for overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. The chief executive officer focuses
on overseeing the production and technical teams of our
Group. Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and
set out in writing.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 105(A) of the Company’s articles of
association, not less than one-third of the Directors (or
otherwise the number nearest one-third) for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting of the Company. All retiring Directors shall be eligible
for re-election.

Article 109 of the Company'’s articles of association provides
that any person appointed as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting but
shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors or
the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such
meeting.

Other than Mr. Wu Zhongxian, each Director was appointed
for a term of three years. Mr. Wu Zhongxian had entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of one year, subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. All Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting of the Company. Their appointments
shall be reviewed by the Nomination Committee when they
are due for re-election.

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors are responsible to
scrutinize the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and ensuring that exercise of
the board authority is within the powers conferred to the
Board under the applicable laws, articles of association of the
Company and rules and regulation.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Board holds at least four meetings a year. The Board
convenes meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by business needs. All Directors are invited to
attend the Board meetings in person or by telephone
conference.

Board papers will be given to the Board before the date of the
Board meeting by the company secretary with reasonable
time.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution.

During the reporting period, the Board held a total of eight
Board meetings.

ROLE AND FUNCTION OF THE BOARD
AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions, risk management, internal control systems and
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its
affairs. Directors make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them and the Board regularly reviews the
contribution required from each Director to perform his
responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-
ordinating the daily operation and management of the
Company are delegated to the management.
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ACCESS TO INFORMATION

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information
of the Company as well as the services and advice from the
company secretary and senior management. The Directors
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Internally-facilitated
briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics will be issued to Directors. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Directors
received training on the following areas with an emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed
company in compliance with the requirement of the CG Code
on continuous professional development:
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Accounting/
Financial/Risk

Corporate  Management/
Governance/ Management
Updates on or Other
Laws, Rules & Professional
Regulations Skills
TEER ai  mE
BiieE- RkEE ERE
RAIRER* REMEER R
Executive Directors YITES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Bt v -
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang AR/ NoR S v -
Mr. Xu Fanghua RIFESRE 4 -
Independent non-executive Directors BAUFHTES
Mr. Xu Jiaming RRALE v -
Mr. Luk Chi Shing R 7K v/ v/
Mr. Eddie Hurip (resigned on 8 Augqust 2018) T 4E3R5c4 (1R 20184 8 H 8 HBHE) v -
Mr. Wu Zhongxian RRBEE
(appointed on 8 August 2018) (R20184F 8 A8 HEZ(T) v -
* Directors’ training is through attending in-house trainings/seminars * EZMFITERL2 MRS kEERE

or reading newspapers, journals and updated legal and regulatory
news.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
cover the Directors and officers’ risk exposure arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
annually.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's
website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board

committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages
3to5.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Luk Chi Shing (chairman),
Mr. Xu Jiaming and Mr. Wu Zhongxian (appointed as a
member of the Committee on 8 August 2018). Mr. Eddie
Hurip resigned as a member of the Committee on 8 August
2018.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems, audit
plan and relationship with external auditor, and arrangements
to enable employees of the Company to raise, in confidence,
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
risk management, internal control or other matters of the
Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review the annual
financial results in respect of the year ended 31 December
2017 and the interim financial results in respect of the six
months ended 30 June 2018 and significant issues on the
financial reporting and compliance procedures, risk
management and internal control systems, scope of work and
re-appointment of external auditor, and arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties. In
addition, written resolution of the Audit Committee was
passed to approve the appointment of the Chief Financial
Officer of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
regarding the external auditor and there was no issue of
significant importance requiring disclosure in this annual
report under the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor without
the presence of the executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wu
Zhongxian (chairman) (appointed as chairman and member of
the Committee on 8 August 2018) and Mr. Luk Chi Shing,
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Shao Xiaogiang. Mr.
Eddie Hurip resigned as chairman and member of the
Committee on 8 August 2018.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for
all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her close associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

During the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to review the remuneration package of all
Directors and also considered the terms of appointment of a
new Director, and other related matters. In addition, written
resolution of the Remuneration Committee was passed to
approve the remuneration package of the newly appointed
Chief Financial Controller of the Group.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises one executive
Director, namely Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (chairman), and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Jiaming
and Mr. Wu Zhongxian (appointed as a member of the
Committee on 8 August 2018). Mr. Eddie Hurip resigned as a
member of the Committee on 8 August 2018.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

During the reporting period, the Nomination Committee held
two meetings to review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board, to assess the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, and to consider the
qualifications of the retiring Directors standing for election at
the annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee
considered that an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.
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Board Diversity

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the Board Diversity
Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors including but not
limited to, gender, age, culture, skills, experience, background
and other qualities. The ultimate selection decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
shall bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee monitors,
from time to time, the implementation of the policy, and
reviews, as appropriate, the policy to ensure the effectiveness
of the policy.

Nomination Policy

The Company adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) which sets out, inter alia, the criteria, process and
procedures in nominating and selecting candidates to be
appointed or re-appointed as Directors. In the nomination and
selection of new Directors, the Nomination Committee
assesses the key attributes that an incoming Director should
have, based on attributes of the existing Board and the needs
of the Board. The nomination criteria include, inter alia,
diversity, business experience, board expertise, skills, character,
integrity, independency and competence. In the nomination
process, each candidate shall be considered upon evaluation
against the criteria. According to the nomination procedure,
multiple channels will be used for identifying suitable Director
candidates, including referral from Directors, shareholders,
management, advisors of the Company and external executive
search firms. Upon compilation and interview of the list of
candidates, the potential candidates will be recommended to
the Nomination Committee and the Board for consideration
and decision.

If the candidate is nominated by the Shareholders, the
nomination and appointment shall follow the procedures (if
any) set out in the Company’s articles of association, the
Listing Rules and the Nomination Policy.

The Nomination Policy shall also be governed by other
additional and relevant requirements under the Company’s
articles of association and the Listing Rules applicable to the
nomination, appointment, election and re-election of
Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Code of
Conduct and the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF EERZEEENEZHESETHE
DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE

MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and HZE2018FE12A3MAINEFERTZARNTESES
Board Committee meetings and the general meeting of the LEELZEeeZNREAS® FREEHFRHES
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2018 is Rk :

set out in the table below:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE, EERE
Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
£ Ezg REZEE FHzES ERZEE RRBEEAE
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Blewrs 8/8* 22 N/A N/A 171+
(Chairman) (L) NE TER
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang B/higsE A 8/8 N/A 20 N/A 171
TEA TEA
Mr. Xu Fanghua BEELE 8/8 N/A N/A N/A 171
NEA TiEA TEHR
Mr. Xu Jiaming BERBLE 8/8 212 N/A 212 171
TEf
Mr. Luk Chi Shing BEERk k& 8/8 N/A 212 22+ 171
NiEA
Mr. Eddie Hurip REREE 5/5 112 102¢ N 1
(resigned on 8 August 2018) (201848 A 8 HEHT)
Mr. Wu Zhongxian RREEE 5/5 N/A N/A N /A
(appointed on 8 August 2018) (201848 A8 HEZ(T) TEHA TiEF EA
* Chairman *ER
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held BREHMNESEERIN EENREFANENTES
meetings with the independent non-executive Directors RIE B IFMITESRITEE

without the presence of executive Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
RESPECT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018. The Directors have
ensured that the financial statements of the Group are
prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the Group’s state
of affairs, the results and cash flow for the year, and on a
going concern basis in accordance with the statutory
requirements and applicable accounting and financial
reporting standards.

The Directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s
financial statements and aim to present a clear, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance and
position through all its publications and communications to
the public. They are also aware of the requirements under the
applicable rules and regulations about timely disclosure of
inside information.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 68 to 75.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit services and non-audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$3.8 million
and HK$0.05 million respectively.
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An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of ANRARGREE2018F 12 A31 B L FE 2 BEZRE
the Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, in respect MIEBZ RIS M AR BIINEZERNEL) o« B =R
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended @I ZEH o=y T -

31 December 2018 is set out below:

Fees Paid/Payable

e ERER
Service Category HK$ (million)
PR % % B Br(E®)
Audit Services EIZRB 3.8
Non-audit Services EEZIRTS
— Agreed-upon procedures — EEREF 0.05
3.85
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL [\ B 3 R ) BR BE 1
CONTROLS
The Board is responsible for risk management and internal EZeEEAKBENEREERANIBEZERG LR
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its TR WA T AR S E AR LR
effectiveness. Procedures have been designed for safeguarding TERANEE  BREERTFERELSEARME A E
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, the BB TS BRI Bk B - W RRRETIE A A
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of B~ FREBI KR
reliable financial information for internal use or for
publications and the compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.
Principles and guidelines of our risk management framework ARAFRBEEVREBEEERNRIKRIES - NiER
are set for an effective and adequate approach to be applied EHARFOHNFAEARAEBEEHE XK LS
across the Group to manage the risks associated with its BHEENER - ZIEXSESBE—ELREMIEZEM
business and operations. This framework is designed to BAEEMNERKRER Mo AKE ] H L ZE
enhance risk management of the Group through an integrated EREFEYMMEEANRR -

framework so that all material risks faced by the Group are
identified and appropriately managed.
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Each department is responsible for identifying, assessing and
managing risks within its business, ensuring that appropriate
internal control for effective risk management are
implemented. The management is responsible for overseeing
the risk management and internal control activities of the
Group. The internal audit department of the Group is
responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of the Group's
policies and procedures in relation to risk management and
internal control systems and submitting their reports of their
findings to the Board at the meetings. The Audit Committee
provides independent review on effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and
gives their recommendation to the Board. The Board is
responsible for reviewing the internal audit report and
approving policies and procedures designed by the
management.

The Group also engaged an external consultant specialising in
identifying and evaluation of significant risk of our business
and operation. The external consultant does not have any
connection with the Group and the Board believes that their
involvement could enhance the objectivity and transparency of
evaluation process. In conjunction with our staff and senior
management, the external consultant conducts an annual
assessment on risk management and internal control systems
of the Group together with suggestion and solutions and
submit to the Board for their consideration.

During the year under review, the management assisted the
Board in the implementation of the Group’s policies and
procedures within the Board’s delegation by identifying and
assessing the risks faced, and in the design, operation and
monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control
such risks. The Board conducted reviews and discussed with
the management on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems as required by code
provision C.2 of the CG Code, covering adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions and any resolutions for
material internal control defects.

The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Audit
Committee and the executive Directors, and will be further
reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the Board.
These systems were considered effective and adequate.
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REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

The Group have established a system to ensure the
management and the relevant personnel have sufficient up-to-
date knowledge of relevant laws and regulations. Under such
system, the Directors and members of the management in
charge of the Group's construction projects shall be informed
of the changes to the laws, regulations and government
policies applicable to the Group’s business and the implications
thereof by email and written notice as soon as practicable
and, where the Directors consider necessary, a briefing on
such changes to the executive Directors and members of the
management in charge of the Group’s construction projects
(the “Relevant Personnel”) shall be conducted. Moreover, the
Group will organise seminars to be attended by the Relevant
Personnel semi-annually on a compulsory basis for each of the
two full financial years after Listing disregard whether there
will be any changes to the relevant PRC laws and regulations.
Thereafter, training session would be held when there is a
change or update to the relevant PRC laws and regulations.

In addition, the Company had engaged an external PRC legal
adviser to, among others, monitor the Group’s compliance
with the PRC laws and regulations applicable to its business
operation.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and Champ Origin Limited (the
“Controlling Shareholders”), being the controlling
shareholders (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the
Company, gave a non-competition undertaking in favour of
the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”). Each of
the Controlling Shareholders has undertaken under the Non-
Competition Undertaking that he or it shall provide to the
Company and the Directors from time to time (including the
independent non-executive Directors) with all information
necessary for the annual review by the independent non-
executive Directors with regard to compliance of the terms of
the Non-Competition Undertaking by the Controlling
Shareholders and the enforcement of the Non-Competition
Undertaking.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed
compliance with the terms of the Non-competition
Undertaking and that during the year under review, there was
no matter which required to be deliberated by the Board in
relation to the compliance and enforcement of the Non-
competition Undertaking. The Board including all the
independent non-executive Directors is of the view that such
controlling shareholders have been in compliance with the
Non-competition Undertaking in favour of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda, and the Board
and Board committee papers being provided to the Directors
and the relevant Board committee members respectively in a
timely manner before the meetings.

The company secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of
all the Board and Board committee meetings. The Board and
the Board committee minutes are available for inspection by
the Directors and the relevant Board committee members.

Ms. Foo Man Yee Carina of CS Legend Corporate Services
Limited, an external service provider, has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company, since April 2017.

The primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang, the Chairman of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. Foo has
attended relevant professional training to update her skills and
knowledge. She met the training requirement set out in Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy with the objective
of achieving right balance of the amount of dividend and the
amount of profits retained in the business for various
purposes. In proposing any dividend payout, the Company
would consider, inter alia, the following factors: (i) the
Company and the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance; (ii) general business conditions and strategies;
(iii) liquidity position and future commitment of the Group; (iv)
the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans; (v) shareholders’ interests; (vi) general
economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact
on the business or financial performance and position of the
Company; and (vii) any other factors that the Board may
consider relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions

under the applicable laws and the Company’s articles of
association.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings
will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each shareholder meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General
Meeting by Shareholders and Putting
Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the
Directors on requisition of one or more shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Directors or the Secretary by mail to Unit
6105, 61/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Furthermore, shareholders may propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company at a general meeting, details of
which are available on the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders

may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Corporate Governance Report
TEERERE

RERER

RREBIRRER REN - AT HHSERERE
H(BEERENEE)RBRRASR2ZBIDRER -
RERE LIREZMBERBERBRE EHRAETT
BERR BRERAZERBEREBRR KNS HE
BREARRR RBE A PAAE £ TI# -

BRRAFKRRBFIASGRABRRASE L
RHBER

ERERXREXRBEBETNLPRARRZERA(BE
RIRRRE E2ERER) T2 — 2 —BFHUAERRK
ER - EFEBHRRERNRE - BEERENEE
FRAAESH A WERL BT AFTEER
KEFRFEHIRFNL6TEGINE  BXREZLH
BERENREAREB@ERMIATANEE - B
AEESRNREXBEEREMERARIT - HEHA
RBREFZT—HR - EFKEERAEEE BB
REFKATAUHERBARNBEBREBEARE BE
EREAAMBERERKALIMEEMEAREERS
HZAD R FLARIE -

BN RETRBEAG LIRE—BALTLEARD
REE - BEFHEAIARDAMEN -
HEESFLENR
RAEERELATSATNS  RRTKEEEH

BARERRE - ARBIBETGRIEDBENERN
=i -

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF#f 47




Corporate Governance Report

EER®RE

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

BRAEBAT AKX LM ERMERHER

Address:  Unit 6105, 61/F, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

Ak BEEFREFIOHRFIRFL611E6105F

Fax: (852) 3691 8124

g5 -

Email: hkadmin@chinasaite.com.hk
B

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above
address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and the investment
community, and in particular, through the Company’s financial
reports (interim and annual reports), annual general meetings
and other general meetings. At the annual general meeting,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to
meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
change to its articles of association. An up-to-date version of
the Company’s articles of association is also available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an integrated steel structure and prefabricated
construction solution service provider. Our integrated
construction solution services are customised to meet the
technical specifications and requirements of different projects,
and span from fabrication and assembly of steel structure
parts and prefabricated construction materials at our
workshops to the installation of these materials onsite, based
on the secondary design (as to our steel structure projects)
provided by us or our customers.

The Group's turnover is mainly derived from business activities
in the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s income for the year is
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at
31 December 2018 are set out in note 46 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income on page 76 of this
report.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs at
31 December 2018 is set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position on pages 77 and 78 of this report.

The Board does not recommend final dividend payment for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year is
provided on pages 9 to 23 in the Management Discussion and
Analysis of this annual report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Company are
described in note 41 of the consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to implementing
policies and measures in our daily business operations to foster
reduction of the Group’s environmental impact such as (i)
telephone conferencing meetings among Hong Kong
headquarter and PRC subsidiaries to save business travel; and
(i) use of recycled papers and office light-out measures after
office hours etc.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

During the year under review, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

The Group's likely future development in the Company’s

business is discussed on pages 21 to 23 in the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this annual report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements, are summarised on page 200 of this
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of properties of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BONDS ISSUED
Issue of Bonds on 31 January 2018

On 31 January 2018, the Company entered into a note
purchase agreement (“Note Purchase Agreement”) with
several institutional investors pursuant to which the Company
issued US$32 million 10.5% bonds due 2019 (the “Bond”) to
certain institutional investors, with net proceeds of
US$31,500,000 which would be used to finance the
expansion of the existing business of the Group.

Further details on the principal terms and conditions of the
Bond were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
31 January 2018.

Medium Term Bond Programme

The Company has established a medium term bond
programme (the “Programme”) under which the aggregate
principal amount of bonds issued by the Company and
outstanding at any one time shall have provided the Company
with aggregate net proceeds not exceeding HK$516 million.

In November and December 2018, the Company issued three
corporate bonds each with principal amount of HK$10 million
due 2035 to certain professional investors with aggregate net
proceeds of HK$3.9 million which would be used for general
working capital and general corporate purposes.

Further details on the Programme and the bonds issued
thereunder were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 14 November 2018, 23 November 2018 and 30
November 2018.

Details of the corporate bonds issued during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 32 in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

Acting as guarantor for the Note Purchase
Agreement with several institutional
investors

In order to provide security for the obligations of the Company
under the Note Purchase Agreement and the Bond, certain
subsidiaries of the Company, Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (being the
chairman, executive director and a controlling shareholder of
the Company) and several companies which Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang was interested in entered into deeds of guarantee in
favour of the investors, as guarantors. Under the Note
Purchase Agreement and the Bond, Mr. Jiang Jiangiang has to
beneficially hold, directly or indirectly, at least 35% of the
total voting power of the Company throughout the term of
the Bond. The Note Purchase Agreement and the Bond
impose, among others, a specific performance obligation on a
controlling shareholder of the Company, a breach of such
obligation will cause a default therein.

Further details regarding the Bond and the Note Purchase
Agreement were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 January 2018.

Subordination of subrogation rights to the
bonds issued under the Programme

In connection with the Programme, the events of default
under the instrument for the bonds issued thereunder, among
others, include failure by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang, being the
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of his
associates (including but not limited to companies directly or
indirectly owned or controlled by him) to subordinate to the
bonds issued under the Programme any subrogation rights
they may have against the Company or its subsidiaries in
respect of any debts of the Company or its subsidiaries they
have paid. As such, the bonds issued under the Programme
impose, among others, a specific performance obligation on
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang as the controlling shareholder of the
Company, a breach of such obligation will cause a default
thereunder.

Further details on the Programme and the bonds issued
thereunder were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 14 November 2018, 23 November 2018 and 30
November 2018.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed below in this
report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the financial year or subsisted at the end of
the financial year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, there
was sufficient public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 79 of this report. Details of distributable reserves of
the Company are set out in note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FEEFRHERD

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year AREFBFERPEPNHEEEEEAFEHERE MR
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are SERH AN T :
as follows:

Percentage of the
total purchases/
sales accounted for

IHBREE
SHE TN L f
Purchases R
— the largest supplier — ERAHER 50%
— five largest suppliers combined — A ARHEREET 91%
Sales HERR
— the largest customer —EBAEP 10%
— five largest customers combined — RAREP&E 30%
None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder ARRES HEFHB ANTARREEESAN
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors M BEBARRNTDBEITRAS% LA L) BHERAREE
owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) L ARHERIEPPHEEER
had an interest in the five largest suppliers or customers of the
Group noted above.
At no time during the year, none of the Directors, their close RERNIMER T35 EBETHEANBR(EE
associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the BETA BEAANRREBITIRAS% N ) BER
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share NHENEPRHERTR RS R -
capital) had any interest in the customers or suppliers disclosed
above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Jiangiang (Chairman)
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Fanghua

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xu Jiaming

Mr. Luk Chi Shing

Mr. Wu Zhongxian (appointed on 8 August 2018)
Mr. Eddie Hurip (resigned on 8 August 2018)

In accordance with article 105(A) of the articles of association,
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and Mr. Shao Xiaogiang shall retire by
rotation at the annual general meeting. In addition, pursuant
to article 109 of the Company'’s articles of association, Mr. Wu
Zhongxian, appointed by the Board on 8 August 2018, will
hold office until the next following general meeting and will
be eligible for re-election at the meeting. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. As at the
date of this report, the Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 December, 2018, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 43 under the
heading “Related Party Disclosures” to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the ultimate holding company
of the Company, any of the Company’s subsidiaries or any
subsidiaries of such ultimate holding company was a party and
in which a Director or any entity connected with a Director (as
defined in the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong) had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER’S
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance had been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
Code"), are set out below:

Long position in the shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding as at

Number of 31 December
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held 2018* Note(s)
R 2018 F
12A31H
R A B R
EEHE ERME FrisRA &R Bo et
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Beneficial owner 42,202,000 (L) 1.81%
BERiLE EmEEA
Interest of controlled Corporations 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76% 2&3
YR AE R
Notes: ffeE -
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such shares. 1. FH L RRZALTRBERDZ A -
2. These shares are held by Keen Luck Group Limited (“Keen Luck”), 2. ZERMARWERARAT (& DEE r MEKA

which is 100% owned by Champ Origin Limited (“Champ Origin”).

3. Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and 49%
by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

4. As at 31 December 2018, the total issued capital of the Company is
2,330,747,935 shares.

BRAERRAR(ER]) A& HER -

3. TRAEER T ERBREFRED RIS 51% K 49% 1

3¢
m °

4. M2018F 12 A31H ARAMBETRABLER
2,330,747,935 f%f5 5 °
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as was known to the
Directors, the following persons, other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which were required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

B EXFRIREES - N2018F12A31H &R
RRREBITHABER AR &) 5k H ] 455
E(ExREFRIBEKROIEXVER) 2% - 8RR
D REHFFHRBREER RIS GEHIE 352 FRTEAR
ARIBAFEEZBREAMALE  REZESTR]
HMEABNARBRBRTZERTAR -

RE{ AL RS RIEE

M2018F12A31H - BEFMH REFRLRARQ
AIEETHABIN  THATHEEREZSKAE
1&BIEE 336 IRBRR AR R BT EREAM 2 ARAF]
f& 10 RABRBARR (D 7 i m A B

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held’ 2018° Note(s)
M 2018 F
12A31H
R4 B #E
BREREE HE EREME FrisRBEE " Elal=Ad et
Keen Luck Group Limited Beneficial owner 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76
(“Keen Luck") EmEA A
EnsEBRAE ([&H])
Champ Origin Limited Interest of a controlled Corporation ~ 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76 2
(“Champ Origin”) RiEHEE R
RARAE ([ER])
Ms. Zhou Xiaoying Interest of spouse 1,062,202,000 (L) 45.57 4
B/t Be B
Mr. Jiang Yixuan Interest of a controlled corporation 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76 2&3

R R EEES
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding at

Number of 31 December
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held' 2018° Note(s)
2018 F
12H31H
A8 4 AR #E
BRERBRE R EREME FrislRmEE " Btk M
China Huarong International  Person having a security interest 1,020,000,000 (L) 43.76 7
Holdings Limited in shares
PREERBEEIERERAR RROEBEEEAESHAL
Five Seasons XIV Limited Beneficial owner 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 5&6
(“Five Seasons XIV") BEnBEAA
Five Seasons XIV Limited
(TFive Seasons XIV )
Five Seasons XVII Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 5&6
("Five Seasons XVII") SIS AE s
Five Seasons XVII Limited
([Five Seasons XVII 1)
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 5&6
(“Fullshare”) SR AE s
BERERERAT ([EE])
Mr. Ji Changqun Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 5&6
TEREAE SRR EE S
Magnolia Wealth Interest of a controlled corporation 203,800,000 (L) 8.74 6
International Limited SIS A B S
("Magnolia”)

Magnolia Wealth
International Limited
(I'Magnolia J)

Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under
Part XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. These shares are held by Keen Luck, which is 100% owned by
Champ Origin.

3. Champ Origin is owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and 49%
by Mr. Jiang Yixuan.

4. Ms. Zhou Xiaoying is the spouse of Mr. Jiang Jiangiang.

1. FEIL RRZATREEARG 2 TR I(EERFHFR
BREIEBIE XV ER) ©

2. ZERDBRERFE M ARBEIRES 28R -

3. TR B 258 ST RS R S D B A 51% F49%

Bt @

4. ENRZ T AR E 2B -
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Five Seasons XVII, Fullshare, Mr. Ji Changqun and Magnolia are
deemed to be interested in the 203,800,000 shares of the
Company, as Mr. Ji Changqun holds the entire equity interest in
Magnolia, which in turn holds 46.58% equity interest in Fullshare.

Fullshare holds the entire issued share capital of Five Seasons XVII
Limited, and Five Seasons XVII Limited holds entire the issued share
capital of Five Seasons XIV, the beneficial owner of the Company.

1,020,000,000 shares are legally and beneficially owned by Keen
Luck. Keen Luck is 100% owned by Champ Origin. Champ Origin is
owned as to 51% by Mr. Jiang Jiangiang and 49% by Mr. Jiang
Yixuan. On 26 January, 2017, Keen Luck executed the relevant
documentation to create a charge (“Share Charge”) over
1,020,000,000 Shares in favour of China Huarong International
Holdings Limited (“China Huarong”) as chargee to provide loan to
Keen Luck. China Huarong was owned by Huarong Real Estate Co.,
Ltd as to 88.10%. Accordingly, China Huarong is deemed to be
interested in 1,020,000,000 shares of the Company.

Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the shareholders of the
Company are required to file disclosure of interests forms (the “DI
Forms”) when certain criteria are fulfilled and the full details of the
requirements are available on the Stock Exchange’s official website.
When a shareholder’s shareholdings in the Company changes, it is
not necessary to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless
certain criteria are fulfilled. Therefore, substantial shareholders’
latest shareholdings in the Company may be different to the
shareholdings filed with the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
above statements of substantial shareholders’ interests are prepared
based on the information in the relevant DI Forms received by the
Company as of 31 December 2018. The Company may not have
sufficient information on the breakdown of the relevant interests
and cannot verify the accuracy of information on the DI Forms.

As at 31 December 2018, the total issued capital of the Company is
2,330,747,935 shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as
at 31 December 2018, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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5. Five Seasons XVII + 2 5% « 2= 2 B 5t 4 & Magnolia ##18 /£
FAZRA B #) 203,800,000 BR AR 17 AR B #E %S + 1t Th R PO 2R
& B¥ 5T 4 58 Magnolia & BB A& # - 1 Magnolia #78 € 2%
46.58% 7 [ fEE ©

6. 9 2% 4% 7 Five Seasons XVII Limited 2 BF 2 B /T AN -

Five Seasons XVII Limited ¥ & 7~ 2 @ & 7 # A AFive
Seasons XIV 2 &2 BT -

7. 1,020,000,000 (R D BRI A E R Eamis B » Mz Al
HERER 2R - ©RABERAERBRELE
DRIHEB51% KA49% Eam o 201761 A26H » Eif
FUMBAXHNEY —BERZ(RORBE]) - PR
1,020,000,000 B A& 15 + AR E R F &I - PEIZERLH

BERERAR((HEHEER]) AP AHEREXER

FEARIER 88.10% HIAER o i B EREIERAR

&]#91,020,000,000 A& A% 1 A = o

8. RIEES RS EHE3361E - WHFEETHEE A2
AIRREZRBEEREERE((HEERRE]) 888
ERERI BRI ATE @ LRI AR o EREAT
BARARRREEEZEE  RIEFEETRYE  TAE
BEMARNR KRR - Bt TERFEAARAZ &K
FRBRELEIRAARRTRBRAAREESE - FilE
TRERDZRMIERAREE2018F 12 A31 HIR
BB R RS RIEANERFIRE - NRARIAME
AEERBANTEDER  BEAXERBERSERIEE
B2 AR -

9. M2018F12A31H ARRMBHTHRABLEA
2,330,747,935 AR5 ©

BEXHMEEEIN  BEERARFEIZITHAER
F&n - 72018 12831 H @ BIEEMALTRAER
mZ B RAERER D R EERERE S KRB EIE
336 (F/RRLER 2 TR R ©



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 11 October 2013 (“Adoption Date"”), for
the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to selected
eligible participants for their contribution to the Group. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for ten years from the Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
following:

1. any employee (whether full time or part time) of the
Group or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any
member of the Group holds any shareholding (including
any executive director but excluding any non-executive
director of the Group or any Invested Entity);

2. any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

3. any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

4. any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

5. any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

6. any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

7. any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to
any area of business or business development of the
Group or any Invested Entity; and

8. any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliances or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.
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Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
("Shares”) in issue on the date of adoption provided that the
Company may seek approval from Shareholders to refresh
such limit. Moreover, the maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme (and any other schemes of the Company) shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time
to time.

As at the date of this report, a total of 203,800,000 Shares
(representing approximately 7.87% of the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 28 March 2019) are available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of the
options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, where
any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their
respective close associates, would result in the Shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in excess of 0.1% of the Shares
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5
million, in a 12-month period up to and including the date of
grant, such grant of share options are subject to Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period for the share options granted is determined by the
Board, which period may commence from the date of
acceptance of the offer for the grant of share options but shall
end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the
grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination under the Share Option Scheme.
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The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of:

the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
the offer of the grant, which must be a business day;

ii. the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and

iii. the nominal value of the Shares.

As at the year ended 31 December, 2018, no share option has
been granted by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had no related party
transactions during the year.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections headed “Share
Option Scheme” and “Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its subsidiaries, its ultimate holding
company, or any subsidiaries of its ultimate holding company
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the management shareholders of the
Company and their respective close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group during the
year and up to the date of this report.

Controlling Shareholders have given non-competition
undertaking in favour of the Company. Please refer to page
45 of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, every
Director shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her
duty or supposed duty in his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. In addition, the Company has arranged appropriate
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

64 China Saite Group Company Limited F1 Bl Z45 £ E B[R A 7

BF R

FARBEAREAY  EFHARAEEERRE
EEEEANETHEA(ERR EHAA) BHER
AR 59 AN 5% 18] 5 75 3 X 35 P BE 2 A 3t T B AN 5k [
BREMEMNEEROES T EA Tz -

PERREEARNRA ABZ AR THF AL - 5
2 AHREFL5E -

BrRBEERE

RARZABERMAFERSEPLEFBA
REIBRLPIARERRRE2HET RN 2ELRE
BHERE -

EEEY

AEEAL BT IRFEERNEBARARARELZE
MREMEALY ZEREERLITREL

RS AT B TRE R RE IR 3L

REARNANABEIZAN SREFTEAELE
BETEEABRERRERENEMEREEMIEL -
FAESERNEMITAMAERBARIN—IIHF
B RE - BK BERERFEX - BESMU
RRREEFLNBELEREHUFIE < thsh - K
RACRAEREZLSRBELHEER ER



DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations were made by the Group
during the year (2017: Nil).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended and
decided by the Remuneration Committee and the Board
respectively, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” of this report and note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

A review of the number of employees and the related staff
costs is provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis
on page 20 of this report. The Group ensures that the pay
levels of its employees are competitive and in line with the
market trend and its employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework of
the Group's salary and bonus system.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Upon specific enquiry by the Company and following
confirmations from Directors, save as otherwise set out in this
report, there is no change in the information of the Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules since the Company’s last published interim
report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Luk Chi Shing,
Mr. Xu Jiaming, Mr. Wu Zhongxian (appointed as a member
of the Committee on 8 August 2018). The Audit Committee
has reviewed and discussed with the management and the
external auditor financial reporting matters including the
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2018. The
annual results have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”), the independent auditor of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B %R

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been AEENGEEVBERRECHEDEX - 5 ERE
audited by Deloitte. A resolution to re-appoint the retiring REEFAE LIRERFZE BB EEIAZEE
independent auditor, Deloitte, will be proposed at the =g o

forthcoming annual general meeting.

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company for AT AN B = FH ST g o
the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board REXEEFS

Jiang Jiangiang FE

Chairman HEne

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019 A& 2019F3 A28H
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBENRE

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA SAITE GROUP COMPANY
LIMITED
FEESRERRAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Saite Group Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 76 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREREE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 % B R

BEREXEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERSNEERREREE

Recognition of revenue and gross profits from construction contracts

BREZESRNKREREF

We identified recognition of revenue and gross profit from
construction contracts as a key audit matter as they are
significant to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole and significant management’s estimations and
judgments are involved in the determination of the total
outcome of construction contracts and the percentage of
completion.
EEERREARNKELRENERREREZEE  RE
REBGEVHERRERNS VEEX  BEBENRNEERE
FERMBERBBELTIE DR RE AT R AL

The Group recognised revenue of RMB1,501 million and
gross profit of RMB354 million from construction contracts
for the year ended 31 December 2018 as shown in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
EEERGRBRREREMEMKRAERNEREE 2018512
ABMBEFENRECRBAREMNDIASARK
1,501,000,000 7T }2 A R # 354,000,000 7T, ©

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group determines whether construction contracts are
onerous contracts based on the latest available budgets of
those construction contracts with reference to the overall
contracts consideration of each construction contract which
requires management’s best estimates and judgements.
Because of the nature of the construction industry, the
management regularly reviews the progress of the contracts
and the estimated construction revenue and construction
costs.

M a M mAMTAmEE - SEEERBEREESRD
B AERET2EXREESRANEBERARBAEZER
FERARABREBEEMER  ZERAEEEETREM R
FlE - AREEITENMEEA  BEEEFTEHRIERT
REHEE DA R (St R SR W el R R SRR -

Our procedures in relation to recognition of revenue
included:
EEYPRHERWRNIZFBIE

3 Assessing the accuracy of the forecasted revenue by
agreeing to the contract sum as set out in the
construction contracts on a sample basis;

R AT A R R T A RBERESF
Fr#EE RS %R ;

3 Understanding the basis of estimation of the budgets
by discussing with the project managers who are
responsible for the budgeting of projects, and
evaluating the reasonableness of their estimated profit
margins by taking into account the profit margins of
similar projects on a sample basis;

MR A RENEE . A SEBFRE NI
BB awmIAE AE - WA RALIER &5 X
& AHMEEMEFDET KNS IR

3 Evaluating the accuracy of value of work transferred to
customers to date by confirming the percentage of
completion with the respective projects’ surveyors of
the customers, and by conducting site visits and
discussing with the operational management to
observe the on-site progress status of the projects on
a sample basis; and

o WEFHEESRIAEFPEBN TREENERE
FARMAZFHZBEE BEERAT LA D L M
TEMED  LwmEFERE  UWBRERRGE
IER

Evaluating the reasonableness of revenue and gross
profit recognised to date by using the percentage of
completion confirmed by the projects surveyor to
recalculate the amounts.

. KABERERERAZ T IANLENFESRE -
FHEE SR 2 W R ENHE RN -

A
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREREE

BEREXEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERSNEERREREE

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

ERESFEREREEZRE

We identified the impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets as a key audit matter due to the significance
of trade receivables and contract assets to the Group’s
consolidated financial position and the involvement of
subjective judgement and management estimates in
evaluating the expected credit losses (“ECL") of the Group's
trade receivables and contract assets at the end of the
reporting period.

B BEEEGFEUBRAXREREZIREARAEREERN
BEE2URNFE EERERREHRZERESHERE
REENEHREEBR(FEHEEBED M RN EEH
&R EREMLE  RSEEKESFIEREREEZRE
B RAHEREREE -

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's net trade receivables
and contract assets amounting to approximately RMB1,266
million and RMB542 million, which represented
approximately 38% and 16% of total assets of the Group
and out of these trade receivables of approximately
RMB1,145 million were past due.

R2018512A31H - EXBEZRERKESFTEFERER
BELNR/ARE1,266,000,0007T & A R#542,000,0007T -
EAREEEEERZ8% R 16% * MZZEWE SHIBHA
AR¥1,145,000,000 2 81 5 ©

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, in the current year, the Group adopted Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial Instruments”
(HKFRS 9) and recognised an additional impairment of
RMB84 million and RMB27 million on trade receivables and
contract assets, respectively, as at 1 January 2018 in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.
MINARE IS MR 2 TR - RAEE - ERERA
BB MELRE N [T A | (FBMBRELDSE
9%%) » WM201845 1 A1 BIRIEBEBMBHREERIZFE IR
ZBERX D RISt E 5 I8 kG R & EEREINRE
AR ¥ 84,000,000t & AR % 27,000,000 7T °
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Our procedures in relation to impairment of trade receivables
and contract assets included:

EESREREZTIARAREERENERF B

o Understanding key controls on how the management
estimates the loss allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets;

o BEREEEEMTRKRESIRIARAREEEER
R Y BE SR P I FE e

o Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made by
the Group as at 1 January 2018 on initial adoption of

HKFRS 9;
. Bl EEEN2018F1 A1 HE X ERAEBHE®R

HEAFE ORRAE L IR EE B AR 2 L

o Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 1
January 2018 and 31 December 2018, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis
with the relevant contracts, invoices and other
supporting documents;

e  FHRBKHM(EIEN20184F1A1H8 K2018F12 A
31 BRI E 5 FIARE D7) F 1S (18 B B8RS
BF -~ BERRHM R ETHE - I TR
[BRRGIE B HBERENER 2 TRIE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HRESRER

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 % B R

BEREXEE )

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEETERSNAEERREERSEE

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

FEWESREREREEZME (H)

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets based on provision matrix through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
internal credit ratings, past due status and repayment history
of respective trade receivables and contract assets. Estimated
loss rates are based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information.

MINARE MmN APMKRE - EEEEEERERE
WESREREREES B2 NBEETR - SRR
B ERE - FREFRALUEEIRENTRERS AERIE
FRREEERAAENESFRERERAEEZ 2 HEHEER
BB - Lt BEEDERBEEARRFRRO AT ERESL
BRAOXRWRBAE ML ERMEL R

As disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount of
RMB12 million and RMB6 million of impairment of trade
receivables and contract assets, respectively, for the year and
the Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables and contract
assets as at 31 December 2018 amounted to approximately
RMB96 million and RMB48 miillion.
BMINGRE M HRERNFIOMEE - EEEHBIERFAE
WE SRIEREREERMEARE 12,000,000 7T %k ARE
6,000,0007T *+ B BEER2018F 12 A31 BWEWES
HIEREREESBERESEIELN /AR 96,000,000
T K AR 48,000,000 7T ©

Challenging management’s basis and judgement in
determining credit loss allowance on trade receivables
and contract assets as at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018, including the reasonableness of
management’s grouping of trade debtors into
different categories in the provision matrix, and the
basis of estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix (with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information); and
BEHEEREER20184F1A1H k2018512 A31H
EETRWESFEREAEEGEBERERATEK
BHmELERHE  BEEEEBBESIBEBAZSE
BEERETRENNSEY  ARERREERRE
BERRAFBEEREE(K2ERELENERATEE
BR) Rk

Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables and contract assets in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
aHhAr e B MAM T2 EHERE SFHIERER
BERET AR -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

72 China Saite Group Company Limited /B &% £ E B[R A 7]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 % B R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

74
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Chiu Mei Hing.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meBEakHEMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 FF 2017
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt e ARET T ARBT T

Revenue Wz 5 1,501,311 1,411,745
Cost of sales SHER A (1,147,488) (1,051,837)
Gross profit EH 353,823 359,908
Other income HMA 7a 12,890 9,985
Other gains and losses Eofth 5 % B 18 7b (24,708) 7,579
Impairment losses RIEBE 9 (28,519) (14,978)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE A R (4,027) (4,093)
Administrative expenses THRFAX (56,544) (37,233)
Finance costs B 7% X AR 8 (36,744) (7,356)
Share of profit of a joint venture DiEE B FERN 332 409
Share of loss of associates D& N EE1E (1,113) =
Profit before tax BRI Z R 215,390 314,221
Income tax expense FiiSfiFA > 10 (76,378) (87,021)
Profit for the year FREF 11 139,012 227,200
Other comprehensive expense H2mEESZ
Item that will not be reclassified to TEEF R EmoHE -

profit or loss:
Fair value loss on investments in FHREMEEREZEATE

equity instruments at fair value PRz TARER

through other comprehensive income A F(&EEE (29,698) =
Total comprehensive income for the year 4= A2 E U A 4258 109,314 227,200
Earnings per share SRR AT 15

Basic (RMB cents) EXR(ANRED) 5.96 9.77
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B IR R 3R

At 31 December 2018 20184 12 A31H

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
BsE AR¥T AREET T
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 16 261,236 220,127
Prepaid lease payments T HEERE 17 56,422 57,032
Interest in a joint venture RE B EMEL 18 154,243 153,911
Interests in associates REEE N B RRER 19 7,637 -
Available-for-sale investments At HERE 20 - 53,928
Equity instruments at fair value through & i@ E fih 2 E U 12 A FE
other comprehensive income FIER e T H 21 22,230 -
Deferred tax asset IRIEFIIEE E 22 40,733 -
542,501 484,998
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 10,642 -
Prepaid lease payments T HEERE 17 1,329 1,312
Amounts due from customers for EUEEA R IEHRAE
contract work 24 - 4,466
Trade receivables [EWE 5 RIA 25 1,265,749 1,705,437
Contract assets ABRIEE 26 542,105 -
Other receivables, deposits B EIE - e Kk
and prepayments TR FRIE 27 94,061 104,156
Bank balances and cash RITER KRS 28 856,924 757,321
2,770,810 2,572,692
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to customers for ENEREARIERAE
contract work 24 - 4,424
Trade payables FENE 53R 29 91,546 68,753
Deposit received, other payables Biize - HMEMNRER
and accruals FEETE 30 104,584 97,252
Amounts due to associates FEST Bt 4 N B FRIE 31 3,194 -
Corporate bonds-due within one year R &1&ES — N —F RN 2| Ef 32 196,069 19,199
Short-term borrowings MHAE 33 4,500 46,150
Provisions B 34 - 1,200
Tax liabilities HmEaE 26,668 32,588
426,561 269,566
Net current assets REEE TR 2,344,249 2,303,126
Total assets less current liabilities REERARBEE 2,886,750 2,788,124

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF 3} 77




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE MBI R

At 31 December 2018 722018412 A31 H

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
NOTES RMB’'000 RMB’000
B EE ARBTT ARETT
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFHTEE & 22 92,116 92,116
Corporate bonds — due after one year R RI&EH — R —F£5H 32 162,163 87,435
254,279 179,551
2,632,471 2,608,573
Capital and reserves ER #E
Share capital A& 35 187,410 187,410
Share premium and reserves &1 5 1B J& (e s 2,445,061 2,421,163
2,632,471 2,608,573
The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 199 BIFHEEEZI0EMNGAMBERECHESTe R
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of 201943 A28 AL ERIZRET|ZE - WH THESR
directors on 28 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: x5= .
Jiang Jiangiang Shao Xiaoqiang
&z RN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

Share Share Capital FvToC Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total
2EkE
BRAVE
K& BB EE ERGiE Sl G E EERE REEH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR AR%Tr ARETn ARETR
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)
(Ftza) (Fi&tb) (MizEc)
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 179,527 473,674 66,587 - 170,684 1445177 2,335,649
Profit and total comprehensive ~ £REFIR2ERALE
income for the year - - - - - 227,200 227,200
Issue of new shares (note 35) B {THR(A (MiFE35) 7,883 37,841 - - - - 45724
At 31 December 2017 R2017% 128318 187,410 511,515 66,587 - 170,684 1,672,377 2,608,573
Adjustments (see note 2) FAR(FME2) - - - - - (85,416) (85,416)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) R20185F1 A 1B (FE5) 187,410 511,515 66,587 - 170,684 1,586,961 2,523,157
Profit for the year FRER - - - - - 139,012 139,012
Other comprehensive expense ~ FREM2ERS
for the year - - - (29,698) - - (29,698)
Total comprehensive income ERZAKALE
for the year - - - (29,698) - 139,012 109,314
Transfer to statutory reserves B AATERE - - - - 36,154 (36,154) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018%F12A31R 187,410 511,515 66,587 (29,698) 206,838 1,689,819 2,632,471
Notes: BfaE -
(a) Capital reserve represents (a) BAfEEE
(i) waiver of amount due to former immediate holding (i) AR IER BT B R A Bl 2 FKUE

(b)

(0)

company;

(ii) the difference between the nominal value of shares of China
Saite Group Company Limited (the “Company”) issued as
consideration in exchange for the aggregate of the share
capital of the subsidiary of the Company arising upon the
corporate reorganisation (the “Corporate Reorganisation”)
to rationalise the Group’s structure prior to listing of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”); and

(iii) capital contribution from shareholders under the Corporate
Reorganisation.

The fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising on the
revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI that have been
recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative gain or
loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will continue to be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

The statutory reserves represent the amount transferred from net
profit for the year of a subsidiary established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") (based on the PRC statutory financial
statements of that PRC subsidiary) in accordance with the relevant
PRC laws until the statutory reserves reach 50% of the registered
capital of that subsidiary. The statutory reserves cannot be reduced
except either in setting off the accumulated losses or increasing

capital.

(b)

(i) FPEESEEARAR(AARDETEARE
MENEEERARARBRONEBHARZME
RAR (B AR B AE{AEER
BMETZARERA(AREMADEEZART]
MBARMRALERNEZR &

(i)  BREBRBEARSAELAEE o

FEREMEEREEATEIE(EAEMEERER
RNHESIR] FREEHERE 2 KEER BB
Hih 2 E RSt A FED K2 s TAMEEMN R
B REE - 2 RS REBRBTEN D BEHERAR
AR WHEEREBEMEERaEATFER
RETEE -

EERBIEERTEARKMBE ([HE]) BEERESE
ERRRIL RO A B F AR R (R 3% BB A Rl
FEUAEM MR ERNKE - EEZSRERFBER
B A BEEM B ARE 50% A 1E o 2 FETE RN AT
B HER DA IS R AT B IR SR B RIBRSD
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Profit before tax BRI AT&EF 215,390 314,221
Adjustments for: MATIERELAZ :
Bank interest income RITA WA (4,058) (3,163)
Depreciation of property, Y BENEETE
plant and equipment 16,830 2,798
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR T &SR IE R 8 1,414 =
Reversal of provision for ISR R B
financial guarantees (1,200) (5,000)
Impairment losses on trade receivables, BWESHE  fREER
contract assets and bank balances RITAERR 2R EE 1R 28,519 14,978
Finance costs IR AN 36,744 7,356
Exchange differences on short-term HHERRAGESREN E5E
borrowings and corporate bonds 27,670 (6,927)
Share of profit of a joint venture DMEE B ERF (332) (409)
Share of loss of associates DG E A B EE 1,113 =
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BE RKEEEIBFHE
plant and equipment, net 25 -
Operating cash flows before movements LEECEFINLERERE
in working capital 322,115 323,854
Decrease in amounts due from customers RUERFEE R TEFIERD
for contract work - 18,659
Increase in contract assets SRIAEEEN (174,918) =
Increase in inventories FE N (10,642) -
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 SRIEIE AN (56,134) (308,153)
Decrease in other receivables, HMEWRIE - e BN FIERLD
deposits and prepayments 26,972 24,091
Increase in amounts due to customers BB A R T2 RIEE AN
for contract work - 2,951
Increase (decrease) in trade payables FERTE 5 aEnm Omd) 22,793 (4,399)
Increase in deposits received, BiES - HA N IB R ERT
other payables and accruals & R 8,086 60,750
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS KEEBELENES 138,272 117,753
PRC income tax paid BT RS (89,567) (115,836)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&EBE4ANRS T 48,705 1,917
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Advance to a director —REEMERR (136,732) (14,920)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BBE W - BE L& E (57,964) (49,909)
Investments in associates NN E’J?xﬁ (8,550) =
Prepaid lease payments paid BB HEER (821) (20,500)
Repayment from a director —4 i%ﬁﬁ}}im 119,102
Interest received BIF 2 4,058 3,163
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments & f& 2% & Fr 15 518 2,000 -
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments — U¢Bga] fft £ E&E - (8,204)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES R& EE)FTAMNER S FHE (78,907) (90,370)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (= 2018 F 12 A 31 HILFE

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREET T

FINANCING ACTIVITIES Eﬁﬁiﬁw

Proceeds from issue of corporate bonds BTN EIES S RIE 305,505 107,960
New short-term borrowings raised ESTEHER 4,500 4,500
Advance from an associate i AN 2,994 -
Repayment of corporate bonds BEARES (85,011) -
Repayment of short-term borrowings BEEBEHER (47,505) (33,752)
Finance costs paid EANEUR I (31,955) (6,984)
Repayment to a director EgEExmE - (5,210)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RBtEEBELMNREFE 148,528 66,514
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND IRERBEESZEY M GRL) BEE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 118,326 (21,939)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FPHRERALEEY (HE2)

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR (note 2) 748,824 779,260
Effect of impairment losses on bank balances 877 4584 5 (B /&5 18 5 2 (10,226) =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRASRASEEY

AT END OF THE YEAR IRTTAEER IR 2 TR

represented by bank balances and cash 856,924 757,321
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

1.

82

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability and its
shares (the “Shares”) are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Its immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Keen Luck Group Limited and Champ
Origin Limited, respectively, both are limited companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are investment
holding and construction of steel structure and
prefabricated construction projects.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for
the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK (IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

China Saite Group Company Limited F1 Bl 45 £ E B[R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations. The Group has applied HKFRS 15
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying this standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date
of initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits (or other components of equity, as
appropriate) and comparative information has not been
restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition
provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply
the standard retrospectively only to contracts that are
not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue for its construction
services which arise from contracts with customers.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

P& P 3 5] & 7B B 75 3R o 2 A
Ui%%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ&ﬂ%
(%)

N

ﬂE

BRI 4 Mz F 5] BB M B

E
HEAREETAR(E)

BTt &SN  RAFERAMTEEHH
BEEJREBIAR  HAKEANFEEE
FENFBRR PR, RZEEE MR
KRB RBELEBATE -

BERBREEAE 15 HELERAZ
Yzt

AEEERAFEEXERE BT BkE %8|
FE155% c BAMERE LR FEISHERRE
BT ERE 185 M - BB GETERE N
SUESES FIA R AEERE - ASERBMER
EBYERELERE 1598 - M ERERZEL
ZERFEDREXEABEE(2018F181H)
®R - REXEABHZEMEEERBATIR
BEF (ki EbEfo (EA)) %R B
WEBHLLEER - BE @ RESSUHRE
ERIF 1557 2 BER] - AEBEEREHR
201841 A1 B AR 2 & [RE W FE A
8 e HRLLERER IR E A ST ERIE 1857
W REBSTHERSE 11 5RZE LA R K A8R3
ZEER - At - BTHEER A REEALLE

AEERERERBERRETLARZHE -

BBEE S0 B R ERE 15K AR
BTG REHEENENE SRR ES R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15

The following table summarises the impacts of transition
to HKFRS 15 on retained profits at 1 January 2018.

w

AFITE A
USRS
(&

/

&
2R ) K&

,3#
-
T

~—
=
— (g_nu

:I:‘_Illi

25 B 38 2 082 3 5T B 7B B S 38
ERAREIBT A (&

BB BRE LA EISHELARZ
Wiz (%)

BRI R E S WSS 1552
2t

TRBHEEE B BPHERELERFE 1557 E R
2018F 1 A1 HZIRBEFIHIF L -

RMB’000
ARBFTE
Retained profits 1R 22 2 A
Recognition of contract costs R E R A AN 552
Tax effects TRIE s & (138)
Impact at 1 January 2018 M2018F 1 A1 Az & 414
The following adjustments were made to the amounts THAEN2018F 1 B 1 B 2548 0EHkRE

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at 1 January 2018. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

2. ERMEIERMB®EER

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

ZiS
&

(BB BHREED ) REE
(&)

:I:‘_Illi

FERBHERZHITBTEMHR
FRREBETA (&

ER RN E ISR RS R
Yak (48)

BEXEREBMBRELERE 155K 2

FEM (8)

Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 15
31 December at 1 January
2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018*
BERE
R E LR
#155
%A1 2017 & R2018%F
12A31H8 1A18
2HNEEE ENSE ENE HBREE *
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTT ARBTT ARETT AREFT
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from EUWRBEAR
customers for TRRHIE
contract work (a) 4,466 (594) (3,872) -
Trade receivables FEWE 538 (b) 1,705,437 (399,377) - 1,306,060
Contract assets ARBE (@) & (b) - 399,971 - 399,971
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to customers  FEREEA[R
for contract work Ti2308 @) (4,424) - 4,424 _
Tax liabilities MBEE @) (32,588) - (138) (32,726)
Capital and reserves BEXRGE
Retained profits REBER @) (1,672,377) - (414) (1,672,791)
* The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from & RRFF 2 @R RB 2 EAEBMBRELER

the application of HKFRS 9.

EOR 2 o
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o)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2.

86

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

(@ In relation to construction contracts previously
accounted for under HKAS 11, the Group
continues to apply output method in estimating
the performance obligations satisfied up to date
of initial application of HKFRS 15. Under HKAS
11, construction costs were charged to profit or
loss by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract, which is measured by reference to
the estimated total revenue for contracts entered
into by the Group that have been performed to
date. Under HKFRS 15, costs that related to satisfy
performance obligations are expensed as incurred.
Construction costs of RMB3,872,000 that have
been incurred but deferred to be recognised in
profit or loss under HKAS 11 included in amounts
due from customers for contract work were
charged to retained profits. Construction costs of
RMB4,424,000 that have not been incurred but
accelerated to be recognised in profit or loss
under HKAS 11 and included in amounts due to
customers for contract work were credited to
retained profits. Unbilled revenue of RMB594,000
arising from the construction contracts was
reclassified from amounts due from customers for
contract work to contract assets. The related tax
effect of RMB138,000 was recognised in tax
liabilities and included in adjustment to retained
profits.

China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHIEBUMKEHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BB BREED]) REE
FINANCIAL REPORTING HE:N€-),

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

BRI 4 Mz F 5] BB M B

New and amendments to HKFRSs that PNz =
HFERREBFTR (&

are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

\

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EEMBHEERIFZISHEEFLERZ

Customers (Continued) Wz (&)

Summary of effects arising from initial BAEAEEVBEREERNFE155] 2

application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) AW (B8)

(b) At the date of initial application, retention by REREABH ZEARELZEK
receivables of RMB399,377,000, arising from the fRE & AR 399,377,000 TL/BR A RE]
construction contracts are conditional on the Az —EHEAGEEFHREEEZRT
satisfaction of the service quality by the customers MEBATMEE  MABEHRDBEK
over a certain period as stipulated in the BORBEFHBEEAREE -

contracts, and such balance was reclassified from
trade receivables to contract assets.

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying TREMERE S IEHREERFE 155 AE
HKFRS 15 on the Group's consolidated statement of ER201845F 12 A31 H&AR G WM BARRE - AR
financial position as at 31 December 2018, its AEERZKEERZENGABEREMERE
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other WHRREARETERNTE - RIRKT
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of SEIENIER o

cash flows for the current year for each of the line items
affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2.

88

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

FERBHERZHITBTEYHR
BRI REBRTA (&)

L

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB EHRGEEREISHEFLERZ
Customers (Continued) Wz (%)
Summary of effects arising from initial BAEAEEVBEREERNFE 1552
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) s (&)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HEEHMERRARNTE
position
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REREE
B H R 5 ZE A
R & P51 AE E15HEzeHE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt = ARBTT AEBTT ARBTT
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from FELB(E}E/\W
customers for T2
contract work (@) = 2,714 2,714
Trade receivables FEWE 5 k18 (b) 1,265,749 542,105 1,807,854
Contract assets ERBE (b) 542,105 (542,105) -
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to customers FEHE)E/\ &
for contract work TiRET (a) = (346) (346)
Tax liabilities fﬂlﬁﬁﬁ (a) (26,668) (592) (27,260)
Capital and reserves BN #E
Retained profits RE B (a) (1,689,819) (1,776) (1,691,595)
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFIEBMEHEEE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([EEMBERESER |) M EE
FINANCIAL REPORTING HE:NE-))

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that INFER & N 2 HE] & B B IE R
are mandatorily effective for current EER N EHEETA (&)

year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB BHREEREISHEEFLERZ
Customers (Continued) Wz (#8)

Summary of effects arising from initial BAEREEVBRELELNE IS 2
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued) AW (B8)

Impact on the consolidated statement of profit or HaReBEEREtMEERERNTE

loss and other comprehensive income

Amounts

without

application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
RIERES

B Ag R & 2E A

R & Fr 5l AR FI5HE2SHE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt EE AREBTT ARBTT ARBT T

Cost of sales SEEE BN (a) (1,147,488) 2,368 (1,145,120)
Gross profit EF (a) 353,823 2,368 356,191
Profit before tax MR AR AT & A (a) 215,390 2,368 217,758
Income tax expense P8R (a) (76,378) (592) (76,970)
Profit for the year EREF] (@) 139,012 1,776 140,788
Total comprehensive income 4 (R &2 E UK A 42 58

for the year (a) 109,314 1,776 111,090
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2.

90

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash
flows

FERBHERZHITBTEYHR
HRREBETA (&

\

BENBREEAE 15 HELERAZ
Yz ()

BEXEREBMBRELERE 155K 2
T EM (%)

HERERSRBROTE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
RERE SR
MR E 2R
AN 3R & Fr B HAE FISHEZEHE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARETTT ARBTIT ARETT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES ST
Profit before tax [ Tt B 22 1) (@) 215,390 2,368 217,758
Operating cash flows before 388 4 & EHTHY

movements in LRARIR S

working capital (a) 322,115 2,368 324,483
Increase in contract assets SRIEEE N (b) (174,918) 174,918 -
Increase in trade receivables  fEUY B8 5 FRIEIE N (b) (56,134) (174,918) (231,052)
Decrease in amounts due from FEIE F & R L2

customers for contract work 2 I8 3 4> (a) - (2,714) (2,714)
Increase in amounts due to EMEPESRTIZ

customers for contract work  ZrIE 8 4 (a) - 346 346
Cash generated from RS FRE A IR S

operations 138,272 - 138,272
Net cash from operating 4R K5 ST B EE A Y

activities HEFE 48,705 = 48,705

The explanations of the above changes affected in the
current year by the application of HKFRS 15 as
compared to HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and the related
interpretations are set out in notes (a) and (b) above for
describing the adjustments made to the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January 2018 upon
adoption of HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses (“ECL") for financial assets and other items
(for example, contract assets and financial guarantee
contracts) and (3) general hedge accounting. The Group
has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1
January 2018 (date of initial application) and has not
applied the requirements to instruments that have
already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31
December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1
January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 Ffinancial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in note 3.
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THESEZHAHRE  (NEREERSRBED
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HEEEER]D KQ) — R PSHERE - A5E
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BXEREBSVEHREEREIR  BIER
20181 A1 B (BXRER B H) MARKIERER
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1A 1THEKRRIBRZIARBZEMHTE -
201712 A31 BMEEEEHE2018F 1811
ZIREEZHZ=E2RAIIRSE B F R HE A
SEb D PR MIEEBEH AT ELLEE R o

BRI ER IRIEE B G ERIE 395k 8
TA:  #RRTERE ARETHRERA
RETEFLRIE

FERE AN SRS RS ORE RN BT
RIS 3 3 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

2.

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERHAIBEBMBHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG ([BEMEREED ) REHE
FINANCIAL REPORTING HE: YC-))
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that REFERHERZHTE R P KER
are mandatorily effective for current EXER N HEETA (&
year (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related BB IREEREI R 2R T ARMN
amendments (Continued) FIIEET N (48)
Summary of effects arising from initial BREASEMERELEFEIR 2&
application of HKFRS 9 2t
The table below illustrates the classification and TRAREHEELRSHABBUREMEBER
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities BREABE(2018F1 A1 H)RIBEFAMH
and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and SXERE 95k R BB 2 RIS 3957 B
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January EEEBERETHN ERTE -
2018.
Available- Equity
for-sale instruments Trade  Contract Bank  Deferred  Retained
investments  at FVTOCI receivables assets  balances  tax assets profits
FBAM
2EkE
BAYE
MHLE 5I8 E BE
RE BEIE E53E GSREEE B4R HEEE  REEF
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
M ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Closing balance at R2017E1283182
31 December 2017 i e
— HKAS 39 —EBEHER
#3958 53,928 - 1705437 - 757,321 - (1,672,377
Effect arising from initial &)X ERE MG
application of HKFRS 15 e @) & 158
ELnEe - - (%937 399971 - - 414)
Effect arising from initial B EREHEBRE
application of HKFRS 9: HEER B
T 3
Reclassification EfSE
From available-for-sale Bt &R E
investments (@ (53,928) 53,928 - - - - -
Remeasurement EfiHE
Impairment under ECL model ~ FEHIEEFBERBET
i b) - - (B4420) (6516 (8497 33603 85830
Opening balance at R018E1A182
1 January 2018 ik Fes- 3 - 53928 1,221,640 373,455 748 824 33,603 (1,586,961)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(@)  Available-for-sale (“AFS”) investments

From AFS equity investments to FVTOCI

The Group elected to present in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"”) for the fair value
changes of its equity investments previously
classified as available-for-sale. The investments
are not held for trading and not expected to be
sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9, RMB53,928,000
were reclassified from available-for-sale
investments to equity instruments at FVTOCI, all
of which are related to unquoted equity
investments previously measured at cost less
impairment under HKAS 39. No fair value gains or
losses relating to those unquoted equity
investments previously carried at cost less
impairment were adjusted to equity instruments
at FVTOCI and FVTOCI reserve as at 1 January
2018.

P& P 3 5] & 7B B 75 3R o 2 A
(Fﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ&ﬂﬂ%
(%)

:I:‘_Illi

BRI 4 Mz F 5] BB M B

*
2 9 B LB ST A (42

BB BGREERIE IR & T AKM
FAIZET AN (%)

BREREEMBREENEIHR 2
R (&)

@ HFHHRLE([ATHGE])RE

HAHREERAREZERREME2EK
SRR FETIRR

AEBEREERNEBEAKS((HtbE2mE
Wk ) 25 E 5 /T 5 48 A P 4 & /A%
REENRAFEEE - HEWIFFIEE
EREHITSENERMNGREE - ¥
BREREANREERFEIRER -
AR%53928000 Al EHERESE
FHBEEEREMEEmKERAFET
IRZEmT A Eh2IyEassaest
AEBI%E 3957 T8 T S ATIR A AR AR (B AT
EZIERERANEEEM - BIEETA
BRKASE SR AR 2 ERER A E
HEEN AT EW K EEE R 20184 1
R1ERAZZSBEMEEKEEAF
BYRZBRARE RERBEMEE NS
BATEYR 2 G -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime
ECL for all contract assets and trade receivables.
Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, contract assets
and trade receivables have been assessed in
groups classified based on internal credit ratings,
past due status and repayment history. The
contract assets arising from the construction
contracts that are conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customer over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts and
have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore estimated the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables and
the contract assets on the same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other
financial asset at amortised cost, including other
receivables and bank balances, is assessed on
12m ECL basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

For outstanding financial guarantees provided to
an individual of RMB1,200,000, the Group
considers there has been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and hence the
loss allowance is assessed on 12m ECL basis.

China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A

FERBHERZHITBTEYHR
BRI REBRTA (&)

\

BB BGREERIEIR & T AKM
FAIZET AN (%)

BREREEMBREENEIHR 2
R (%)

(b) FEHEEBEEAETZRE

AEBERBEEMBHREEAFE IR
AT ERMEERE  RAMBAR
BEMBREZFREAZHEMEER
B8 - RIRBEE SR ERF 395
EREERECZEFRAN  AREE
REWE S FACERABEEFR @&
HAAMROR B8 TR 8% 0 A AETTRT 1 © S5
EREAZAREERGEPRARES
Az -—BRBAFAAERBERRTNER
HAMEE YERRFABEARZERE SR
HEAABMER BB - Bt - &
KEZFA-ERHERKRESHARAR
BEMFTEHEBERE -

HNMEERR B B RERIARL EEE
N - ERRRIBE B G 5 ERIE 395
EROEEREN - Eh R HK AT
fRe 2 mEE (BREMEKTIRRIRTT
BERMBHEEBRIIZ12EAEY
SRR -

FA— B AR A LI 2 AR E BT
ERARE 1,200,000 M5 @ AEER
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAHIEBUMKEHREER
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG (BB BREED]) REE
FINANCIAL REPORTING HE:N€-),

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

BRI 4 Mz F 5] BB M B

New and amendments to HKFRSs that PNz =
HFEARHEBFTR (&)

are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related BB HEERIEIR A T AR
amendments (Continued) FIEET N (48)
Summary of effects arising from initial BRERAESEMERELENFEIFR 2&
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) R (8)
(b)  Impairment under ECL model (Continued) (b) TEHEEEEEAETZREE)
As at 1 January 2018, additional credit loss R2018F1 A 18 BIMzEEEBEE
allowance of RMB119,433,000, net of deferred AR # 119,433,000 7T (£ 1 4 IR I 75 18
tax asset of RMB33,603,000, has been recognised & E AR 33,603,000 70) B MR & F
against retained profits. The additional loss MR - HINBEREESEEETH
allowance is charged against the respective assets. R o
All loss allowances, including bank balances, 2017412 A31 BRI B EEE#HE (&
contract assets and trade receivables, as at 31 EIRITESR AREENEWE SF0E)
December 2017 reconciled to the opening loss B 201841 A1 B HA M B 1B B
allowances as at 1 January 2018 are as follows: BRLAE :
Trade Contract Bank
receivables assets balances
FEWE 5 7B EREE RITHEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTE ARETT

At 31 December 2017 RA2017¥12H31H

— HKAS 39 — EBSTERE395 14,978 - =
Reclassification EX ikl (14,978) 14,978 -
Effect arising from initial application &)X & F & i B 75 S &5 X 8

of HKFRS 9: FOFELHTE
Amounts remeasured through BEHAVERERNETZE

opening retained profits K& %8 84,420 26,516 8,497
At 1 January 2018 20181 H1H 84,420 41,494 8,497
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement
of financial position arising from the
application of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group's
accounting policies above, the opening
consolidated statement of financial position had
to be restated. The following table show the
adjustments recognised for each of the line items
affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

96 China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement

Z.Eﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁA

((BEEMBEHREER ) REE
HE:N€-),

KEEBRGE wzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
LA REBETAR ()

E BB IR R E 9SS F T AR
BIEET A (%)
HRERE SIS RS ER IR ¥
;EBTE}L (Zm’)

(b) FHEEBEREARTFZREE)
EEAFAEHIEAMELEHBANERE

of financial position arising from the R RR 2L (F)
application of all new standards (Continued)
31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
2017% EEu% BN 20184
128318 HEER HELER 1818
(RER) 155 9% (€<3=27))
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT AR®TT ARBFT
Non-current assets EREEE
Available-for-sale investments 7] it 1 €384 53,928 - (53,928) _
Equity instruments at FVTOCI s 3@ = i 2 T Uy 35
BRATETIRZ
EnIA - - 53,928 53,928
Deferred tax assets EXFIBEE - - 33,603 33,603
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from customers el 2 5 A [ TI2E0E
for contract work 4466 (4,466) - _
Trade receivables W E 5708 1,705,437 (399,377) (84,420) 1,221,640
Contract assets BRBE - 399,971 (26,516) 373,455
Bank balances and cash RIS RES 757,321 - (8,497) 748,824
Current liabilities FEAE
Amounts due to customers e R EA R TIREE
for contract work (4,424) 4,424 - -
Tax liabilities HBEaRE (32,588) (138) = (32,726)
Capital and reserves B
Retained profits RZRF (1,672,377) @14) 85,830 (1,586,961)
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that
are mandatorily effective for current
year (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and the related
amendments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(b)  Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement
of financial position arising from the
application of all new standards (Continued)

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from
operating activities under indirect method for the
year ended 31 December 2018, movements in
working capital have been computed based on
opening statement of financial position as at 1
January 2018 as disclosed above.

98 China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A

FEF #15] &8 B 75 3R & 2 A
(BB BREED]) REE
HE:NE-),

REEFRHER ZHITBERMBR
HEAREETAR(E)

\

BB BGREERIEIR & T AKM
FAIZET AN (%)

BREREEMBREENEIHR 2
R (%)

(b) FHEEBEREARTFZREE)

HERAMEHIERNMEEHBANES
MBRR R 2T E ()

Mi3: : BEEE 2018412 A 31 B ILEEREREE
FEREZCETEHEEANRSREMS
LEESBHORBEA LHFEZ 201841
A1 BEVMBRRRAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle!

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for

which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

B Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

FEF #15] &8 B 75 3R & 2 A
(BB BREED]) REE
HE:NE-),

C 58 i 1B 1) R £ R 2 ¥ ] & 78 B 3%
HEEQREEFT AR

AEELERFEA THICRMERRERZ
A BAMBRELYREERTA

EAUBRSENSE 165 EE

EEUBREENE TR RRARS

B (ERIHHRERE FrERREZ TREK!
ZE9)-RBEBH

BAMBREEREIR EBIESR"

(Ba1%)
BEMBASENEIR  ARABENRMENEL
(Ba1%)

EEMBASENR 05N REFEARELNARAELE
BESENR R (BHR) RNEELERIA?

BRGTEAS1NREE EAMIER
B e AR
FRETHEAE 19K (BITA) FHBEH - HIHREE

FRETHENSE B8R (BATAR) RBERARAELEN

R
BRUBHEEA(BTA)  AAMEREER 2015522017
ERE FERE

1 720194 1 A1 Bz &5 16 R F E BRI AR
2 T B Bisk 2 1% 5 1A K & 2 2R A 20
E 720214 1 A1 Bk z &5 E K FE B AR

¢ R 202041 B 1 Ak 2k Fta 2 & EFEHHF
HE AR RAGE RUBEEEM U B AR

5 720204 1 A 1 B k2 1& 56 K F & BRI A K
PR T aET R T B S B 1 R S HE Rl R HASET ARG
NARIESTER - ERAMBEMIFEIE BT

BEERREEBIABTEHA LRGSR
MBEBREREATE
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and
leaseback transactions to be determined based on the
requirements of HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of
the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS16 also includes requirements relating to
subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets.

China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured
at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group. Upfront
prepaid lease payments will continue to be presented as
investing or operating cash flows in accordance with the
nature, as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may
result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17,
and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

FEF #15] &8 B 75 3R & 2 A
((BEEMBEHREER ) REE
HE:NE-),

G 28 i B 1) R £ 2 ¥ el & 78 B 3%
HEEREEFTAR(E)
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25 (&)
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
RMB9,813,000 as disclosed in note 39. A preliminary
assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. In addition, the Group currently
considers refundable rental deposits paid of
RMB541,000 as rights under leases to which HKAS 17
applies. Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the
carrying amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to
amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable rental
deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-
of-use assets. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify
for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. The Group elected the practical
expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease and not apply this standard to
contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4. Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the
contracts are, or contain a lease which already existed
prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group elected the modified retrospective approach for
the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise
the cumulative effect of initial application to opening
retained profits without restating comparative
information.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in
issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
Definition of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition
of material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgements. The
amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January, 2020. The application of
the amendments is not expected to have significant
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group but may affect the presentation and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-base
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

—  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

—  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

and

— Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquire and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquire. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquire or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets held for sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in a joint venture and
associates

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of a joint venture
and associates are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of a joint venture
and associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in a joint venture or an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the joint venture and associate. Changes in net assets of
the joint venture and associates other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of a joint venture or an associate exceeds the
Group’s interest in that joint venture and associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the joint venture and associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture or associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in a joint venture and
associates (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture and an associate is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes a joint venture and an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture or an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group'’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture or an
associate of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the joint venture and associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the joint
venture and associate that are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same. Control is transferred over time and revenue
is recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group'’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or
services transferred to the customer to date relative to
the remaining goods or services promised under the
contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided
in the normal course of business and net of sales related
taxes.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specified criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Goods, interests and rental

The Group’s accounting policy for the recognition of
revenue from construction services is described in the
accounting policy for construction contracts below.

Sales of scrapped goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income

The Group’'s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
using the percentage of completion method, measured
by reference to the value of work performed during the
year. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount
can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered
probable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that it is
probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract work. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred for work performed to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related
work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances
received. Amounts billed for work performed but not
yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade
receivables.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose (other than construction in
progress as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress including property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in

profit or loss on a straight line basis over the terms of
the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of
acquiring land held under operating leases, are
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the lease terms of the relevant lease. In the event that
lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property
interest which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element as a finance or an operating lease separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is
clear that both elements are operating leases in which
case the entire property is accounted as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as
“prepaid land lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease terms on a straight line basis. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is
under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (= 2018 F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the tangible asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
weighted average costs method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

3.

116

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date/settlement date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income and interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's

ordinary course of business are presented as other
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

— the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

—  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

— the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

—  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

118

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in OCl and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not
be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will continue to be held
in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line
item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables, contract
assets, bank balances and financial guarantee contracts).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these assets
are assessed in groups classified based on internal credit
ratings, past due status and repayment history.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

() Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both guantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

() Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

122

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of initial
recognition for the purposes of assessing the
financial instrument for impairment. In assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of financial
guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

(iii)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(©)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

3.

FESHBEK @)

EWMTAE
TEREE(B)

Eu

TR EERME(R

(R I B = 2 19 38 K 15R L
ERB BV HHREEAR

95%) (48)

(i) EEBESHEE

CREEE-RINLENEM(HZE
BMEEMFARRSREBRTHNEE)
BEBEREERE - SREEERRE
ERENEEREEAR TIFEHNATE
REE

@ BITARERANERMBRE :
) BRAEGRROZEBIEMS)

© ERANERARBRBERAMK
R & 1948 8 A R B m A FRA
BHHEERATEBITEENER

(d) fERAR AR AR E R BT
B =X

e REMBRREEHSHEERLLRD
BISHEERS -

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF 3}

123




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. XEGTBEM®
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) ERTHEE)
Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (upon application TR EERE(REBHE2MREFRX
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with FERBATBRELERFEIFR) (B)
note 2) (Continued)
()  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued) () FEHEEEERZGERER(E)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is HRBSEREARME @ NEBEER

required to make payments only in the event of a EWIERO TR EAZEED

default by the debtor in accordance with the MER T A TR - Btk - TR
terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. EBAEERZARFEEAZLENEES

Accordingly, the expected losses is the present BeEMEEMOTFETNRE  RER

value of the expected payments to reimburse the SEEHRZEEA EFASERE

holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any o WEE £ RE 2 MR ZFERIRE -
amounts that the Group expects to receive from

the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts, the R B ERERNEREEEEmMS -

Group will apply a discount rate that reflects the TN E S AT IR R i ST Y B A B

current market assessment of the time value of F'EEJETE&%%E&E%?R%E’]HWE’]QW

money and the risks that are specific to the cash MG AIREEE HERE ISR
flows but only if, and to the extent that, the risks JHEITIR R (fm;tgjﬁ?ggﬁﬁﬁﬁa’]ﬁi&

are taken into account by adjusting the discount )T LAEE o

rate instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being

discounted.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or WBHEEBREUAE ANt E @ it

cater for cases where evidence at the individual HENTAEEMMZES TS Ble

instrument level may not yet be available, the BT ARANIEETH  BERRKE
financial instruments are grouped on the internal ZREOSRELE SR

credit ratings, past due status and repayment

history basis:

— Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the — SRIAEME(AAEBEREKES
Group's trade receivables and contract HIBEREREEDREREEHAR
assets are each assessed as a separate EITRHE ¢ RITARR R E MUK
group, bank balances and other receivables REFETRI)
are assessed in an individual basis);

—  Past-due status; —  EERR

—  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and — EBRARMEE - BERITE R

—  External credit ratings where available. —  AIEGHINBEERTR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with
note 2) (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of each
group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of the
amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over
the guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables, contract assets and
bank balances where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: AFS financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date/settlement date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available for sales or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period expect for
unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
guoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
assets, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged

decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised costs, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve. In respect of
AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

On derecognition of an AFS financial asset, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

&

NG

TEREE(B)

RIMERTHEE

EERMEERSRENS RN EME - 3

HESREEREEMBENEBAID
Bl 3RERE T 5 —

EREK  AEBLHE

2\ B K

RACHER

E’é%@%@i%%%mﬂﬁ?ﬁ% BEREERD

W FE AR (B R

\ Z \miﬁqyﬁjlﬁgnu:[ﬁ/\¢g

éf%?rﬁ@f%?ﬂlﬁlm:ﬁ%l&ﬁa%@ﬂZFﬁE’J%%ETJF(‘
HEENFER °

RERETEMBREERE

RELRERATENES

9K AR IEFER —
BEASETEAERFEEZREMEEKE
BRATFEIERFEC R TARER - £aR
FEEMEEBEEATEYR 2 HHRT 2
2 ESBET T SENDEERR - M
BERBAEF) -

BMEER - ERIRKRE

EfRERRIZRFTREXBRENDEER

Annual Report 2018 ==

—N\FFR

131




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

3.

132

PR AR MR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to associates, corporate bonds
and short-term borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder (i.e. the beneficiary of
the guarantee) for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9 (since 1
January 2018)/HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018); and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where

appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Government grants

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and interests in a joint venture and
associates, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Short-term and other long-term
employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services. All
short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Group in respect of services provided by
employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities” carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that another HKFRS requires or
permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

China Saite Group Company Limited F1 Bl 45 £ E B[R A 7

3.

FESTHEE®E)

EHREMRAESER

R B R B AR A Ty iz (e B IR AR TSI TS T 2
N2 RTBRBHNCEER - (RIS —BERH
WELER BRI EFFRZ BT ABERSE
BRIFMARHIEBRNIIER /M -

BEZEFEH(DINIERS® FRER
B DR ERE N SRR EREE -

HitRHEERMNERZABERAKEES
HERE BT RHMIRF S E D G RRER
Rt BRENE - AEREERRBKA
NEREHAEEE ZEMEFHNBEHER -
HeR —BEMBREERNERIEFHEFA
BEKARIN

R ARAE T AR AR

iEHE ARSI REREE R B HK
Ty R B RIR R ARTS = A R R R o

URESEUARDBERNTRRZ

PO B 3R S SRR AR 0 E At A 1 2 DABR
P B LAIR D 7 BT (TS AR T AL R
AEINATFERE -

AR B REBRENS - AR
IR 2 A THERR MBI -

BRRETER  AENBRRERHERER S
BRERERNGE o HERENE BB MR
ERUE Em B B RITE  BERERE
FREER . SEHERERERT -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Onerous contracts

The Group determines whether contracts with customers
are onerous contracts based on the latest available
budgets of those contracts with reference to the overall
contracts consideration of each contract which requires
management’s best estimates and judgements.
Construction revenue is estimated in accordance with the
terms set out in the relevant contracts. Because of the
nature of the construction industry, the management
regularly reviews the progress of the contracts and the
estimated construction revenue and budgeted costs. Any
change in the estimates of construction revenue or
budgeted cost will affect the amount of foreseeable
losses arising from onerous contracts recognised in the
profit or loss in the year of the change.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. The directors of the
Company are responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
engages independent qualified professional valuers to
perform the valuation. The directors of the Company
work closely with the independent qualified professional
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model. The directors regularly assess
the impact and the cause of fluctuations in the fair value
of the assets.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to
estimate the fair value of certain financial instruments.
Note 42 provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of various assets.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract assets
based on provision matrix through grouping of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns, after considering
internal credit ratings, past due status and repayment
history of respective trade receivables and contract
assets. Estimated loss rates are based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes in
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables and contract assets are disclosed in note 42.
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5. REVENUE 5. Wz
A. For the year ended 31 December A. BZ2018F12A31HILLFE
2018
(i)  Disaggregation of revenue from () BIREFPERZWKEZE

contracts with customers

2018
2018 F
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Types of services ARG HE R
Construction of it
— Steel structure projects — & EIEE 968,313
— Prefabricated construction projects — BRI s 532,998
Revenue from contracts with customers ZF&[F > Uz 1,501,311
Timing of revenue recognition SRR
Over time R—ER A 1,501,311
(i) Performance obligation for contracts (i) FEFE&ERZEBHET
with customers
Construction services SRR
The Group provides construction services to AEBERECIREEER - BBE
customers. Such services are recognised as AREFEAESNIERE A ERIE
a performance obligation satisfied over SIE RGN EE - ZERBE
time as the Group creates or enhances an BRANR—BREEAABITRAOE
asset that the customer controls as the £ o BIBE R Tohk P& B 5 A E %
asset is created or enhanced. Revenue is ERZ S EERBH Y -

recognised for these construction services
based on the stage of completion of the
contract using output method.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of FEUR B & R ERbEE B R AT o
defect liability period, are classified as HAEREE BERTIANE
contract assets, which ranges from one to NF—Z2=F - ZEREETHER
three years from the date of the practical K- cREENEHESBEENS A
completion of the construction. The REWE SRIB - REEEHAR
relevant amount of contract asset is REFEFTEATTRIE L ARTEFF & 157 Y
reclassified to trade receivables when the #g - BZIRB T LB EEE -

defect liability period expires. The defect
liability period serves as an assurance that
the construction services performed comply
with agreed upon specifications and such
assurance cannot be purchased separately.
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

A. For the year ended 31 December

2018 (Continued)

(ifi)  Transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligation
for contracts with customers

The transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2018 and the expected timing of
recognising revenue are as follows:

5.

Wst )

A. BZE2018F12A831HLFE
(&)

DEBEREFEF A FZE
NEHVEEZ X Z1B1

(ifi)

M2018F 12 A31H » D #Z=#T
BAEECRTEX K E D ARTH) K
R 5B KR a0 TR B R A
I

Construction
contracts
EEEH
RMB’'000
ARBT T

Within one year

—FR

162,322

B. For the year ended 31 December
2017

Revenue represents the revenue arising from
construction contracts.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating activities are attributable to the
operating segments focusing on the construction of
steel structure and prefabricated construction projects.
These operating segments have been identified on the
basis of internal management reports that are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the Company
who are the chief operating decision makers of the
Group (the “CODM"). The executive directors review
revenue and gross margin analysis by each construction
contract for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

B. BZ£2017F 12831 HLEE

Wit B A REE MK -

7 EBE R

REBNKLETDEBERNEENH  ZFDH
HEERMARRARBEERENEER
T ZEREDMNIEAMER RS EEHRE

EMABEERRSAARFTATES(KRE
REEETELEREE((TERERKE]))
e c MITEFBHSRES R KRR
EMERDH - LUETTEIRD AL R RIS -

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF 3}

141




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o)

PR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

6.

142

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEBER (&
(Continued)
For segment reporting under HKFRS 8 Operating RBEBMERE LR ESHFAE T TR
Segments, the revenue and gross margin of each WwEmMS - S BEALKERFEEES RN
construction contract with similar economic A REMNEEEHRE-—AI2ZMELLEHH
characteristics has been aggregated into a single KED NS BUR A3 AEEN S
reportable and operating segment. The accounting SRR - KEEREAREZHH UK
policies of the operating segments are the same as the R EBEAE (BIERR) MAL ER W RE
Group’s accounting policies described in note 3. The MR ©
segment revenue and segment result (i.e. gross margin)
reviewed by the CODM is the same as the Group's
revenue and gross profit.
The CODM makes decisions according to operating FELERRERBS D BHLEEEEL IR
results of each segment. No analysis of segment asset KoWEZINDMBEERDBEENIT - R
and segment liability is presented as the CODM does EARFrEgearEETETHENZFERU
not regularly review such information for the purposes ETERD B RKRIRAE - Bt - E2559F
of resources allocation and performance assessment. Wk e D BBHEAR ©
Therefore, only segment revenue and segment results
are presented.
Entity-wide information ERsESY
An analysis of the Group's revenue by major types of REBIRZEEEREZLHRE DB RE DT In
construction contracts is as follows: N
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
Construction of 2%
— Steel structure projects — & EIEE 968,313 848,253
— Prefabricated construction projects — BRI AR A 532,998 563,492
1,501,311 1,411,745

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as all
the Group’s revenue is derived from operations in the
PRC and over 99% of the Group’s non-current assets
are located in the PRC.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEERE)

(Continued)

Information about major customers FRETEREFHNER

Revenues from customers of the corresponding years REBEE - FIERA SRS B Al
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the 10% BT

Group are as follows:

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Customer A’ 2B A 184,218 296,828
1 Revenue from construction of prefabricated construction g REEZRTEREREER W o
projects.
. OTHER INCOME 7a. g A

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Sales of scrapped materials EERlIHE 4,857 4,668
Interest income on bank deposits SRITFERF B U A 4,058 3,163
Rental income HEelA 2,166 2,154
Government grants BT B 1,809 =
12,890 9,985

. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7b. HAtt s R E5 18

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T

Net exchange (loss) gain PE N (18 Wzt %28 (24,683) 7,579

Loss on disposal of property, HEME MENEREZ EIE
plant and equipment (25) =
(24,708) 7,579

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF 3} 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. B A
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®ET T
Interests on short-term borrowings SSHIE IR A B 1,355 5,782
Interests on corporate bonds PDEEEF A 35,389 1,574
36,744 7,356

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES 9. REEE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

Impairment losses on: B TR IE 2 BEEIE :

— Trade receivables — EWE 518 12,025 14,978
— Contract assets — EREE 6,268 -
— Bank balances — RIT4E55 10,226 -
28,519 14,978

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 42.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

HZE2018F 12 A31 B ILFE 2 BEFGHFERE
BRKIRE42 ©

10. FAIfEHRA

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTFIT

Current tax: BNEARAIE :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax TSR 83,508 87,021
Deferred tax credit (note 22) IRIEF B % (FI5E22) (7,130) =
76,378 87,021

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made
based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in
accordance with the relevant income tax laws and
regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries.
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10. FREBR < (&)
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the BIE(RE AR EMBESEREHE) ([1DEF
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulations of the EIT BEED RCEREBEBOEEHIEH - ANATH
Law, the tax rate of the Company’'s PRC subsidiaries is B B BB A B TR 2R 5 25% o
25%.
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made BARAEENREFELEERSEEETMAE
as the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong RELAR - B REHR BB RSB EE -

Kong for both years.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled FRMAEHFBEY ARG ERZEEM K
to the profit before tax per the consolidated statement TSI B BR L AT A FEBR AT

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®ET T

Profit before tax R F AT &2 F) 215,390 314,221
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income R EPEMRESHRELE25%

Tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) HEMBIE(2017 4 : 25%) 53,848 78,555
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A F R B S B R S s 2

for tax purpose 22,324 9,355
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised MR R A BT S & 206 =
Tax effect of loss utilised CEREENR ST E (50) (51)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRBWANTRIETE

tax purpose (392) (1,352)
Tax effect of share of profit of SE—TEEEERETFZ

a joint venture i g o2 (83) (102)
Tax effect of share of loss of associates SEEE N TR 2 RS 2 278 -
Others Hip 247 616
Income tax expense for the year FERFAEREX 76,378 87,021
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 22. BRELFITE 7 SIS E M 22 o
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1.

146

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1. FAER
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 £F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AERBT T
Profit for the year has been arrived at R (T A) A N IBRENR
after charging (crediting): HERNER :
Auditor’s remuneration-audit services ZEENN S — ZEURE 2,742 3,828
Depreciation of property, ME - MEMRETE
plant and equipment 16,830 16,528
Less: amounts recognised in cost of VB RN EEE R ANIER
sales/capitalised in contract EARTIEHET
work in progress BB ARREIE (13,435) (13,730)
3,395 2,798
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &~ FH & 218 # 44 1,414 1,257
Less: amounts recognised in cost of B R E R AN TERR
sales/capitalised in contract EEARIREH
work in progress B3 BB RRFRIE (1,414) (1,257)
Staff costs BIRA(BEESHM)
(including directors’ emoluments)
Salaries and other benefits e M EHAMET) 54,368 50,554
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 38 /R4 K| 51 2 f 2k 6,010 5,828
60,378 56,382
Less: amounts recognised in cost of o R E R AN
sales/capitalised in contract HEARIIRH
work in progress B AR AMFIE (44,683) (42,852)
15,695 13,530
Operating lease rentals in respect of: A& EFHENHES -
Premises LIES 4,990 4,727
Less: amounts recognised in cost of W NI ERANIER,
sales/capitalised in contract EEARIIZES
work in progress B 7 A8 AR =hE (3,184) (3,114)
1,806 1,613
Reversal of provisions for B FSYE (R B4 H¢ o]
financial guarantees Gt AFTEEX)
(included in administrative expenses) (1,200) (5,000)
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 12. EERFTETHAEEMH
EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENRENTFERES(BEETETHAE) B
directors, which include the Chief Executive, were as Ban T :
follows:

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total

HER BIER
fizka Hitrfg Al SRR et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

For the year ended BZ2018512A31H1

31 December 2018: LFE:
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Bkt 1,650 15 1,665
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang B/ Nog - 930 15 945
Mr. Xu Fanghua REELE - 210 - 210
Sub-total INEF - 2,790 30 2,820

Independent non-executive B JFHITESE

directors:
Mr. Xu Jiaming BREPLE 210 - - 210
Mr. Luk Chi Shing BERERR T4 210 - - 210
Mr. Eddie Hurip (note i) SRR A (P RED 88 - - 88
Mr. Wu Zhongxian (note i) RBB 54 (H3Tii) 66 - - 66
Sub-total NeF 574 - - 574
Total ot 3,394
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF

148

EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

1. EERTETHAEEM =)

(Continued)
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
ek ERAET
e Hintas HE S R
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARET T ARET T ARET T
For the year ended EZ2017512H31H
31 December 2017: IHEE:
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Jiang Jiangiang Ege g Pt - 1,532 14 1,546
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang BB/ N S A - 872 14 886
Mr. Xu Fanghua REELE - 208 - 208
Sub-total NeF - 2,612 28 2,640
Independent non-executive BV IFHITES
directors:
Mr. Xu Jiaming BREALE 104 - - 104
Mr. Chen Tiegang BRI LA 43 - - 43
Mr. Luk Chi Shing BERERR B4 208 - - 208
Mr. Eddie Hurip (note i) SRR (PR 61 = = 61
Sub-total N 416 - - 416
Total st 3,056
Notes: P &E -
(i) Mr. Eddie Hurip has resigned as an independent non- (i) ERIRAEEENR 2018468 A8 AR B IEMIT

executive director on 8 August 2018.

(ii) Mr. Wu Zhongxian was appointed as an independent non-
executive director on 8 August 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 12. EERFETBRAEEHFM @)
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments EXFARBYIFRITESHN M EER S
shown above were mainly for their services as directors RARREZMRS AT o
of the Company.
Mr. Shao Xiaogiang is also the Chief Executive of the BB NREETMBARREEZTHAE - EXFT
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include HERMEBREEIEAEETHASRERSEH
those for services rendered by him as the Chief B -
Executive.
None of the directors waived any emoluments for both RREFE  BESEERETAHH - AEE
years. No emolument was paid by the Group to any of I & AR & B SN ERT & DMER R ZF A
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining 2N [E SO DA 7R £R (B B A SN o R R L
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. g -

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13. iEmREHES
The five highest paid employees of the Group during FA AEEREESHEERDEMEBES
the year include two directors (2017: two directors), (2017F : MBEE) ' HENFHFBIHN L
details of whose emoluments are set out in note 12 X112 FABR T =% (20175 : =%) 3k
above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the RAREENMIFFETHAENRSHFEEDN
remaining three (2017: three) highest paid employees HFMFIFEZIT

who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Company were as follows:

2018 2017

2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Salaries and other benefits e REAEF 1,672 1,676
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R {i 4@ |51 2 3% 32 17

1,704 1,693
The number of the highest paid employees who are not FMEN T RN ERNAREETNRSHES
the directors of the Company whose emoluments fell AT

within the following bands is as follows:

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
2018 20174
Nil to Hong Kong dollars ZZ 1,000,000 T ([T ])
("HK$") 1,000,000 3 3

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF 3} 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the
remaining highest paid individuals in the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years.

14. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shares of
the Company during 2018 and 2017, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period for both 2018 and 2017.

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the following data:

13.

14.

15.

EEBESHES ®)

MAESFE - AEBBERAEER TEA R
BT TS AHEREB - AERT SRS A
SR ISR BB 1) 2R SR B 1E

Hﬁ/%\
BEEER 2018 FF [ 2017 F 5L A A 7] A I 58 AR

NEEZHRE - JNE B 20184F R 2017 £ s
HAR 2R TS »

BRER

BRERBNTIRATHIEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Earnings B2
Earnings for the purpose of basic and STEERERRE SR BT
diluted earnings per share
Profit for the year FREF 139,012 227,200
'000 ‘000
TR &
Number of Shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary STESREARRTZ EERK
shares for the purpose of basic TIN5 25
earning per share 2,330,748 2,326,118

No diluted earnings per share for both 2018 and 2017
were presented as there were no potential ordinary
share in issue for 2018 and 2017.
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16. ¥)5% - BMERRE
EQUIPMENT
Buildings Plant Construction
and and Motor Office Leasehold in
structures machinery vehicles equipment  improvement progress Total
BEREEN REREE AE HAZRE  HENEEE ERIE fazt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost R
At 1 January 2017 RO17E1A1H 120,119 122,063 539 1,506 30 - 249,402
Additions HE 403 183 78 26 - 48,983 49,909
At 31 December 2017 R217E12A318 120522 122,46 5470 1,768 30 48983 299,311
Additions AE 24,055 34 3954 15,097 54 14,480 57,964
Disposals e - (1) - (32) - - (33)
Transfer &2 62,217 - - - - (62,217) -
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12A318 206,79 122,569 9424 16,833 376 1,246 357,42
DEPRECIATION i 4
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A1H 26,938 29,104 5076 1,216 30 - 62,65
Provided for the year FREE 6,39 10,006 15 m = = 16,528
At 31 December 2017 R217E12A318 3334 39,110 5,091 1327 30 - 79,184
Provided for the year EREE 6,274 9,841 102 559 54 - 16,830
Eimination on disposal RERHH - () = () s = @®)
At 31 December 2018 R2018E 1231 39,608 48,950 5,193 1879 376 - 96,006
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 R2018E12 8318 167,186 73619 4231 14,954 - 1,246 261,236
At 31 December 2017 R2017€12A318 87,188 83,136 379 i = 48,983 220,127

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings and structures 5%

Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles 10%-19%
Office equipment 5%-19%

Leasehold improvement Over the remaining lease
period of the

office premise.

The Group's buildings are situated on leasehold land in
the PRC.

The Group had pledged property, plant and equipment
with a carrying amount of RMB22,184,000 (2017: nil)
as at 31 December 2018 to secure bank borrowings of
the Group.

EMmE - B R MEIE B TS RS
SRS E AR TR E A BRI
TR R

EF REEY 5%

R K i 2s 10%

RE 10%-19%

N ] 5%-19%
THEWEEE S YNELIE SN

HEHRA -

AEENBFOURPENEE LM E -

M2018F 12 B31 H » REBEDIKIAREES
AR #22,184,000 70 (2017 4F « ) 2 ¥ %
R K iR AR S AR B R SRITIE 3K o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. ARHEHERIE

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

The carrying value of land comprises: THIABREERLE
Leasehold land in the PRC PR RS 1 i 57,751 58,344
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AE2HREAEB DN
Non-current asset FERBEE 56,422 57,032
Current asset MENE 1,329 1,312
57,751 58,344
18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—Ee&EbE R
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Costs of unlisted investment JEEMREKA 153,000 153,000
Share of profit of a joint venture 2MEG A ERF] 1,243 911
154,243 153,911
Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the REFBNRREARNSLDEFHEBNT -
reporting period are as follows:
Country of
incorporation/ Principal place of Proportion of ownership invest Proportion of voting right
Name of entity registration business held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
ERER ERAL/GMER  IEEEME AEEFRERRRELH AL EAFRERERLA ITEY
2018 2017 2018 2017
018 0175 018F 0175
THERERRASRARLAT  thePRC the PRC 51% 51% 51% 51%  Inactive
(*Jiangsu Huachen Saite”) F HE TEEx
THERERRERRERAA
(IT&ERER])
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

In June 2015, the Group, together with two
independent third parties, established Jiangsu Huachen
Saite, a PRC-incorporated company and engaged in
construction of steel structure and prefabricated
construction projects, which a total capital injection of
RMB153,000,000. Upon the establishment of Jiangsu
Huachen Saite, the Group held 51% equity interests in
Jiangsu Huachen Saite while the other two parties,
namely b RN E BB E % % BB R 2 7 (“Beijing
Chengjian Daogiao”) and B &35 In ¥ & B R A A
("Yixing Hongrui”) held 40% and 9%, respectively.
During the year, Beijing Chengjian Daogiao disposed of
its entire equity interest in Jiangsu Huachen Saite to
Yixing Hongrui. The investment is classified as
investment in a joint venture because no single party
could control Jiangsu Huachen Saite and the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control. Summarised financial information in
respect of the Group’s investment in the joint venture is
set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the joint venture’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

18. R—REEERR ©)

R2015F6 A AEBERMBBLE=HE
I EESER (WP EFMASZAR]) - #
FRENEERBRBESER 6 HFE
AR #153,000,0007T ° :&3 T ERESBERE
REBEF B IHERETRS1% IRE - MEERRM
7o B EEmEREEER AR (R
WiEERE ) REETREDEBRAR([EHE
SEIE 1) 7 Bl A 40% K 9% A - IMER - b
U ZERD AEEBREEENIHERSER
Ry 2 SRR o RRNME(T — 5 RIS BT &
ERERNRARGSARGE) ZEHENSH
—HRAE BMZEEREARGECENE
B AEBNAELENRENVEEREE
YT - TXATE AR ERS &R
ERBEEBMBHREENRENIBIREZTR
prdcox

EZERAVBHRERT GELXUEREA
iR

2017

2018 F 20174

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET R ARETIT

Current assets MENEE 302,505 301,853
Non-current assets EmENEE - -
Current liabilities mEBE 67 67
Non-current liabilities EmEafE - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

18. RA—RIEE X RER®)

(Continued)

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBFIT

The above amounts of assets include T EERERFEUATEE

the following:

Cash and cash equivalents HWeELRESZEEY 302,505 301,853
Profit and total comprehensive income AF REEWABEE 651 802

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in a
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial

BB AR EBNGRE B RERAERZ
R—EEEEE 2 EENREEZ HE

statements:
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Equity attributable to owners of AETEER AREEER
the joint venture 302,438 301,786
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBZFA#EZBED L
interest 51% 51%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest ~ AEBR —EALDE 2 HEERN
in the joint venture BREE 154,243 153,911
pyg — 2
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REFE AR 2=
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Costs of unlisted investments JE EHIRER A 8,750 -
Share of loss of associates DG E A Rl EE (1,113) =
7,637 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE RN TR 2Rz ()
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the AREBRBEE RS A a)HBHT -

reporting period are as follows:

Country of
incorporation/ Principal place of Proportion of ownership invest Proportion of voting right
Name of entity registration business held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
1511 ERAL/FRER  IEEEME AEEAERERRELD AEBAEREELA IZED
2018 2017 2018 2017
018 0175 0185 0178
REFENHERAR the PRC the PRC 60%* - 60%* - Parking semvice
lei e EERH
RERERRIHERAA the PRC the PRC 20% - 2% - Parking semvice
i E EERK
* The company is accounted for as an associate of the & ZARERBEAREEZAHARANRSHEEE
Company at the respective period end date as in accordance AEAARIERR B 2 —HEBE AR ZARZ
with the memorandum and articles of the companies, major FTEMBREEBREEESBYHERAE - A&
financial and operating policies of the company require BEES=e3EEAFE 1M - Bt AREBEZA
consent with simple majority in the board of directors. The RIBEATZEN -
Group has 1 out of 3 directors in the board, thus, the Group
has significant influence over the company.
The associates are accounted for using the equity ERERETBHRET  BE R UEREA
method in these consolidated financial statements. iR o
Aggregate information of associates that are not FEME R E R HIELE A B ERHEA -

individually material.

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREET T

The Group's share of loss and REBE DL 2 EER
total comprehensive expense FHEMS 4R (1,113) =

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's 7~ [B) A 5% & Bt 4 A &)
interests in these associates 2 e AR 4258 7,637 -
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 20. TR HEERE
INVESTMENTS

2017
2017
RMB’000
ARBT T

Unlisted equity securities at cost — 11.17% of entity A 3E FTARANE 5 @ IR AE — BEAH
11.17% 51,928

Unlisted equity securities at cost — 10% of entity B 3E FTARANE 5 @ I ANE — BEEBHY
10% 2,000
53,928

() In 2017, the Group acquired 11.17% equity (i)  R2017F  NEBWE—FREBEM
interest in an unlisted entity (“entity A") B zIEETER(ERADZ11.17%
incorporated in Hong Kong at a consideration of fx#E - R{E AR AKRMS1,928,0007T + E
RMB51,928,000 which consists of cash B IEIR & £ 587,000,000 7T (AHE 7
amounting to HK$7,000,000 (equivalent to A K #6,204,0007T) &1z & 1% 0.58 % T
RMB6,204,000) and 88,947,935 new shares Z B 17T HHIEB R E %172 88,947,935
issued at the issued date price of HK$0.58 per R (7 - ©%83% 51,589,000 T (FHE
share, amounting to HK$51,589,000 (equivalent MAR¥45,724,0007T) ° REEHR
to RMB45,724,000). It is measured at cost less HigARBETE - aREeEATE
impairment at the end of the reporting period Bt BEBK  ARAREEREER
because the range of the reasonable fair value TEELREERE -
estimate is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that its fair value can
not be measured reliably.

(i) In 2017, the Group invested in 10% equity @iy 20175 » AEER —ERF B
interest in an unlisted entity (“entity B") VR EMER(EEBDKREI10%R
incorporated in PRC at a consideration of - RER/ARY?2,000,0007T « RHEE
RMB2,000,000. It is measured at cost less R AREAFEELAEEFE -
impairment at the end of the reporting period I B IR AR ERTE ©

because the range of the opinion that its fair
value can not be measured reliably.
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21. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR 2. B REMEHKBERIZE A FES
VALUE THROUGH OTHER BRZBRATEH

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2018
2018
RMB’000
ARBT T
Unlisted investments: FEEMEE :

— Equity securities of entity A — B ARIRARES 22,230
The above unlisted equity investments represent the i IE FTRE A E IR E EARES SR
Group’s equity interest in private entities incorporate in SHFAETE 2R o AATIEEIE  BR
Hong Kong. The directors of the Company have elected EG BN ER T A EZ S e EAEE
to designate these investments in equity instruments as ABRRENMEEZERENEERERAEEZRE
at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term XA BB sgs T AR
fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or BT A BEMEEWEIZATEYEE o

loss would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy
of holding these investments for long-term purposes
and realising their performance potential in the long

run.
In the current year, the Group disposed of the NAREE  ARREEB(ERBEEMAK) 2
investment in entity B incorporated in the PRC, at a BERBEARERZIREEIE At AER
consideration of RMB2,000,000, which was also the fair AR B AR 2,000,000 0 HEZIBERE %
value as at the date of disposal as the investment no REIRAEENRLERSEY AT(E -

longer meets the investment objective of the Group.

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 22 EERELEEREE
LIABILITIES
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REREGEMBRNEMS @ & TELEHEE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax ENAGEEIEIEN g EREmS BT
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is BEBSTAT -

the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Deferred tax assets BEERIBE E (40,733) =
Deferred tax liabilities FELEFTEE & 92,116 92,116
51,383 92,116
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22.

158

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities
(assets) recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

22, EEBBEEEREE®)

AEREMBAEFREEERZEIRELERBERR
(BE) REZFHWT :

Withholding tax Credit

on undistributed loss
earnings provision Total

i R 23 K 2
2N FEBRRE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2017 and M2017F1H1B K

31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 92,116 - 92,116
Adjustments (note 2) R (fF5E2) - (33,603) (33,603)
At 1 January 2018 (restated) ~ 720184 1 A1 H (&L&E%)) 92,116 (33,603) 58,513
Credit to profit or loss T A= - (7,130) (7,130)
At 31 December 2018 201812 431 H 92,116 (40,733) 51,383

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008
No. 1, dividend distributed out of the profits generated
by subsidiaries established in the PRC to “non PRC-
resident” investors since 1 January 2008 shall be subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax and tax payment to be
withheld by the PRC entity pursuant to Articles 3 and 27
of the Income Tax Law Concerning Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises and Article 91 of the
Detailed Rules for the Implementation of the Income
Tax Law for Enterprises with Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018 in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB1,116,379,000 (2017: RMB880,317,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

22. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 22. EEREEEREE#)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has unused tax R2018F 12 A31H » A& B H KRB HAFIE
losses of approximately RMB2,833,000 (2017: BE YA ANRB2833,0007T(20174F : AR
RMB16,696,000) available for offsetting against future #516,696,0007T ) + A FA{EH S5 R 2R FE R TR &2
taxable profits. No deferred tax asset has been o AERTE AR KRB FIHR - AR EE T
recognised in respect of such losses due to the MOt EEERRELENIBEAE - MAER
unpredictability of future profit streams. The TAEEE B A TN EMD B AR :
unrecognised tax losses will expire in the following
years:

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

2018 2018 F - 14,688
2019 20194 1,019 1,019
2020 20204 1 1
2021 20214 1 1
2022 2022 987 987
2023 2023 F 825 -

2,833 16,696

A
23. INVENTORIES 23. F&

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Raw materials and consumables R #F B FE 205 -
Finished goods BUAK fh 10,437 -
10,642 -
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24.

25.

160

AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK

24. B (BN ZEFEREIENEA

2017
2017 £
RMB’000
ARBT T

Contracts in progress at the end of the year: RERETHER :
Contract costs incurred BEAERKA 1,579,822
Recognised profits less recognised losses ERERBFRE EREHE 583,476
2,163,298
Less: progress billings B TIREE R (2,163,256)
42

Analysed for reporting purposes as: INE2HAEB KD
Amounts due from contract customers ElAERZEP A 4,466
Amounts due to contract customers ENERZP A (4,424)
42

As at 31 December 2017, retention held by customers
for contract work amounting to RMB399,377,000, net
of impairment losses of RMB14,978,000 have been
included in trade receivables under current assets.

MR2017F 128318 AEFPHARAIREEE
KRB & AR 399,377,000 7T (£&H0 K R (B /&5
BARY14,978,0007L) Est ARBEEE T
REE S FE -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. B E 5 IE
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTFIT

Trade receivables FEWE 55178

— construction contracts — EELR 1,362,194 1,720,415
Less: Impairment losses o REESE (96,445) (14,978)
Total trade receivables JEUE PR IB AR 1,265,749 1,705,437

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to
RMB1,265,749,000 and RMB1,221,640,000
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the trade
receivables are retention amounts of RMB399,377,000,
of which RMB112,361,000 are due after one year.
Upon application of HKFRS 15, the retentions
receivables were reclassified to contract assets.
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25. BIRE ZIE (%)

AT R RIZAEE K A HI 251 80 E U 551
TR RRER DT °

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables,
presented based on the date of progress billing at the

end of the year.

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AREFIT

0-30 days 0-30k 143,459 210,701
31-90 days 31-90 K 231,849 241,872
91-180 days 91-180K 150,519 164,092
181-1 year 181 K-14F 373,902 321,622
Over 1 year 1FEE 462,465 367,773
1,362,194 1,306,060

Less: impairment losses recognised B BHERREERE (96,445) =
1,265,749 1,306,060

Retention receivables FEYREE & - 414,355
Less: impairment losses recognised B BHERREERE - (14,978)
- 399,377

1,265,749 1,705,437

Retention receivables ERRE S

Due within 1 year 1 FEREIH - 287,016
Due after 1 year 1 F1& 52 - 112,361
- 399,377

The Group's construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period once certain specified milestones
are reached. The Group allows an average credit period
of 30 days to its trade customers. As at 31 December
2018, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB1,145,250,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
RMB900,360,000 has been past due 90 days or more
and is not considered as in default since the Group is
still engaging with those corresponding debtors in active
projects or the Group considers good cooperation
relationships with these debtors exist. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

REEMELEERBENREREK - —BES
aBTREER  AZEAREIHRASHER - K
EERTHESEFI0HNIEHEESH - B
2018 12 A31H » AEEEWE 55 IBEH
BIEREmERE 2 AR 1,145,250,000 7T K &
WHRIE - S FIERRE QB @ - @4
#hA - A% 900,360,000 7T 2 #5790 K 8 A
LW PRABENTIBHRAEEBNEREZEE
FIEENRABEBSAE I AEERREZS
BHBAGERITGIERAR - AEBWEZS
AR A AR o
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25.

162

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB1,010,877,000 which are past due as at
the reporting date of which the Group has provided an
impairment loss of RMB14,978,000. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired:

25. BIRE ZIE (%)

R2017F12 831 H - XEEEWE FHRIB4E
HREERAEEEASARK1,010,877,000 7T H
EUWRIE  ZERERREBHE A - mA
£ B B 1E LR E E5 18 B A R 514,978,000
TC o ANEE WA ZE LT A AR o

EEMERRENERESHEAN
fRERAN T :

2017
2017
RMB’000
ARBTT
0-90 days 0-90 KX 292,527
91-180 days 91-180 K 129,182
180 days—1 year 180K -14F 73,070
Over 1 year 1F A E 347,890
842,669
Retention receivables EUIRE & 168,208
1,010,877

The movement of impairment losses in respect of trade BEENE 5% EREE RSN T -

receivables were as follows: o a a

2017
2017 F
RMB’000
ARBT T
At 1 January ®R1HA1H -
Impairment losses recognised during the year FARERZBEEE 14,978
At 31 December M®12A31H 14,978

As at 31 December 2017, included in the impairment
loss of trade receivables as at 31 December 2017 were
individually fully impaired trade receivables mainly due
from customers with an aggregate carrying amount
before allowance of approximately RMB14,978,000.
The balances were long outstanding and the management
of the Group considered the recoverability of the
balance is remote as the related customers were in
financial difficulties or have prolonged delay in
repayment.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables
for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 42.
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26. CONTRACT ASSETS 26. SREIEE

31.12.2018 1.1.2018*
2018 & 20184

128318 1A18*
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T

Analysed as current: DITRTE
Retention receivables of EEaRzEWRE S (Mita)

construction contracts (note a) 589,867 414,355
Unbilled revenue of construction RAR 2 EES R (D)

contracts (note b) - 594
Less: Impairment losses o REEE (47,762) (41,494)

542,105 373,455

e The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from * REBENEARBMBREEAEIFRRES

the application of HKFRS 9 and 15.

(@) Retention receivables included in contract assets represent (a)
the Group's right to receive consideration for work
performed and not yet billed because the rights are
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the
customers over a certain period as stipulated in the
contracts. The contract assets are transferred to the trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional, which is
typically at the expiry date of the period for the provision of
assurance by the Group on the service quality of the
construction work performed by the Group. The due dates
for retention receivables are usually one year after the
completion of construction work.

(b) Unbilled revenue included in contract assets represents the (b)

Group'’s right to receive consideration for work completed
but not yet billed because the rights are conditional upon
the satisfaction by the customers on the construction work
completed by the Group and the work is pending for the
certification by the customers. The contract assets are
transferred to the trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group
obtains the certification of the completed construction work
from the customers.

SRR o

FARREEZEKRRE IEASERRETT
BERAETRRRENEN  RESZSEMNAR
EPRERRENE THEAEREEERTH
BRIAEE - B FEMKRREGEE (B
BERAEERLETHRZETRENREE SRM
REHENENAY)  CREEBRERKES
R EUREBSIHMABERARETRTETR
_i ®

FARREBEEZ RRRRRIEAEBKIRETT
ERAETRRRENEN  RESZSEMNART
EPHAKBEMEKREETRERTMER AE
B MRZIRERFARPRE - EXSHIKAE
R (B ERARERERP Y TEMIRE
TRENBEZER)  aREEEEEREE SR
I8 o

Contract assets, that are expected to be settled within TEHERAEBMN EREERBRNEENESR
the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified as BERBEHEEBHSBRRBEE

current based on expected settlement dates.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note WEEFFIEERMEE42 -

42.
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27.

164

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS

27. HieBEWFEIR - RERFANR

75

2018 2017

2018 2017 £

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Prepayments TEfFFE 58,197 87,261
Deposits paid Bt 1,71 985
Other receivables H i fE U kI8 34,153 15,910
94,061 104,156

Prepayments mainly represent the material costs prepaid
to suppliers at the total amount of RMB52,846,000
(2017: RMB79,500,000) during the current year.

Other receivables include an amount of RMB32,550,000
(2017: RMB14,920,000) due from a director which is
interest-free with a maximum outstanding amount of
RMB80,709,000 (2017: RMB14,920,000) during the
year. The amount is expected to be recoverable within
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
The Group performed impairment assessment on the
amount due from a director and amounts due from
other counterparties and concluded that the impairment
loss involved is insignificant.

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note
42.

China Saite Group Company Limited F1 Bl 45 £ E B[R A 7

FERFIEEBREATEANTEN FHERN DR
A - 4258 5 AR ¥ 52,846,000 7 (2017 £F -
AE#79,500,0007T) °

FR - HMERSIEBREER—ZEZZTEAR
#32,550,0007C (2017 F : A R # 14,920,000
L) ZHBEARE  MEmAAEESEAA
R #80,709,000 7% (2017 4F = AR # 14,920,000
JL) ° % RRTRE B mEHARE @A AR UK
B - REBE RN —BESTHEREREMR S
HFRBETREN S - LRAEFMSBERE
NIZZN= N

MERH LB RSN 42
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L,
28. BANK BALANCES 28. SRITHAEER
At 31 December 2018, bank balances carry interest at R2018F 12 A31 H » IRITHEBRIZE RN H
prevailing market rates ranged from 0.01% to 0.35% FFEANF0.01%Z=0.35% (2017 F : 0.01%
(2017: 0.01% to 0.385%) per annum. %£0.385%) G2 °

31.12.2018 1.1.2018*
2018 & 20184
128318 1A18*
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBT T

Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRS 875,647 757,321

Less: Impairment losses B REEE (18,723) (8,497)
856,924 748,824

& The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from * SR ERB B R ELERFE IR AER

the application of HKFRS 9. B o

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances for HZE2018%12 A31 BILFERITEHRZRE

the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note A IEE T A M RE 42 ©

42.
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29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. EHE S RE
Trade payables are settled in accordance with the JEHE B3R E TR E R S o RIREHR
relevant agreements. An aged analysis of the Group’s K AEENENESHEGRKERR) MER
trade payables (by goods receipt date) at the end of the EOMR ¢

reporting period is as follows:

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT

0-30 days 0-30K 53,320 55,449
31-90 days 31-90K 953 1,710
91-180 days 91-180 K 86 -
181 days—1 year 181K-14F 258 =
Over 1 year 18 E 171 -
54,788 57,159
Retention payables ERHRE % 36,758 11,594
91,546 68,753
Retention payables ERRES
Due within 1 year 1 F A E|H 34,009 11,594
Due after 1 year 1 F 125 E 2,749 =
36,758 11,594

166 China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A
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30. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER 30. B ikE - HttENREBERE

PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS STEHA

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 &

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARET T

Accrued wages and staff benefits JEFt L& K 8 TH&H| 12,431 12,958

Other accrued expenses HAbfERTH 2,350 2,369

Other tax payables Hh e H4 1R 6,099 16,294

Deposits received 2z e 51,255 50,000

Other payables H b fE < 5RIA 32,449 15,631

104,584 97,252

31.

32.

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES

The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-

free and are repayable on demand.

CORPORATE BONDS

e B & 2 R FRIR

B E R RRARBEA - %8 RIZERE

31.

32. AEIfEH

2018 2017

20185 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREF T

Carrying amount as at 1 January W1 A1 BREREE 106,634 -

Net proceeds from issue of corporate bonds 2172 &) {& % H) TS 58 F 48 305,505 107,960

Redemption =l (85,011) -

Exchange differences e H =5 26,315 (1,698)

Interest expense FBRAX 35,389 1,574

Interest paid ERHE (30,600) (1,202)

Carrying amount as at 31 December 12 A31 BREREE 358,232 106,634
Less: amounts due within one year shown & : R —EREI 85 BimEh

under current liabilities BEMNRIE (196,069) (19,199)

Amounts shown under non-current P &IEMB B ERRIA
liabilities 162,163 87,435
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32. CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

168

(i)

(ii)

In 2018 the Company issued three corporate
bonds with principal amount of HK$10,000,000
each (“2035 due HK$ Bonds”) at a discounted
amount of HK$1,290,000, HK$1,294,000 and
HK$1,297,000, respectively. The first two and
third 2035 due HK$ Bonds were issued in
November 2018 and December 2018,
respectively. The 2035 due HK$ Bonds will mature
in November 2035 and December 2035
respectively, unless the holders or the Company
exercise the option rights which entitled the
holders to sell back the bonds to the Company in
October 2027 at 40% of the par value of the
initial bonds and the Company to redeem the
bonds at 40% of par value of the initial bonds in
October 2027.

In the opinion of directors, the fair values of the
early redemption options related to the 2035 due
HK$ Bonds are insignificant at initial recognition
and the end of the reporting period.

Except for the 2035 due HK$ Bonds with option
rights, other corporate bonds are redeemable at
any time before maturity at the Company’s option
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the corporate bonds plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the
redemption date.

China Saite Group Company Limited /B &% £ E B[R A 7]

32. }EIES (&)

0]

(ii)

MR2018%F + ARRBIT=MNASEE B
10,000,000 7T 2 A &) f& % ([ 2035 4F |
HABTLES D) - TIREREH 541,290,000
YSIT + 1,294,000 7T K. 1,297,000 7 IT.
BN EE D203 FE B TESD
B 20184 11 A & 20184F 12 A517 °
BRIEFE AR R AT EERER
FEHEH ANARER2027F 10 A LAIAE
F40% MABERARRABEEES - UKk
RNAFERER2027FE10 B AR E S
40% K EEE B FEH N - B RJ2035F
FEABTESH S DRI 20355411 A K
20354 12 ARIHA »

EEZRR - AH2035FRMBTLESFH
R EOE 2 AP ERERFERR LR
REARTEBERK -

BRB 58 2 2 2035 F R B TIE 5
S - B Al 2N B & 25 A 0 2 B A A s
RARRINEFERIZBERARESA
£H100%WEEE - NE=EE A
FEEHER AR HWFE (WE) EE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (= 2018 F 12 A 31 HILFE

32. CORPORATE BONDS (continued) 32. NEMEH (&)
(i)  Details of the Group’s corporate bonds as at 31 (i)  AEEPR2018F KX 2017F 12 A31HE
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: NEESFEBAT :
As at 31 December 2018: 7A2018%E 128310 :

Nominal Effective
Face Value Issue date Maturity date interest rate interest rate
HE BITHH ZH A =t kS BERAI=E

HK$

BIT
6,000,000 21/07/2017 21/07/2019 8.50% 8.50%
10,000,000 05/09/2017 04/09/2019 6.25% 11.86%
10,000,000 05/09/2017 04/09/2019 6.25% 11.86%
5,000,000 28/09/2017 28/09/2019 6.25% 6.60%
5,000,000 02/11/2017 01/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
5,000,000 02/11/2017 01/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
1,000,000 02/11/2017 02/11/2019 7.00% 7.31%
1,000,000 03/11/2017 03/11/2019 9.00% 9.57%
5,000,000 16/11/2017 16/11/2025 6.00% 6.16%
1,000,000 14/11/2017 13/11/2019 6.25% 11.86%
3,500,000 14/11/2017 13/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
10,000,000 20/11/2017 10/11/2025 6.00% 6.16%
10,000,000 20/11/2017 19/11/2022 7.00% 11.34%
10,000,000 22/11/2017 21/11/2022 7.00% 11.34%
2,000,000 04/12/2017 04/12/2022 6.00% 6.24%
10,000,000 05/12/2017 05/12/2025 5.00% 5.16%
10,000,000 12/12/2017 12/12/2019 6.00% 6.55%
10,000,000 15/12/2017 14/12/2020 6.50% 6.99%
7,000,000 15/12/2017 14/12/2020 6.50% 6.99%
1,000,000 05/01/2018 05/01/2019 5.50% 6.57%
2,000,000 05/01/2018 05/01/2019 5.50% 6.57%
800,000? 17/01/2018 16/04/2018 1.00% 1.61%
4,500,000 18/01/2018 18/01/2019 7.00% 8.08%
5,000,000 22/01/2018 22/01/2026 5.00% 5.16%
530,000 05/02/2018 06/05/2018 1.50% 2.53%
10,000,000 14/02/2018 13/02/2022 6.75% 7.05%
10,000,000 19/03/2018 19/03/2026 6.00% 6.16%
1,000,000 23/03/2018 22/03/2020 6.25% 6.80%
7,000,000 04/04/2018 04/04/2026 6.00% 6.16%
2,000,000 10/04/2018 10/04/2020 4.00% 4.53%
4,000,000 24/04/2018 24/04/2020 6.25% 6.80%
5,000,000 26/04/2018 26/04/2026 5.00% 5.16%
2,000,000 15/05/2018 15/05/2020 4.00% 4.53%
8,000,000 17/05/2018 17/05/2022 6.75% 7.05%
1,500,000 24/05/2018 24/05/2021 6.50% 6.88%
3,000,000 11/06/2018 11/06/2026 6.75% 6.92%
1,000,000 22/06/2018 22/06/2021 6.50% 6.88%
2,000,000 06/07/2018 06/07/2022 5.00% 5.28%
8,000,000 06/07/2018 06/07/2022 5.00% 5.28%
10,000,000 10/07/2018 10/07/2026 7.00% 7.17%
1,000,000 13/07/2018 13/07/2019 6.26% 7.33%
1,000,000 31/07/2018 31/07/2020 6.25% 6.80%
2,000,000 08/08/2018 08/02/2026 7.00% 7.09%
5,000,000 14/08/2018 14/08/2023 7.00% 7.25%
1,000,000 15/08/2018 15/08/2019 7.00% 8.08%
2,500,000 15/08/2018 15/08/2019 6.50% 7.58%
5,000,000 17/08/2018 17/08/2020 7.50% 7.78%
2,000,000 20/08/2018 20/02/2026 7.00% 7.09%
1,000,000 07/09/2018 07/09/2021 6.50% 6.69%
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32. CORPORATE BONDS (Continued)

170

(iii)

Details of the Group’s corporate bonds as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018: (Continued)

32. RRIEZ (&)

(iii)

AREBMN20184FE K 2017512 A31 B
NREEFFEBIT : (8)

A2018F 12 A31H : (&)

Nominal Effective
Face Value Issue date Maturity date interest rate interest rate
HE BITHH A CEES 1 YES

HK$

BT
2,500,000 02/10/2018 02/10/2020 6.25% 6.80%
3,000,000 18/10/2018 18/10/2019 6.00% 7.07%
2,000,000 06/11/2018 06/04/2026 7.00% 7.09%
10,000,000* 15/11/2018 15/11/2035 0.10% 13.16%
10,000,000* 26/11/2018 25/11/2035 0.10% 13.14%
10,000,000* 03/12/2018 03/12/2035 0.10% 13.12%

267,830,000
Nominal Effective
Face Value Issue date Maturity date interest rate interest rate
H{E BITHHE ESpNE S 1 YES

us$

ETT
22,000,000 31/01/2018 30/01/2019 10.50% 11.66%

22,000,000

& included in 2035 due HK$ Bonds * 5t A 2035 F 2| B A
Notes: BsE

p

) Corporate bonds with face value of HK$800,000
were with original maturity date on 16 April 2018.
The Group has default in payment and the bond
holders could request for immediate repayment as at
the year-end date. The original maturity date was
subsequently extended to 16 April 2019 upon the
extension agreement signed on 17 January 2019.

(ii) Corporate bonds with face value of HK$530,000
were with original maturity date on 6 May 2018. The
Group has default in payment and the bond holders
could request for immediate repayment as at the
year-end date. The original maturity date was
subsequently extended to 6 May 2019 upon the
extension agreement signed on 6 February 2019.
(iii) Corporate bonds with face value of US$22,000,000
with original maturity date on 30 January 2019, of
which US$1,000,000, US$5,000,000,
US$4,000,000,US$5,000,000, US$3,500,000 and
US$3,500,000, were subsequently extended to 4
February 2019, 28 February 2019, 31 March 2019,
30 April 2019, 30 June 2019 and 31 August 2019,
respectively, upon the extension agreement signed
on 30 January 2019. The nominal interested rate was
revised from 10.50% to 15% from 30 January 2019
to the full repayment date.

China Saite Group Company Limited F1 Bl 45 £ E B[R A 7

(ii)

(iii)

E{E 800,000/ 8 TR R EHMREIEH A2018
F48168 - AEEBHEAMNK - MESHHEA
Al ESRAF4E B ENER  IRIBER 2019F1 817
AEZNERHZ - REABBEELERZE 20194
48168 °

E{E 530,000/ 8 TR R EHFMREIEHE A2018
F5860 - AEEBHEARMR - MEHFEAN
BN B EER o RIER2019F2 A6 B
EENTEHRHE  REBBARBEEEREZE201945
AH6H -

M {22,000,000E THAREHNRIEHE B
201941 A30H * E#1,000,000%7T * 5,000,000
% JC 4,000,000 7T 5,000,000% 7T
3,500,000 3= 7T &% 3,500,000 = ST HE & AR #E 7 2019
F1A30BEBNTEHRAESRITERE2019F2
A48 201942 A28H 201943 A318 -
201944 H308 - 201946 A308 201948
A31H - &AM XH20194 1 A30 HE10.50%
BRI REBER AR 15% ©
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32. CORPORATE BONDS (continued)

(iii)

Details of the Group’s corporate bonds as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:
(Continued)

The above extended corporate bonds are
classified as current liabilities as at 31 December
2018 and included in the “on demand or less
than 3 months” time band in the maturity analysis
as disclosed in note 42(b). The directors believe
that these corporate bonds will be repaid together
with interest based on the scheduled repayment
dates of the extension agreements.

As at 31 December 2017:

32. }EIES (&)

(iii)

REBPR2018F K 2017F 12 A31 HE
NEEHFABOT « (8)

R2018F 12 A31H » LAl LT H Q7]
BEFDERRBAE - Wit AKMFE42(0)
PR EA B DR ERks = A A
HRSEEAN - EFHE ZFA0ES
ERF E S IRERHZENTEEEKB

fEI& o

M2017F12A318 :

Nominal Effective
Face Value Issue date Maturity date interest rate interest rate
HE BITHH ESp N RS 1 YES

HK$

BT
6,000,000 21/07/2017 21/07/2019 8.50% 8.50%
2,000,000 28/08/2017 28/08/2018 7.00% 8.30%
10,000,000 05/09/2017 04/09/2019 6.25% 11.86%
10,000,000 05/09/2017 04/09/2019 6.25% 11.86%
3,900,000 27/09/2017 27/09/2018 7.00% 8.01%
5,000,000 28/09/2017 28/09/2019 6.30% 6.60%
1,000,000 03/10/2017 03/10/2018 5.00% 6.06%
1,000,000 04/10/2017 04/10/2018 7.00% 8.08%
2,000,000 18/10/2017 18/10/2018 7.00% 8.08%
5,000,000 02/11/2017 01/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
5,000,000 02/11/2017 01/11/2020 6.50% 11.84%
1,000,000 02/11/2017 02/11/2019 7.00% 7.31%
1,000,000 03/11/2017 03/11/2018 9.00% 10.10%
1,000,000 14/11/2017 13/11/2019 6.25% 11.86%
3,500,000 14/11/2017 13/11/2019 6.50% 11.84%
5,000,000 16/11/2017 16/11/2025 6.00% 6.16%
10,000,000 20/11/2017 19/11/2022 7.00% 11.34%
10,000,000 20/11/2017 20/11/2025 6.00% 6.16%
10,000,000 22/11/2017 21/11/2022 7.00% 11.34%
500,000 24/11/2017 24/11/2018 2.00% 3.03%
1,000,000 29/11/2017 28/02/2018 6.00% 10.49%
2,000,000 04/12/2017 04/12/2022 6.00% 6.24%
10,000,000 05/12/2017 05/12/2025 5.00% 5.16%
1,000,000 05/12/2017 05/12/2018 7.00% 8.08%
1,000,000 06/12/2017 06/03/2018 4.00% 8.33%
10,000,000 12/12/2017 12/12/2018 6.00% 7.07%
10,000,000 15/12/2017 14/12/2020 6.50% 6.99%
7,000,000 15/12/2017 14/12/2020 6.50% 6.99%

134,900,000
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33. RHIE R

33.

172

PR AR MR

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has one (2017:
two) short-term borrowing in an aggregate amount of
RMB4,500,000 (2017: RMB46,150,000).

(1) On 29 September 2015, the Company entered
into loan agreements for loans amounting to
HK$50,000,000 (equivalent to RMB44,795,000)
with an individual and an entity incorporated in
Hong Kong, which is an independent third party.

The borrowing of HK$50,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB44,795,000) was guaranteed by a director of
the Company, interest bearing at 8% per annum
and the loan maturity was subsequently extended
to 31 December 2018. Effective interest rate was
8% per annum. The loan was fully settled during
the year.

(2)  In November 2017, the Group entered into a loan
agreement for a loan amounting to
RMB4,500,000 with a bank. The borrowing was
guaranteed by two directors of the Company,
four other individuals and entities, interest bearing
at 4.35% per annum and was fully settled during
the year.

(3) In December 2018, the Group entered into a loan
agreement for a loan amounting RMB4,500,000
with a bank. The borrowing is guaranteed by two
directors of the Company, three other individual
and entities and secured by the Group's property,
plant and equipment with a carrying amount of
RMB22,184,000, interest bearing at 4.35% per
annum and repayable on 5 December 2019.
Effective interest rate is 4.35% per annum.

China Saite Group Company Limited /B &% £ E B[R A 7]

MR2018F 12 8318 » AEBABE—%5(20174F
WE)EHER - & AR¥4,500,0007T(2017
& . AR# 46,150,000 7T) °

(1)  H2015F9 298 » AR AE—Z{EF
AT EREEEMK L BEE (BBILE
=77) 5% % /450,000,000 7T (& K
AR # 44,795,000 70 ) FUE RG] S E R 1%
A

50,000,000 7 7T (A6 7 A R # 44,795,000
TL)MBERBARRAR —BEFER  BF
FE8%iTERERINBABRERS
201812 A31H - BEEHNEA8% °
ZEFNFRNEEERE -

(2) H2017%F11 8 - AEBBE—[ERITAI L
B &5 A AR 4,500,000 TR EFH
HoZERTHAARAMEBES - MF
Hi@ENALTRERBER  BFHX
4.35% 5T B RERFEABHERE

(3) M2018% 128 - AEBE—[HRITAI L
B &5 A AR 4,500,000 TR E FH
FoZERTNHARRMEZES =4
H A ERIA I R EEEIERY AAEBRE
FEA AR 22,184,000 T % - &K
B REEERER  ZFFE435%:T
BRNAR2019F 12 ASHEE - BRE
FIR 5 435% ©
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34. PROVISIONS

34. #&15

Provisions for
financial guarantees
MR REE
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT

At the beginning of the year REH 1,200 6,200
Reversal of provisions B E R (1,200) (5,000)
At the end of the year RER - 1,200

Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co., Ltd. (“Saite Steel
(Jiangsu)”), a subsidiary of the Group, and Mr. Jiang
Jiangiang, a director of the Company, provided jointly
and severally financial guarantees to a micro credit
entity B HETIEE BN/ NEERBRAFIN Jiangsy, the
PRC, in respect of a loan with an amount of
approximately RMB3,000,000 granted to an individual,
namely, #8575 . Besides, Saite Steel (Jiangsu) and Mr.
Jiang Jiangiang and two other individuals, namely, #&1F
7% and #5575, provided jointly and severally financial
guarantees to the same micro credit entity in respect of
a loan of approximately RMB2,000,000 granted to
another individual, namely, B, #1E% and %5
have beneficial interest of an entity established in the
PRC, namely, /L& & #IRETIZBR AR (“JSBN"). 18
1E5, #8575, ME and JSBN are independent third
parties. The loans were past due and no settlement was
made as at 31 December 2015. The debtors and
guarantors were then sued collectively by the creditor
for the default of payment and requested to settle the
outstanding balance with interest. A settlement
agreement is subsequently agreed among 185575, HE
and the micro credit entity on the repayment schedule
which #7 7% would repay a total amount of
RMB3,500,000, of which RMB2,100,000 by the end of
December 2016, RMB700,000 by the end of December
2017 and RMB700,000 by the end of December 2018;
and AR would repay a total amount of RMB1,300,000
by the end of 31 December 2016, RMB500,000 by the
end of 31 December 2017 and RMB500,000 before 31
December 2018. A reversal of provision of
RMB1,200,000 (2017: RMB5,000,000) was made in
respect of the amount settled during the year ended 31
December 2018.

AEENMBARIHERHEEFR AR
([EFMERECIE) ) RA R ESEERL
A HERERNE T —BER AL (BMEES)
#9 A R # 3,000,000 7T B E 30 M) R BT 8 A —
MEEEAREEMBEEEN NEERER
NERHIBER o 1o - BERHAEE (L&)
N 2ok St AR A E A AR 2 {8 BI) A A8 IE 5 K48
F5 R RERFE TS — R ER AL (BNH
B)#) AR 2,000,000 ST E ZAFERIHY /) 58
EERARREMBER - ES RIEFFTN—
BMEFRBEKYNEE(ATIHAMRETES
RARNIHBEM]))EEE=iER - 1BIEF
BEF HBEMIGEMHABBIE=FH - »
2015 12 A31 8 ' ZFERKEE@H - By
REHBE - BAitt - HBEERARERIEZRE
BRARERARBRERIZE » ZRFHKRE
BESRERNE - B - 185 - HEREDEE
BERARERERSBRBEEERZE Bt
BHEFBEERLSTE ARK3,500,0007T @ &
FAEAREEFNRAKRE ZAEE AR
2,100,0007C * R2017F 12 ARZAIEEAR
#700,000 7T K2 A 2018 F 12 AIK Z A B & A
R % 700,000t : X HE&FER2016F12 A
31 BZRi{8E AR 1,300,000 7T * 72017 F
12 A318 2 #1 {& & A K #500,0007T & »
2018412 A31 B 2 BifE&E AR ¥ 500,0007T °
EMEE2018F 12 A31BILFELEE 2B
PO B A R #1,200,0007T (20174« AR
# 5,000,000 7T) ©
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. [&A
Number of Shown in the
Shares at consolidated
HK$0.10 financial
per share Amount statements
BREE
0.10 B TH REPHBRERA
B EE ot | i
HK$'000 RMB'000
FHIT AREET T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 7201741 818 »
2017 and 2018 2017 % 2 2018 4F
12A31H 50,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
At 1 January 2017 R2017%F1A1H 2,241,800,000 224,180 179,527
Issue of Shares as part of EAWBRIIHEEREZ
the consideration for HrREBITRG
the acquisition of
available-for-sale investments 88,947,935 8,895 7,883
At 31 December 2017 and 2018 72017 & &% 2018 FF
12A31H 2,330,747,935 233,075 187,410

In 2017, the Group issued 88,947,935 new Shares for
the acquisition of available-for-sale investments
(reclassified as equity investment at FVTOCI during the
year) at the market price of HK$0.58 per share at the
completion date, with corresponding increase of share
capital at RMB7,883,000 and an increase of share
premium at RMB37,841,000. These new shares rank
pari passu in all respects with the existing Shares. No
ordinary new shares were issued during the year.

China Saite Group Company Limited F1 Bl 45 £ E B[R A 7
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36.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 (= 2018 F 12 A 31 HILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 11 October 2013, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed by its then shareholders
on 11 October 2013 for the primary purpose of the
providing incentives or rewards to eligible employees,
non-executive directors of the Company and other
selected participants. The adoption of the Scheme
became unconditional upon the listing of the Company
on 1 November 2013.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no share options were granted, exercised or
outstanding under the Scheme.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of state-managed
retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a specific percentage of the total monthly basic salaries
to the retirement benefit schemes. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the required contributions under
the schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustee. The
Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, which
contribution is matched by employees.

The retirement benefit contributions of the directors of
the Company and staffs for the year end are stated in
notes 12 and 11 respectively.

36. EIRAESHE

R2013F 10811 B » XABRIBEARQRE R
M 2013F10 A 11 BBBN—BERERE
B RAERESEI([518]) - FEBEMA
NAIEERES  FPTEFREMSEHES
B2 1R (BB Sk B2 - EAR R AR 20135 11
A1 8 LW - 582 IR AR -

HE2018F N2017F12A31BIEFE - I
ERENRERIRRT B IR « BT AR TE ©

37. RIREAIGTE

AR BRHBEAKSZE M B A R E S R B
FHEENBIRERRABHBIHKE - KB
RAAREGAERF S BENIETE B D LAR
RAEMET IR - ARBRE KR E 8 R#
i —BERRIEZET SR ER SR -

AEENSEBEERBBEREBANT AR
HRERAE - FECEERAREEEDH
B WHERAZNHZESRKEA - AKEE
KRR TER AR 5% ERETEIHK - MER
INEIRET BB E R -

AAREENE TREFERARKENERDF
HNMFE12 211 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

38. MEEHEENREHK

38.

176

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the

FERSRIEREE

Py = — R =S
HeEmED

AN ~—§
FEILE

TERHFEAEEREEHELNAEES &
CBMEBERBELNEER

BERANEELZRE

ReREXRANBEARELDELNRERE

future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s HWEE-
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount Amount
Short-term  Corporate due to due to Interest
borrowings bonds adirector  associates payable Total
EN&-% EfEE
EHEH NS EERE ARRE EAFE @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2017 n2017£1818 80,631 - 5,210 - - 85,841
Financing cash flow BERLRE (29,252) 106,758 (5.210) = (5.782) 66,514
Finance cost incurred FNEERBTBAR
during the year - 1574 - - 5782 7,356
Exchange differences EREE (5,229) (1,698) - - - (6,927)
At 31 December 2017 2017128318 46,150 106,634 = = = 152,784
Financing cash flow HERENE (43,005) 189,894 - 2,994 (1,355) 148,528
Finance cost incurred FREERNBER A
during the year - 35,389 - - 1,355 36,744
Exchange differences EREE 1,355 26,315 - - - 27,670
Investment costs payable B A - - - 200 - 200
At 31 December 2018 1R2018F 12 4318 4,500 358,232 - 3,19 - 365,926
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE
39. OPERATING LEASE 39. REHEERIE
COMMITMENTS

AEBEREEA

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

The Group as lessee

REARBREHEESNZ
RIEHEERK

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating leases during the year

4,990

4,727

At the end of reporting period, the Group had
commitment for future minimum lease payment under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises and plant and machinery which fall due as

RBEHR - ARERERTIHRIBNE
MEEYE  BEIEBROTAIRELEEE
BARARRSEEEFKIBAEZLT

follows:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTFIT

Premises LES
Within one year —E R 5,342 3,009
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF(RIEEEME) 4,471 2,314
9,813 5,323

The leases of the Group are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to three years at fixed rental.

AEBHEEREFESHT  BHHENF—2=
& o
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

39. OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Group as lessor

Machinery rental income earned during the year was
approximately RMB2,166,000 (2017: RMB2,154,000).
The machinery held have committed tenants for the
next two year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
contracted with a tenant for the following future
minimum lease payments:

39.

KEHERE®)

AEBEEREHEA

FRFTRREVE ST S WAL A ARE 2,166,000
TT(20174F « AR#2,154,0007T) ° B 2
HENRERECERP AR -

MRIEHRR - AEBE D EBBEF B TR EKE
MEFIRRTH -

2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 &
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Machinery MR
Within one year —FE R 2,520 2,092
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF(RIEEREME) 2,520 3,660
5,040 5,752
40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 40. EARELE
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Capital expenditure authorised but not LA TN &IEME BB R ETAIE
contracted for in respective of: BARMAS :
— Acquisition of property, — Y - RE R
plant and equipment - 24,593

China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which includes corporate bonds and short-term
borrowings disclosed in notes 32 and 33, respectively,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising share capital,
share premium, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through payment of dividend, new Shares issue as well
as the issue of new debt or repayment of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

41. EXERER

AEBEREER  UERASENERKA
FEQYE  WEREBKEERREIELRET
BRBRREREAER - REBENHERRES
BEFEERFTE -

AEBNENEBBEEER - Eh %05
K32 R33RBEHNRRES K EHER (]
BRIRERBEEFEY) RARRER ARGE
= (BRERA - BIE(E  FiR&EREETN) -

ARREERHEELRMNERES YEE
BEARKAREERBENRER - REEKE
BB BITHRAD BT ERERR
BEBTEEERERER -

42. €@ T A
() &R TEER

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Financial assets SREE
Equity instruments at FVTOC| FREMEEMWEEATE
H|ER 2 IRART A 22,230 =
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ EZ R ERFUE (BERE K
and cash equivalents) HEEEY) - 2,478,668
Financial assets at amortised cost LABESERC NP BRI S RE & B 2,156,826 =
AFS investments A HERE - 53,928
Financial liabilities c@MAasE
Amortised cost S8 Ak AR 489,921 238,368
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. T A&

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEREEEERBE

180

objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity instruments at FVTOCI/AFS investments,
trade receivables, other receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, other payables,
corporate bonds, short-term borrowings, amounts
due to associates and financial guarantee
contracts.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

AEENFZEeMTABERBEMS
AR EEATEINRZRATA, A f#
HERE - BWE HFIA - E o fEWK
B RITERERT  EBNESHAE -
HMENRIE  ARES  BHRER
B E N RIFR R M BERAR

ZETMTANFRRERNSME - &
ZETRMTEAENARBREMS AR
(SNEREE XA ERAR) - FEERRRR
HETRER o T X H R Z
ZRBHEEK - EREEEREREEZSE
R - DARELR BB A RO SREUVE B 161

Market risk %5 [ e
Foreign currency risk SN BB

Certain transactions of the Group are
denominated in HK$ and United States dollars
("USD") which is different from the functional
currency of the relevant group entities i.e. RMB,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and (liabilities) denominated in HK$ and
USD at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

REFENETRZTIABTTRFET( X
TTDFHE METRBREEEREE
B (BDARE) AN ER - Fith A&
I T ER SN B

RI|ERAE T RETFENREE
TREER(RE)MNREENT

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARBFIT

Bank balances RITAEER 347 561
Other payables H th fE T RRIE (9,983) (6,676)
Short-term borrowings REER - (41,650)
Corporate bonds — due within one year R &lf&% — R —F N Z|H] (196,069) (19,199)
Corporate bonds — due after one year A Al{&% — A —F1£ 5| H (162,163) (87,435)
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. T A&

(Continued)

BHEREERERBERE)

(b) Financial risk management

(b)

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge against its exposure to
currency risk. Management manages its foreign
currency risk by monitoring the movement of the
foreign currency rate and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against
HK$ and USD. A 5% sensitivity rate represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rate. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against HK$ and USD. For a 5% weakening of
RMB against HK$ and USD, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit for the
year.

g5 (&)
SN LB (4B

AEEBAYEERTATETAGR
HhEMHBENERRERR EREEB
ERSMNERERN B E RS E R -
N AHEREBEFEAINERR

o

TERALAEEHAREEABTRET
THERBZES%MSRE - FRE L X
5% JhE IR EFLINEE RS I Al gL #

tEH A REAE © BURE DT (E B I ASNE
AHENAREEERIER - YRREHR
12 5% SNEETE R HE B FELE - TRIEH
BN E ARE BT RETLAESY
ABAIEM - WARBLETRETE

B5%  HFERBRNGHEEARNEFEY
@,
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. WM T A#®)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEEREEEEREEE)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) %/ (&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) HNEE [P (48D

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Profit for the year FRAF

18,393 7,720

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the foreign currency risk
inherent as the year end exposure does not reflect
the exposure during the relevant year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances (see
note 28 for details). The Group does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Total interest income from financial assets that
are measured at amortised cost is as follows:

AR A BRI T R BR B B F AR
% WEEERSBRESTAERA I
PE R 7 I N AR o

A 2= [ Bz

AEEEEGA BT RRITEHRNRET
ENEER(GFBERHE28) - AEEL
B REHBEER - AT EEBERER
MBI N R E B R E AN K
[\ o

REERAGEZ EMEEF RKA L
AT :

2018
2018 5

RMB’000
AR® TR

Other income

Financial assets at amortised cost LA SHA AT BRI S R B B 4,058
2017
20174
RMB'000
ARET T
Other income EH bl A

Loans and receivables (including bank B L EWTIE(BIERITESEES)
balances and cash) 3,163
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. WM IT A %)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEEREEEEREEE)

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest expense on financial liabilities not
measured at fair value through profit or loss:

g5 ()
M=\ (48)

WIEE BB RBRAFEIRTEZER
BEMEMAX :

2018 2017

2018 & 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Financial liabilities at amortised cost A S AT BR A 2 B B 1B

36,744 7,356

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on bank
balances is detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group's bank balances.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank balances at the end of
each reporting period.

The analysis is prepared assuming the variable-
rate bank balances outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 25 basic point (2017: 25 basic points)
increase or decrease for bank balances is used
represent management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

REBRRITARE BRON X RARFT
HRAWERDE SRR EE—H - &
SEMNRERENETAREIEETREA
AEBRITERELNDEARRITH
SIS E

BURE DT

AT 8EE D TRITE BIRITEBRNE
WERRAAEEON X EREE -

ST T BB 5 4R 45 B AE R 03T B4R
TERRERT SR EE - BT
#4771 % 4 90 5L 2 25 181 B (2017 4
25 EEE) AEREHFIRATA L
B o
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42. M T H &

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

184

objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates on bank balances had been 25
basis points (2017: 25 basic points) higher and all
other variables were held constant, a positive
number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year.

(b)

BHEREERERBEKE)

R AC )
BRED T ()
it R 1T AE BRI L F 25 EEBH (2017 4F

25 AEE) - MATAE B EERTE -
AT RIEBBERFEARBFNIEN -

Increase in profit for the year

FARFIE N

2018 2017

2018 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AREFIT
1,607 1,420

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

The Group also exposes to fair value interest rate
risk, which primarily relates to the Group's fixed
rate short-term borrowings and corporate bonds.
After reviewing the Group's exposure for the time
being, the Group did not enter into any
arrangements to minimise this interest rate risk.
Management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider entering into appropriate hedging
transactions should the need arise.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group arising from the carrying
amount of the respect recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties.

China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

42. @I A %)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The credit risk of the Group is concentrated on
trade receivables and contract assets from the
Group'’s five largest customers at 31 December
2018 amounting to RMB669,756,000 (2017:
RMB854,581,000) and accounted for 34.3%
(2017: 50.0%) of the Group’s total trade
receivables and contract assets before impairment
losses. These five largest customers include state-
owned enterprises and private limited companies
registered and operated in the PRC. They are
mainly the main contractors of construction
projects. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management continuously monitors the level of
exposure by frequent review of the credit
evaluation of the financial condition and credit
quality of its customers to ensure that prompt
actions will be taken to lower exposure. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade
balances based on provision matrix. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In order to minimise the credit risk of liquid fund,
the Group reviews regularly the credit rating of
the banks which they placed bank deposits in and
performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of HKFRS 9 on bank
balances individually. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk of liquid fund is significantly reduced.

(b)

BHEREERERBEKE)

fe X Jei(E AT (48

D/\

AEENEERRETRREAERR
ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%%ﬁﬁ&éﬁﬁévm
2018F 12 A31H ' RKEAKREFHE
W E 5 HIE R AR 669,756,000 7T
(20174 : A R #854,581,0007T) ' 15
ANEE RN BEREIER M EWE 5K
HEAEREEBRTEN343%(20174F :
50.0%) ° ZE A AR BIEEF B
RigEmBE B ERLAGRAR © 1K
EXTRELHEMNEZAER - B
FERRBEREK  EEEBESBERR
NERFNMBRAREEEZNEE
A R FEE R EERE R A KE - #

TR BN EREXTT ) Aitﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁuuﬁﬁﬂﬁm 2
o REERERE R MRS LR

FORRRBEBHMEREBRBREA(2017
F:EEABBEN) HEREHEER L

B ESETRER G - BtmE - &
REEERRAEENEERRE KR
FRIE -

BERDHESHNEER AR

IEHH%&ETEHETTT E’JfEﬁ =B
AR YR ERE B MG REERE9
FERBEEMNEEBREAYRTE

HEITEARER - BLUmE - Z’S
EERAAEBRBESHEER E
AIEEIR o
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

42. WM T A#®)

(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEMREEEEREEE)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment SRR R E L (E)
(Continued)
The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment RNEE 2z A EE R T RS2 E N
comprises the following categories: TR
Trade receivables/ Bank balances/
Internal credit rating ~ Description contract assets other receivables
RBEEFR B EREZZE/ AREE BT/ HiEhE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — not credit- impaired 12-month ECL
EER does not have any past- due amounts LHRNEERE—BEERE  NEREHREEE
LHHFHENERERGEEAASNE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired ~ 12-month ECL
EHRE usually settle after due date SUBMESEE— EESRE ERESLEEER
EEAGFRIBARE  ERERIBAREE
Doubtful There have been significant increases in credit risk since Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
28 initial recognition through information developed PHRHEEER —EEERE 2UEHLEER— BEERE
internally or external resources
BEAEZR RENPEENEHIONTER  FERRAKX
il
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
B# ENSFAAELREERE PHRSCEER—CERE  2UMEHEEEE—GRRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in Amount is written off Amount is written off
s severe financial difficulty and the Group has no EOETRE it EVETRE it

realistic prospect of recovery
ERBETERARNRENHAZE RAEEL
WEEnEe

EER

186
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

42. WM IT A %)

(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEREEEERBRE(Z)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment = B3 B B B AT (1)
(Continued) D i o
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures THRAMINEAERSREERESRE
of the Group's financial assets and contract ENEERRBO  ZEL@EERE
assets, which are subject to ECL assessment: FEEEEITTRIEE IS -
External Internal 12-month Gross carrying
2018 Notes  credit rating credit rating or lifetime ECL amount
2018% Mz HBEETR RBEETR NEARZHRESEEFA REAH
RMB'000
ARETTL
Financial assets at amortised costs
DEB#RATIR SREE
Bank balances 28 Aa2/BBB (Note 1) 12-month ECL 875,539
RITER (BzE1) 12EAEHEEES
Other receivables 27 NA (Note 2) 12-month ECL 34,153
E KR A (HtzE2) 1REARBEEES
Trade receivables 25 NA (Note 3) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 1,362,194
ERE S TR (HfE3) LHESREEHE (BEER)
Other items
HitER
Contract assets 26 NA (Note 3) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 589,867
RREE TR (HHE3) LHESREEHE (BEER)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

188

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Notes:

1.

Except for the bank balances of RMB3,119,000 was
placed in banks with external credit rating as detailed
above, the remaining bank balances of
RMB872,420,000 was placed in a local bank which
does not have external credit rating as at 31
December 2018. The Group has applied 12m ECL
approach to assess the impairment loss on bank
balances and determines the credit rating of this
local bank based on the scale, the operation risk and
the supervision risk of the bank.

For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The balances of other receivables
are all not past due.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to
measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The
Group determines the expected credit losses on
these items by using a provision matrix, grouped by
combined effect of internal credit ratings, past due
status and repayment history.
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(b)

BHEREERERBEKE)

EE AR

a2y

EF G (&)

M2018% 12 A31 8 @ B Ll FEHRR A
IBEETFIRBINETEHAR
3,119,0007T b » IR RIT &R AR
872,420,000 7t 17 MR I £& SN 3B {5 B AT AR
BAHERTT o AL EE A 12{EAEHE
BEE AT ERITESORERK - I
BIBRITHRIR CERRBRRETRRE
TE AR TR (= B RTAR ©

HRAMEERREENS - AEEERE
PEHFGHEERERREERAREEE
EFREI0 o B EUTIRM SRS AR o

HEREZFARSREENS @+ ALE
ERAEDUBREEAE IFEMAELTT
FrtE 2 NRMEEEROEREME - K
SEERRBEEEEZSREMNEHRE
EEE Z25BEEERABEEFE B
AR RESRRENRE T BETHM
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. WM IT A %)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) MEEREEEEREEE)

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
and contract assets which are assessed based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired).

Gross carrying amount

EEm R K BE L (B)

TRIEEEER2PEHEEBERN(E
EERE)SXEREFHEREREE
(FA20184 12 A 31 BIR B BT ()
EEREBR &R ©

FREBRE
Average Trade Contract
Loss rate receivables assets
FiEEE U E 5 RE ERAEE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARBET T

Grade 1: Low risk F14 - KER 0.1% = 8,817
Grade 2: Watch list F2M  BDAIRE 3.2% 831,726 294,998
Grade 3-4: Doubtful EIEZAH : REE 13.2% 530,468 286,052

1,362,194 589,867

For bank balances, the Group assessed the ECL
on the carrying amount of RMB872,420,000 and
RMB3,119,000 at the loss rates of 2.15% and
0.09%, respectively, as at 31 December 2018.

For other receivables, the directors consider the
default rate of amounts due from a director is not
significant, thus, the Group assessed that the
ECLs on this balance is insignificant.

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

FIRITHERTM S - AEEER 201845 12
A31 B934 2.15% 5% 0.09% HY &5 18 =R
FHEEREEA R 872,420,000t AR
#3,119,000 TR TEEAE BB -

BEMEEHEMS  EFTRREK—
ZEERENEN X MR BREHRNER
EHTBEK - Bt - AEE R ZF
‘BHENFEREEERTEEK -

EFE R R RIBEES AR BRF
BEBSRABEOXRMG  ARBEBET
W B [ 25 71 BRI 1S ) A IR 1 B R
TR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group provided RMB12,025,000, RMB6,268,000
and RMB10,226,000 of net impairment losses for
trade receivables, contract assets and bank
balances respectively, based on the provision
matrix. Impairment losses of RMB96,445,000,
RMB47,762,000 and RMB18,723,000 were made
on trade receivables contract assets and bank
balances, respectively.

The following table shows the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables and contract assets under the

42. M T H &

(b) MEEREERERBE#E)

FEE R KB E G (&)

AREAR%E ()

REZE2018F 12 A31BILEFEE A&
EREEEERE D I ERE 5 FIE
EREERRITEABNRESEFE
AR# 12,025,000t + AR 6,268,000
TR AR# 10,226,000 7T ° ¥l Z 5
B EREBERBITESRE HAIED
JREE 18 A R #96,445,0007T « AR
47,762,000 7T 2 A R #5 18,723,000 7T °

TREFIRIBEHTTEERBERE S
RELERAEENEHEREEBER
MRAIRITHEKRN 128 A BHREEEE

simplified approach and 12m ECL that has been 2 e .
recognised for bank balances.
12m ECL
Lifetime ECL (not credit-
(not credit-Impaired) impaired) Total
1218 A
2HRBEERR AHEEER
(BRIEERE) (BREEERE) wat
Trade Contract Bank
receivables assets balances
FEWE 28 EREE SRITEEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARBT T ARBTT ARBFT
As at 31 December 2017  A2017512 8318
under HKAS 39 REEBGTER
58395 14,978 - - 14,978
Adjustment upon RERBANBHRSE
application of HKFRS 9 ERIEIRE AR 69,442 41,494 8,497 119,433
As at 1 January 2018 R2018F1818
— As restated — K& 84,420 41,494 8,497 134,411
Changes due to financial M2018% 1 A 1 BHER
instruments recognised ZEMTAMBUEE) :
as at 1 January 2018:
— Impairment losses — BREREES
reversed (46,275) (5,760) (266) (52,301)
New financial assets S RMEE
originated 58,300 12,028 10,492 80,820
As at 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 96,445 47,762 18,723 162,930
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. WM IT A %)

(Continued)

BHEREERERBERE)

(b) Financial risk management

(b)

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets are mainly due to
the increase of the gross amount of trade
receivables and contract assets during the year.

Changes in the loss allowance for bank balances
are mainly due to the change of gross amounts of
bank deposits placed at different banks with
different credit ratings at 1 January 2018 and 31
December 2018.

For ECL assessment of other receivables as
detailed in note 27, the Group performed
impairment assessment and concluded that the
impairment loss involved is insignificant.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and
cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

=R R B E R ()

FRE AR (%)

EUEEZFERARAEEBRREEZY
DEIZHNFARKESHERERE
EAREEEINPTER

ROTEHRBEBBEEIHNETEARR
201851 A1H R&2018F 128310 &
R B A RS BB TR RTTZ8RTT
TR B P

FAPH FE 27 FTRF AL B0 B Al SR WG IB TR AR
EBERNEMS - AKRBEEETRER
HIRBMIREBRLTERX °

REE TR

EERPEcRBTE  AEEERK
ERRERRECEFEVENEEERS
FERAKFE  UREAKERERTE
T WRIRERERSNTZE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42. €T B (%)

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) BIEREEEERBE(Z)
objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) THEE DR (&)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANAEBIITAES R B BRI
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial AR TRIDIBESRABENARITIR
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on BEReamEl 252 aEhRER
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities SEAEANRNRE RN LE

based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or less than 6 months- undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 3-6 months 1 year 1-5 years cash flows amount
il 3371 REXY, ESiiE]
ERfE =fEAR ZEAER ~ERE-£ -E1f  RERELE Rk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
As at 31 December 2018 12018512 8318
Tradle payables ERBHTE 80,542 3037 1761 - 91,546 91,546
Other payables HihERTUR 3,449 - - - 3,449 0,449
Amounts due to associates fEfTBEEAFIZIE - - 319 - 319 319
Shortterm borowings ~ BEIER 435% - - 4,69 - 4,6% 4,500
Corporate bonds NAES 9.78% 235,664 5,854 62,851 232,381 536,750 358,232
348,655 9,091 78,508 232,381 668,635 489,921
Asat 31 December 2017 #2017% 128318
Trade payables Ef85E 60,975 5,850 1928 - 63753 63753
Other payables HthERFUE 15,631 - - - 15,631 15,631
Short-term borrowings  EEEH 7.64% 42483 = 4,69 = 47179 46,150
Corporate bonds NAES 8.70% 3218 1,939 21,566 110,256 137,039 106,634
Financial quarantee contracts B ERAR - - 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
122,367 7789 29,390 110,256 269,802 238,368
(c) Fair value measurements of (0 ERIEBENLAFEE
financial instruments
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are AEFER PR TERTEE2HRAE IR
measured at fair value for financial reporting NEEEE o
purposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses EHETATEE  AEERTAEFERT
market-observable data to the extent it is BRMIZEIE - W ES — R AZUE
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, ZBERT  AEBZRBEE=H45E%KME
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to ERMETT(HE o

perform the valuation.
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(Continued)

TR

(o)

TR I ENAFETEE)

() AEBEZEFIEEELRNF
EitEEMEES N FHE

AEEBLEMEENSHREHR
BAFERE - TRIBRUAEE
HZETRMEEZ A FECERMN
R ERM R ARIE) 2 BEL o

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
HERTREERALE

Significant
unobservable
input(s)
EXTURERALE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42.
(c) Fair value measurements of
financial instruments (Continued)
(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of
these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and
inputs used).
Fair value as at
}K“FE‘JE%ZQ\\$E Fair value
Financial assets 31.12.2018 31122017 hierarchy
SHEE 0185127318 V75128318 ATEER
Private equity investment 11.7% equity NA(Note 1) Level3
at Vol investment in TERME) 24
(2017: dlassified as AFS) an unlisted entity
FhAn2ENE engaging in
BATESIR investment holding
HERARE RMB22,230,000
(017%: 58A RESRERR
ARLE) ZELnER2
1.7% RERE
AR%22,230,0007

Income approach — in this approach,
the discounted cash flow method
was used capture the present value
of the expected future economic
benefits to be derived from the
ownership of this investee, based
on an appropriate discount rate.

WNE—EARES  TRRE
REAREABIREAR
DEREYSEREREE
LEBRREE N RNGE

Long-term revenue growth rate at 2.5%,
taking into account management's
experience and knowledge of
market conditions of the specific
industries. (Note 2)

REMGRIERE) 5%  EHHR
EREBRRANNE TR
R « (fit2)

Long-term pre-tax operating margin,
taking into account management's
experience and knowledge of
market conditions of the specific
industries, ranging from
34.4% 10 40.0% .

REMAEENEENT344% F
400%  ERETREEEZ AR
REHBRTETLLBE -

Discount rate, taking into account of
weighted average cost of capital
determined using a Capital Asset
Pricing Model, ranging from 20.0%
1028.1%. (Note 3)

AR EERERERMTRE
NF200%Z28.1%  EF:HR
BARMETIRA (3E3)

Discount at 35% for lack of marketability,
determined by reference to the
share price of listed entities in
similar industries.
RemaRBIHTR3% 5%
BlrEn tmER  REEE -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

194

(c) Fair value measurements of
financial instruments (Continued)

(1)

Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value

ona

Notes:

recurring basis (Continued)

The equity investments at FVTOC! is classified
as AFS as at 31 December 2017 and is
measured at cost.

A slight increase in the long-term revenue
growth rates used in isolation would result in
an increase in the fair value measurement of
the private equity investment, and vice versa.
A 1% increase in the long-term revenue
growth rates holding all other variables
constant would increase the carrying amount
of the shares by RMB179,000.

A slight increase in the discount rate used in
isolation would result in a decrease in the fair
value measurement of the private equity
investments, and vice versa. A 1% increase in
the discount rate holding all other variables
constant would decrease the carrying amount
of the private equity investments by
RMB1,755,000.

China Saite Group Company Limited ff B &G EE AR A A

(o)

42. WM T A#®)

TR I ENAFETEE)

() AEEZREEMLEELAR
Bt E2@EEZNF
(%)

it

1. BREMEERSEEATEIIEZ
AR ER 2017612 A31 BT 5D

BRI HHEDARAREE -

2. B8 it R 0 &= B e e = R B0
EREBLBERAERE 2 AFEE
B RZIA - MAHE MR
BHBTE  REKGEREER
1% 1§ B BREEE AR

179,000 7T °

3. BEERNTR R RUE RS EE
ERARKRE 2 ATEHERD -
[RZ IR o qNPTE E b B EERF D
B R EIER% HEBAER
AEEERBERLD AR

1,755,000 7T ©
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42. WM IT A %)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of
financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(0 EMIANDFEFTEGE)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) FB=RATEGTELHER
measurements
31 December 2018 201812 A31H
Equity
instruments
at FVTOCI
ZEREMEE
WA FE
SR ZBRATE
RMB’'000
AR%T T
Opening balance EEENEESS 53,928
Loss in other comprehensive income Hibh 2w S EE (29,698)
Disposal (== (2,000)
Closing balance BR A5 &4 22,230

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
costs in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their corresponding fair values.

ARAREEAR - WBHRAES
EMBHRRIEZEMEERER
BEZEREREEAREQFEMR
S

Annual Report 2018 —Z— \FF 3} 195




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z= 2018 £ 12 A 31 HILFE

43. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Balances with related parties

The following balances were outstanding at the
end of the reporting period:

43. BEALTHREER
(a) BEANLTEE

IO HIR H AR EE

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARBT T

Amounts due from a director FEW — §$m 32,550 14,920

Amounts due to associates

AT

A 3,194 =

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members

(b) EEEEASKIZHMN

RAEFER EXERTEEEARH

of key management for both years were as fthpk B EVF B0 T
follows:
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Short-term benefits 52 HAE A 5,396 4,960
Contributions to retirement BIRERN T2 70
benefit scheme 77 71
5,473 5,031
44. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE 44. HEHRBEE
REPORTING PERIOD
On 27 February 2019, the Company entered into the R20194F2 A 27 B AARHER E%E;Ji

subscription agreement with a subscriber pursuant to
which the subscriber has agreed to subscribe for, and
the Company has agreed to allot and issue,
260,000,000 shares at the subscription price of HK$0.5
per share. The subscription was completed on 13 March
2019.
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE

45. AP A M BEMRR R F#EER

COMPANY
2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Non-current asset IFEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries I ENG Ok ) 1,427,504 1,175,504
1,427,504 1,175,504
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments Hib e s L et Zia 18,164 650
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL T B A RIFIE - 67,130
Bank balances RITEERR 308 561
18,472 68,341
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals HippErAfHELEASER 9,827 6,523
Amounts due to subsidiaries A NGB O] 75,797 —
Short-term borrowings HHIER - 41,650
Corporate bonds-due within one year NAElfEE — R —ERE|HE 196,069 19,199
281,693 67,372
Net current (liabilities) assets FE(EE)EEFE (263,221) 969
Total assets less current liabilities BEERAREBAERS 1,164,283 1,176,473
Non-current liability FREBEF
Corporate bonds-due after one year NAElfEE — R —FE1& T H 162,163 87,435
1,002,120 1,089,038
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital (see note 35) B&A (B BY3E35) 187,410 187,410
Share premium and reserves P& B R 814,710 901,628
Total equity EREEE 1,002,120 1,089,038
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 45. A BB IEAR R R @B R ()
POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Movement of capital and reserves of BARERRFESE
the Company
Share Share Capital  Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
R R %R {E BEXRfGE 2R @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT ARBTTT ARETTT ARBTTT ARETTT

At 1 January 2017 R2017F1 318 179,527 473,674 464,556 (54,674) 1,063,083
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRERE R 2 ER X &5

expense for the year - - - (19,769) (19,769)
Issued of new shares (note 35)  Z47TAR {3 (K15 35) 7,883 37,841 - - 45,724
At 31 December 2017 N2017F12A318 187,410 511,515 464,556 (74,443) 1,089,038
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE R 2R X A%

expense for the year - - - (86,918) (86,918)
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 12 A31H 187,410 511,515 464,556 (161,361) 1,002,120

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. X AR X EN B A RNFSE

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Equity interest attributable

Place of to time_Company Issued and fully
incorporation/ FAARERE paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary establishment 2018 2017 registered capital Principal activity
HEARER T/ RIS 218% W75 BREARMERS/ ZRER IBEH
Modern Day Holdings Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 Investment holding
EHERERAT &% £3t1,000,0007%7 REER
China Saite (Overseas) Company Limited British Virgin Islands 100% 100%  Ordinary share US$1 Investment holding
hEES (8 ARAT £BRRES LRk ET REER
China Saite (H.K.) Company Limited Hong Kong 100% 100%  Ordinary share HK$1 Investment holding
hERS(FE)ARAT B TR AT REER
Yixing City Zhicheng Consultation the PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB16,667,000 Investment holding
Company Limited (note ) i Paid-up capital RMB16,667,000 RERR
BEAMEIHARRAR () &R AR 16,667,000
ERERARS 16,667,007
Jiangsu Saite Steel Structure Co,, Ltd. (note b) the PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB502,860,000 Construction of steel structure
I ERERARAR (Hb) i Paic-up capital RMB341,367,000 and prefabricated
AR AR % 502,860,00070 construction projects
ERERARS 343670007 PLRRERRIRARRN

BEHT
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REMBBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 = 2018 4F 12 A 31 HILFE

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 47. A DNTETEMB A TN
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Continued)

Equity interest attributable

Place of to ti\eiCompany Issued and fully
incorporation/ FLARERRE paid share capital/
Name of subsidiary establishment 2018 2017 registered capital Principal activity
KEAAER HRRL/ R 0185 W% BEORERBA/AMER ITER
Jiangsu Qifeng New Building Materials the PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB197,000,000 Prefabricated construction
Company Limited (note ) i Paid-up capital RMB137,000,000 projects
IEEETRHERAR (Mt AR ARE 197,000,000 jibtdis Sk
EAEARAR137,000,00070
Anhui Saite New Building Materials the PRC 100% 100%  Registered capital RMB60,000,000 Prefabricated construction
Company Limited (note ¢) # Paid-up capital RMB22,000,000 projects
RHRETHENERAR (M) HHARAR%60,0000007 RERERSER
EEERARR22,000,00070
Shenzhen Saite Construction Consulting the PRC 100% Registered capital HK$50,000,000 Construction constitting
Company Limited (note a) H Paid-up capital RMB2,000,000 fe =5
RIERRETRARRRA (Wita) A 250,000,007
ELETARE2,0000007T
Shanghai Saite Supply Chain the PRC 100% Registered capital RMB50,000,000 Construction consttting
Company Limited (note ) H Paid-up capital Ni fe2 5]
HEEEERERAR (Mo &R AR 50,000,000
EEHER
Notes: Bzt -
(a) The entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established (a) ZERANPEKININEBEDCE - AXHTE

in the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The entity is a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in
the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The entity is a wholly sino-owned enterprise established in
the PRC. The English name is for translation purpose.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the year.

(ENEE

(b) FHEBASNHERINFTIEGERERE - HX
A EERIERE -

@ ZHEBSNTERIMNTEBEDRE - KXHH
(ENEE

$’“’T§$w% ERAFIA R R EME QA

BYEAEEXENEE - EFR/FINE
’erMT% AMFBTRIBARITE

PR B A RN ERBITEMERES
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EFMBERE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION B EREE

ARER B4R DA T B 2 BT 0 B 2R AR S0 B 8 B B AR
BEzBEAMRAREERAGRREWT :

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years prepared
on the basis set out in the note below is as follows:

Results |
Year Ended 31 December
BE12A31BIEFE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 2017 & 20164 20154 20144
RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
LS ARX%Tr ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Revenue W zs 1,501,311 1,411,745 1,650,760 1,834,664 1,660,285
Cost of sales SHEMAR (1,147,488) (1,051,837) (1,222,468) (1,321,827) (1,165,394)
Gross profit =S 353,823 359,908 428,292 512,837 494,891
Other income HA 12,890 9,985 9,737 6,373 8,306
Other gains or losses H o sEie (24,708) (7,399) (6,608) - -
Impairment losses REEE (28,519) - - - -
Selling and distribution expense $%& & & 445 % (4,027) (4,093) (2,107) (9,585) (3,979)
Administrative expense THRAY (56,544) (37,233) (31,585) (59,918) (40,582)
Other expense Hitf% - = = = =
Finance costs BITS R AR (36,744) (7,356) (6,554) (1,343) =
Share of profit a joint venture S {E& & ERF 332 409 502 = =
Share of loss of associates DIEHEE AR EE (1,113) = - - -
Profit before tax R 75 AT 22 ) 215,390 314,221 391,677 448,364 458,636
Income tax expense PSR 2 (76,378) (87,021) (103,408) (122,461) (148,938)
Total comprehensive income A2 E WA #%E
for the year 139,012 227,200 288,269 325,903 309,698
Earnings per share BRREF
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARED) 5.96 9.77 14.13 17.53 19.36
Diluted (RMB cents) B (ARED) NATER  NATEA  NATEA 1751  NATEAE
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
Year Ended 31 December
BZ12A3BLEFE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20184 2017 & 20164 20154 20144
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ISP AEX¥Tr ARETRT ARBTE ARETR
Non-current assets FRBEE 542,501 484,998 378,447 395,817 232,527
Current assets MEVEE 2,770,810 2,572,692 2,313,889 1,928,454 1,428,050
Current liabilities mEAE (426,561) (269,566) (264,571) (247,111) (285,963)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (254,279) (179,551) (92,116) (92,116) (92,116)
Total equity ey k) 2,632,573 2,608,573 2,335,649 1,985,044 1,282,498
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